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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor

Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

WEB SITE

http://www.karrie.com.hk

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai (Chairman & CEO)

Mr. KWOK Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. LEE Shu Ki

Mr. WONG Shun Pang

Non-executive Director
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming (was re-designated on 1 June 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming (was appointed on 1 June 2007)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. TANG Wing Fai

AfMERE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HPRBEERTEEXMBE

BB

%%
FILAK611-6195%
REI¥EKRE
1018

A

http://www.karrie.com.hk

=

HBITES

Bt (EERITHARE)
BXBELE (BIERE)
FRBEE

&= RS 5t

FBTES
MEREE(CETLFRA - BERT)

BYFHTES
mEEEREE
BRInFR T AL
TR EE

BEREES

mERTE
BRInFR T E
TR EE
MEREE(CETLFANA-—RAERE)

FMESS
mEEEREE
BRInFR T AL
Al 2B SE &
DNRAME



Corporate Information 2 8&#

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
44-45/F, Tower One Lippo Centre

89 Queensway, Admiralty

Hong Kong

Hang Seng Bank
83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Limited
17th Floor, Two Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank
Standard Chartered Bank Building
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

B BLEm

KB G At R E A% P
HE G ETAD

BEAEPIR

KFKRE221E

FTEIRET
FERERIRTT

B5

% $8 38 895%

HNE L — FE44-4558

BARTT
5
1= 8 T 835k

BB LBESRITARAA
BB
ERANEF IR

ImEE R
BB

© BB 885

Kb ES2E 1712

BITIRTT

a5

B E T 4-4A58
BITIRITANE

TERODEBFETE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BEERODBFELTTE

EEPRBLEELHR AT
BB

EREREFR183R

A A L

17181712-6%=



.Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

3R BB P B AR A

Key Information for Shareholders R FE&EF!

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2007

Announcement of 2006/07 results
9 July 2007

Last day to register for 2006/07
Final Dividends
10 August 2007

Annual General Meeting
17 August 2007

2006/07 Final Dividend
Payment Date
31 August 2007

—EELFRBREFER

ZEERBLFEXEQMBEH
—ZEELFLANAE

SEEN/BLEERMERE
B&BRAN
“EELFNATA

RRBEEAS
—E=+FN\A++tA

—ETA BLEERMRE
N
“ETLFNA=1—H

Financial Year End BMEELEAR
31 March 2007 —EE+F=H=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL % 2
As at
B=
31 March 2007 30 June 2007
—BELE —BBLF
=A=+—H NA=1+H
Authorised (HK$) EE GBIT) 80,000,000 80,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2817 (OBIT) 41,228,400 41,228,400

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2007, the Company had 412,284,000 shares
in issue of which approximately 45.63%" was held by the
public. As at that date, the Company had a total of 383
registered shareholders. The following table shows the
distribution of ownership according to the Register of
Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement System
as of 30 June 2007:

REGBRRRD 22

HE_ZTZTLFA=Z1+H  AlQa
1TR% 17 412,284,0000% + EF RARRIFHRELD
1545.63%0 - HER B - A Q R AT
IR 3835 - RERFEZMEFPREEIK
AR _EZELFRNAZTHRENS2HE
ERERE  BMBRETUTRESME
HILEESLE -



Key Information for Shareholders R FE&EF!

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION (Cont'd)

REGBRRRD 224 (@)

Number of % of % of
registered number of Number of  total issued
Category shareholders shareholders shares share capital
& fif 1 & 18 EB BT
Bl BRREE B% R EE B % EREE B 13 Lt 5 %
Pearl Court Company Limited 1 0.26% 172,200,000 41.77%
Ho's family® AERE? 3 0.78% 49,180,000 11.93%
Directors® EFEO 4 1.05% 2,762,000 0.67%
Value Partners Limited® 1 0.26% 24,478,000 5.93%
Individuals BAKRES 188 49.09% 13,710,750 3.33%
Institutions, corporates BEIREE X
and nominees REEHENREA 186 48.56% 149,953,250 36.37%
Total A&t 383 100.00% 412,284,000 100.00%
Note: B
(1) Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, (1) R 2 R K (B Pearl Court Company
excluding those held by Pearl Court Company Limited, Ho's CARRERANARESAFERD
family and Directors of the Company. INRBATHFBEBEOROHEE -
(2) Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief () T BR & FE 3R 1T BB Bl 12 08 S A
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Deputy Chairman and REBLRPFMERLE(RZTZT
Chief Operating Officer (was re-designated as Non-executive —HEAFRFERITES) RMAEIK
Director on 1 June 2007), and Ms. Ho Po Chu. X
(3) Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr. (3) R (B fo] Je2 2 50 & Ko o] B2 BR 8 A 4))
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming. ZESE -

(4) Latest information up-dated to 30 June 2007 as provided by

Value Partners Limited.

As at 30 June 2007

Shareholders

It T3 Value Partners LimitedFr 2 fit >
ZFEELFEFRNAZTREZEHER -

B HTE

Shares of HK$0.1 each

R-EZEEFARA=1+H % R SREE0.1E TR 7B
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
5 B8 A HEEEI T A HEYAS L
1-5,000 73 19.0% 133,964 0.0%
5,001 - 20,000 109 28.5% 1,418,000 0.3%
20,001 - 50,000 56 14.6% 2,090,729 0.5%
50,001 - 100,000 46 12.0% 3,637,020 0.9%
100,001 - 200,000 26 6.8% 4,007,322 1.0%
200,001 - 500,000 29 7.6% 9,862,000 2.4%
500,001 - 1,000,000 11 2.9% 7,838,000 1.9%
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 13 3.4% 18,842,000 4.6%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 8 2.1% 25,975,495 6.3%
Over 5,000,000 F 12 3.1% 338,479,470 82.1%
383 100.0% 412,284,000 100.0%
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Key Information for Shareholders BRERFEE %}

OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR ORDINARY

SHARES GRANTED

ERTFEMRITENBERE

As at

=
31 March 2007 30 June 2007
—EELHF —EELE
=A=+—H NA=1+H
at exercise price of HK$1.30 each TEEASK1.308 T 100,000 100,000
at exercise price of HK$1.65 each TEERTR1.65E T 3,020,000 2,720,000
at exercise price of HK$2.475 each  17{# B A &M%2.475%8 7T 7,716,000 7,556,000
at exercise price of HK$1.90 each TEEAESR1.90% T 2,896,000 2,396,000
at exercise price of HK$3.15 each TEEAESR3I5E T 4,620,000 4,620,000
at exercise price of HK$3.35 each TEERBTIR335B T 11,400,000 10,400,000
Total &5t 29,752,000 27,792,000

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2007
(Closing Price: HK$2.07)
HK$853,427,880

As at 30 June 2007
(Closing Price: HK$2.24)
HK$923,516,160

&
HE-BTLF=A=+-8
(718 : 2.07387T)
853,427,880/ 7T

BE=-—ZSEZEtHEX<A=1+H
(W18 : 2.248 7T)
923,516,160/% 7T

Share Price Movement And Trade Volume in 2006/07
TEER BELEFEEZREEBEARE
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Key Information for Shareholders BRERFEE %}

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT

2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Branch
Share Registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Ms. Winnie Tsang

Senior Corporate Communications Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited

10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building

611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2437-6830

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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MAZESILAKE11-6195%
HEILEKEI102

B5 ¢ (852) 2437-6830

5 : (852)2415-1608

B : pytsang@karrie.com.hk/
ir@karrie.com.hk
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APR 4AH 7th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”
BITE LR EEAARE HE M

MAY 54 Team-building session for the management team
REBBBREITMHTESERBEEK] 2

JUN 6 H 2005/06 Annual Results Announcement
AE—_ZETRH/TERNEFEE2FEE

Commended by the Dongguan City Authority as the first enterprise to establish a
“Committee on the Concerns for the Next Generation”

ERETBFEARSERKLIBOT - RIFZEGIZEE

JUL7AH 8th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”
BITE)URHEAREERRN]
SEP 9A4 2006/07 1st Quarterly Results Announcement

N —FE /\/ftif% %—EFI-%,%

9th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BITENRTEEANRE B R

“Time Management & Stress Control” training session for the management

REBEBRITIEAER - RERE] 25

OCT 10H  Yu Quan Plant, Phase | commenced production
FRBMEE—HRALEEEE

Donation of RMB250,000 to Dongguan Provincial Government for the construction of Feng
Gang Hua Qiu Secondary School
BEARB _+THETETRETBRAEZBEMERGRSZ

NOV 114 2006/07 Interim Results Announcement
PNE_ET X/ TLFEPREEE

Awarded with “Honorable Mentions” in 2006 Best Annual Report Award by the Hong Kong
Management Association

EEEEREEXHE ST FEISEFREE| ZBRFHRER

DEC 12H  Listing 10th anniversary
FHTEFLE R

Winner in the Grand Prix for Best Overall Investor Relationship in Hong Kong - Small/Mid Cap
Category in a poll organized by the IR Magazine
BIREEHRMFG I EERIEEREREEFHRRE—HNEEIE—F

10th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BITE T RTEEANRE Z R



Corporate Calendar £¥KEHFE

2007

JAN 1A

FEB 2 A

MAR 3 A

JUNGH

JUL7H

“Marching for Excellence for Leadership” training session for management team

ABEREBRITINESIEH —EBE2007BE N 25

Awarded the “Caring Company” logo for the second consecutive year by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

BEE_FREABLERBBERE (BARBEIER

Sponsorship by Ho Cheuk Fai Foundation to the “Nothing is Impossible” Outward Bound
Programme for the Disadvantaged Children together with the St. Christopher’s Home
MEBEESEN TERAELNSEABREREN [ ZFNAFE A8 HPEG 2

2006/07 3rd Quarterly Results Announcement
R _ZEEX/ELEEE=ZFTTEER

“Management by Objectives” training session for strong potentials in the “Mentor Program for
the Elite”
RBPCEATE R BMBRAE P RELE cHEABERREEET

“Coaching Skills for Leadership training session for management team

REBEEBRTIEEHRE BRI 2HF

2006/07 Annual Results Announcement

Z\\ﬁﬁ -—?E/\/ftifiiﬁﬁa

11th “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

BIF - RTEEAREEFM
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Financial Highlights B #&# %

Share Price (HK$) Share Price Movement From 1999 to 2007 Share Price (HK$)

HE —AANEE-—BBLEIRELZE e

i

B (T T
N NKJI%'J'. Lﬁ"f I\L"r'w'ﬁ .
| 8

1.0 F F 410
1

- l""“—h.-\.n.___h_-f"-
O T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 0
98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07
Turnover HK$ million Profit attributable to shareholders HK$ million
EEXE BEAETT BRREMWLGZHN BEE T
4,000 200 ~
3,593 186
- 3,320
3,000 150 - 147
2,563
B 120 125
2,000 - L
1,738 1,693 100 90
i 78
1,156
1,000 |- 893 50 -
ol .
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Basic earnings per share HK cents Dividends per share HK cents
BRERGZHN B BREE B
50 35 —
— - *
30 L 30.0
40 - X
I 36.2 5 L Y 25.0
316 30.3 210
30 - 20 2.
- - 23.0
20 - : B
1.9 11.5
- 10
10 - 7.1 5L
oL . ol
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
*Include special dividend
BERRIRE
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Financial Highlights B #&# %

Turnover percentage by Products

REmBINEXBEID R

Metal and Plastic Business

T BBEH

0 Electronics Manufacturing Services

Business

ETEXRIER

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location

REmMEBBAINEXBERID R

Japan

SN

@ Asia (excluding Japan)
EM(PBEEFEAR)
@ North America
it =M

) Western Europe
7 B

45%

2007 2006 % Changes
—EELHE ZFTEEREF EHEH

HK$ million B & BT
Turnover S 3,320 3,593 -8%
Gross profit E A 304 386 -21%
Operating profit A% g A 150 219 -32%
Profit attributable to equity holders f% #E# B A F& (k% 7 125 186 -33%
Total assets BE®E 1,621 1,573 +3%
Shareholders’ equity R R 2 557 527 +6%
In Million B &R
Number of shares f& & B 412 411 -
Per Share Data BREH
HK Cents B
Basic earnings E K% A 30.3 455 -33%
Diluted earnings E 1% 5 A 30.2 451 -33%
Total cash dividends ISR E 11.5 25.0 -54%
HK$ BT
Net asset value per share EREEFE 1.4 1.3 +8%
Financial Ratios Bt &
Gross profit margin (%) EZEEF (%) 9.1 10.7 -15%
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 3.8 5.2 -27%
Net current ratio FmB =X 1.5 1.7 -12%
Net quick ratio IR B L X 1.0 1.1 -9%
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRITEELEX (%) 25 21 +19%
Interest coverage FERE X 9 11 -18%
Dividend payout (%) /JLJE,%\JZIZ?@ (%) 38 55 -31%
Turnover to net bank borrowings & ¥FEEFRITEELL X 23 32 -28%

11



12

. .Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

3R BB P B AR A

Financial Highlights Bi 7§t =

Definitions E&E
Basic earnings Profit attributable to equity holders AR PR B ARG 5 7 h
fl =
per share Weighted average number of shares 8 - In#EE 5 AR &
Diluted earnings  Profit attributable to equity holders 8 158 F iR B ARG S
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares mEA B8 R T 5 IR B
Net asset value Net assets SREESE BEEFE
BE
per share Number of shares as at year end = FIERE
i Gross profit E A
el — x 100% BIBER (%) S X 100%
= 154
i Profit attributable to equity holders AR+ B A FE G s A
r'igtr;rno‘zgo) Tumoverq £l X 100% EB AT (%) e x 100%
Current assets (less cash and RBEE (RRE R
Net -~ bank balances) S RITAER)
ratio = :
et curren ! Current liabilities (less cash and s nBBEIRE R
bank balances) RATHTF)
Current assets (less inventories nBEE(RFEE
\ e rat and cash and bank balances) S Be MRITHET)
t ratio :
<t e I Current liabilities (less cash and it nBBEIRE R
bank balances) RATHTF)
Bank borrowings RITEE
Net gearing (less cash and bank balances) SR ITIE CRIR& MERITHETE)
ratio (%) Shareholders’ equity £ % (%) % 3R 4 %

Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

Interest coverage -
Interest paid

Dividends
Profit attributable to equity holders

Dividend

payout (%) 100%

Turnover to net Turnover

bank borrowings Bank borrowings

(less cash and bank balances)

"

MM B - HE -

emene 378 58 BT R
5l s e % 0
e

. e % 100%
EEEER)  BapsAmEET
3 L]
ERTEEL® BOEE

(RESRBFESR)




Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

RIDING THE WAVES, EXCELLING AMID
CHALLENGES

POOLING ELITE, FOCUS ON MAINLAND

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Karrie International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2007.

FRABR - BN

EZRE > MIRPE
BREMRREZT([EEH)g([E5g)R
?&%‘:ﬂ BIERER AR ([AF)]) REMK

AR([EENBE2_ZT+tF=-A=1
—Et%iﬁ

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS FEXEBERES
The Group is principally engaged in SEXENRE

- Metal and Plastic Business: manufacturing and sale
of metal and plastic products including computer
casings, office automation products, moulds, plastic
and metal parts; and

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of laser printers, magnetic
tape drives and other computer peripherals.

Boosting Fundamentals for Braving New Heights

As compared with last year, turnover for the year decreased
by 8% to HK$3,320,030,000 (2005/06: HK$3,592,741,000)
and profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 33%
to HK$124,928,000 (2005/06: HK$186,379,000). The main
reasons for the drop included:

- The substantial growth in turnover for 2005/06 was
exceptional and unexpected, and had enlarged the

- DEBRBERH - HERHEERISR
BREM  BRERIZR WAEX
EEmMm BE BRLEBIHS
&

- EBEFEERIXH — RENIHER
STHTENHE - Wi iR is e R b E B
BEM e

RELES  BESE

El@i_?qti A=+—BIt&E
Fo& X%mEEXFRALETNKSHE
3,320,030,000;‘%71(:;ﬁgﬁ/gfﬁrg :
3,592,741,000/87T) * WERE AEERZF
B T~ %£33%% 124,928,000 T (ZEZH

T NEE - 186,379,000 7T) c EFF TR
BKZETBERREBIE :

- AEBR TR,/ S FEZE
HHBHBH aIER  SIEER

base for comparison for results of the year under B LL R E BIE K
review;
Electronic Total
Metal and Manufacturing annual
Plastic Services percentage
(12 months ended) Business (%) Business (%) Total (%) change
BEFfEX BRI EE
(128 &%) TEBBEK RIXK CE BROLEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
2005/03/31 1,172,806 46 1,390,384 54 2,563,190 100 NA/TE A
2006/03/31 1,431,428 40 2,161,313 60 3,592,741 100 +40%
2007/03/31 1,480,918 45 1,839,112 55 3,320,030 100 -8%

13
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Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

- The unexpected lack lustre performance of the
Group’s major customer going through business
consolidation also affected the Group's turnover;

- Although turnover from other customers saw mild
increases which had helped to partially counter the
impact of decrease in business with the major
customer, without operation leverage, the rise in
production cost in the Pearl River Delta posed
pressure on the Group's profit. Furthermore, the
Group was unable to immediately pass on to the
customers part of the rise in cost as a result of the
appreciation of the RMB, which resulted in a more
drastic drop in profit than that in turnover;

- While Yu Quan Plant has already commenced its
operation, human resources and operational
arrangement need to be adjusted from time to time.
The additional wages, electricity consumption,
transport and logistics, accommodation and local
institutions’ management fee would immediately give
rise to an increase in the operation cost.

KESANEPRERAREE AR
HETEBEH =E<AEEZXRR
HBETHRZ TEZRA :

HAEME P 22 XHG AR MG
R AUBRHBAHEERFRE MK
VR BERZEEERRRE D
WIZAMEERAK LIRS AEEN
MBEAZESD  MEARBHESRR
EEPE  SERENRETFE
DERA - LM THRAEERE X
BMEH

BEERBEZESHBRAEE A
HEEREETENFE NGRS - &£
[—FA=XIWNBERT  BRIE &
B ORB/ERER REEMANG
THEBEEERESHEWEERN
BRI

AL - BMALEREMEER - RF
WIMEL T ZEMANEH OEIE - RS

fra- 2 uvy

Group’s competitiveness. These included: EERBEFEED  BEREHE

However, we were not discouraged, and carried out various
cost control measures during the year to maintain the

14

Integration of the operation and management
systems of offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China
to reduce the internal communication cost;

Increasing the consumption of local power supply
to lower the power generation cost;

Fully operational, the new Yu Quan plant gave us
the platform to improve production and increase
automation, and in turn boost efficiency and save
manpower;

KB BTPAEMERE R =FFE 2 R85
e SERBRANABMER

BRBERBES  BMERTE -
EiR BB

BEFERBERE RPERES
EETHRERAHL  MRTER
EREEAT



Chairman’s Statement EE#HE

- During the year, we explored new procurement
sources and secured agreement with suppliers to
lower prices which had enabled trimming of material
costs.

Your Unswerving Support is our Motivation

Thanks for the support of all parties in the previous year,
we achieved outstanding results. It is such support and
trust in Karrie that had seen us through testing times in
the past year. Our gratitude goes to:

- Our customers, suppliers and banks whose support
had given us the drive and confidence in facing
challenges;

- Our staff for their hard work and dedication amid
concern in the market about the drop in turnover
of the Group. They were not discouraged but
continued to improve their work performance so as
to strengthen the Group's overall efficiency and lay
a strong foundation for development for the Group.
We are confident that with such a dedicated
workforce the Group will advance in strides and
continue to claim leadership in the industry.

| cordially salute and thank again to those who have been
supporting us.

- FARMERBREIRAR EHE
EEKEERZ - UEHEMEHREK
z‘_KO

RAROZEE > ARBENBDHORRE

B EFEESTNMMIFTT - R
B S EAOKE - AFE S B mH 0T ER
BNERREMBI T LER - BHRMAD
BMAENMARIFEAREZNEBRNE
T EF8H%E:

- EP H#ERMRTOE BERE
RPN SH - AT EBE HMED
EMZ R

- FABKRLBNNHOETL - #R
SNAHEBEESEXBARRELARS &
M - {88 TPII0 & At &SR
f2 T 46 48 B AL b 2 B E AR T TAE SR
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THE THREE EQUILIBRIUMS

In the past two years, we have focused on maintaining
“the three equilibriums”, which allowed us to achieve rapid
growth while facing different problems and challenges.
Achieving the “equilibriums” in conflicting circumstances
is a daunting task, but it is also a key to successful
corporate management.

The First Equilibrium: “Risk of Investing” vs “Risk of
Not Investing”

The booming global economy has fuelled the demand of
customers for capacity and support services. In our 2004/05
annual report, we pledged to uphold the “customers come
first” operating principle because we understand that our
survival and growth hinges on whether we have customer
support.

Risk of Not Investing

In today’s knowledge-based society, customers have
become more and more demanding. Failure to make sure
that our projects or investments keep up with such
demands is likely to result in losing customers to the
competitors. Weighing the merits of investment only then
just may not help the Group catch up with the customers.
And, as most of our partners are leading international
corporations which require suppliers to have state-of-the-
art plants and production facilities, we cannot afford to
stand still.

Risk of Investing

Being the helmsman of the Company and having built a
lifetime career in manufacturing, | never underestimate
the risks of over-investment. Increase in operating expenses
will have an impact on the Group’s profit and there is also
no guarantee that turnover of customers will increase
accordingly.
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Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

However, our management team understands that
manufacturing is a business that transcends time requiring
long term efforts to sustain. Thus, instead of pursuing
short term share price surges, we have focused on bringing
long-term benefits to our shareholders and stakeholders
(including customers, suppliers, bankers and employees
etc.).

As the market becomes more sophisticated, customers also
require higher craftsmanship and better presentation for
their products. This means that we need to constantly
upgrade our equipment if we are to meet their
requirements. The management understands that the
Group needs to be well-equipped and keep enhancing its
production capacity if it is to achieve its long-term
objectives.

Despite the conflicting circumstances, our professional
management team worked hard during the year to strike
a balance in investment, for instance:

- Capital expenditure for the year, including the
construction of Phase | and Il of the Yu Quan Plant,
was HK$91,625,000. The bulk of the amount was
spent on extension work in Phase | of the plant and
procurement of new metal stamping, plastic injection
and other machines for supporting long-term
development needs;

- Although we have secured long-term borrowings
from banks, we continued to re-invest profit made
during the year, honoring with prudence the
principle of not relying on borrowings to fund capital
investment.
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Yu Quan Plant FREE

New Yu Quan Plant commenced production HERBEEIERXKE

Located in Fenggang, Dongguan, Guangdong Province, EER-_ZTMFENABAMRFEER
China, with a site area of approximately 240,000 sq.m., EREMEMEBENERKE - HHEED
Yu Quan Plant was acquired by the Group in August 2004. 240,000$77‘%1‘ VERBEFE —HHmER
Phase | of the new plant comprises five buildings, i.e. a %Eiﬁﬁ TG - EFHEETE Bs E8
plastic injection moulding workshop, an electronic assembly BREUIREEY  GHEROAR
lines workshop, a dormitory, a warehouse and a power 34,300$ﬁ>ﬁ< ERZZTEENFTALER
plant, taking up a site area of about 34,300 sq.m. The WE -

plant commenced production in October 2006.

Yu Quan Plant Layout Plan
FRMEEERE
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Our Investment Paid Off!

Since Yu Quan Plant commenced production, our overall
production capacity has increased by 17%. When
investment in 2007/08 completes, the Group’s initial
production capacity will increase by another 15%.

Yu Quan Plant also marked a major step forward of the
Group in production automation. The plant’s plastic
injection line is fully automated and standardization of
moulds for the metal stamping line is the next step. Apart
from lowering manpower required to operate machines,
since these automation endeavors command the use of
better quality moulds, this reduces the workload for
subsequent processing and products of better and more
consistent quality are produced.

With Yu Quan Plant in operation, the Group has created a
cluster of related productions in one area so as to reduce
the logistics management cost.

In the future, we may use the advanced equipment of Yu
Quan Plant to enhance the production capacity for precision
metal or plastic parts and thus help the Group develop
more high value-added products.

Is more investment required to upgrade and repair
equipment?

Many business partners and investors wondered whether
automation means that more investment would have to
be made to update or repair the related equipment. The
answer is “No”. The facilities introduced are of low cost
for the purpose of replacing manual transfer of product
parts. The components of the equipment are inexpensive.
The Group's focus has been on teaching production staff
how to effectively operate the automation systems to
ensure their smooth operation.
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Fortunately, apart from enjoying a strong reputation in
the local community, our “All-Round Training Programmes”
have also been very effective. We will reinvest our saving
from automation in personnel training. We will organize
seminars and training programmes to be conducted by
professionals from different fields to boost the knowledge
and skills of our staff. We believe that employees are the
“most valuable asset” of a successful company, and we
are confident that investment in them will pay off!

With Phase | of Yu Quan Plant in operation, we are
planning for the construction of Phase Il of the plant which
has been started in the fourth quarter of 2006. With the
total construction area of 95,000 sq.m., groundwork for
13,000 sg.m. had been completed and work on another
40,000 sg.m. is in progress. It is expected that groundwork
for the entire Phase Il of the plant will be completed by
the end of 2008.

The Second Equilibrium: Dividend vs Capex and
Working Capital Requirements
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We are pleased to share the fruits of our hard work with
shareholders in the form of dividend distribution. In fact,
the Group has paid in aggregate over HK$552,108,000 in
cash dividend in all since 2000/01, amounting to 99.2%
of shareholders’ fund.

We revised our dividend policy to align with new Capex
cycle (page 18 of 2005/06 annual report: “Risk between
Investing and Not Investing”). With the current economic
environment ridden with uncertainty, the Board believes
that the Group cannot rely solely on bank borrowings to
fund its financial needs but has to maintain greater financial
flexibility to prepare for the next stage of growth.

’ﬁ%%ié:zgg/z—igﬁ
SE 2% 9 ;

%l&“x%ﬁ%ZE%FIEM ﬁm
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REEGFER -

Net Gearing Ratio

Turnover Capex as at 31 March
FERITEEL X
EXE EEEERE BE=A=+—8H

HKS HK$

BT 7T
2001/02 1,156,262,000 15,000,000 -18%
2002/03 1,737,979,000 24,000,000 -9%
2003/04 1,692,960,000 59,000,000 1%
2004/05 2,563,190,000 62,000,000 56%
2005/06 3,592,741,000 92,000,000 21%
2006/07 3,320,030,000 92,000,000 25%

2007/08 N/A 3@ 150,000,000* 70%*

* initial estimation

EACEy

As at 31 May 2007, the unaudited net gearing ratio was
approximately 10%.

With the Group entering into a new investment cycle,
when it announced the 2006/07 first quarter results in
September 2006, the Board proposed to revise the Group’s
dividend policy from not less than 50% of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company (“Old
Policy”) to an amount to be decided by the Board taking
into account profit attributable to equity holders to the
Company, cashflow and capital expenditure requirements
of the Group (“New Policy”). As required, we gave a prior
notice of six months to the shareholders of the change in
September 2006, therefore:
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- The interim dividend for 2006/07 was determined
using the Old Policy of not less than 50% of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company;

- The final dividend for 2006/07 and dividend
distribution thereafter was and will be determined
using the New Policy with the amount to be decided
taking into account profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company, cashflow and capital
expenditure requirements.

However, after the decision was announced in 2006/07
interim results, we have received feedbacks from
shareholders during tea-break with individual investors and
institutional investors stating that while they understand
the reasons for the revision, clearer guidelines regarding
the Group dividend policy are required.

We have always valued the opinions of our shareholders
and investors. Thus, after internal discussion, the Board
decided that the dividend for 2006/07 and thereafter shall
be not less than 30% of profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company.

However, heeding the importance of maintaining financial
stability in the investment period, the Board reserves the
right to change the dividend policy without prior notice.

Dividend

The Directors recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share to shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of members of the Company on 17 August
2007. Together with the interim dividend of HK8.5 cents
per share already paid, total dividend paid for this year
amounted to HK11.5 cents (2005/06: HK25.0 cents) per
share.
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The Third Equilibrium: How to balance the customers’
requirement for additional inventory vs The risk
profile of the Group

It is certainly essential for us to keep inventory at minimum
level. However, to cope with the growth in metal and
plastics business, we need to stock up on raw materials.
Our customers also request that we increase inventory for
just-in-time (“JIT") delivery to ensure their production will
not be interrupted.

As the sole supplier of specific projects of customers, we
have to oblige to their requests to increase inventory.
However, this would mean that we will have to shoulder
greater risk (asset risk, as different from liabilities, on the
balance sheet). However, under our effective inventory
management, the value of our inventory is about
HK$374,974,000 as at 31 March 2007 (that is increased
by HK$35,146,000 or 10% as compared to that of 31
March 2006).

Risk Management

Other than normal operating and financial risks in day-to-
day business operation, there are other circumstances that
require special attention.

Appreciation of the RMB

As the Group's production base is in China, appreciation
of the RMB has impacted the Group’'s performance.
However, investors should note that:

- As the Group uses raw materials (except steel)
supplied by clients or their suppliers (please refer to
the appendix 1 on pages 54-56), the impact of
appreciation of the RMB was mainly limited to the
Group’s operating expenses;
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“Nothing is Impossible” Outward Bound
Programme was sponsored by Ho Cheuk Fai
Foundation with St. Christopher’s Home, which
aimed at faeﬂitq!:.i_;hﬁu-ar_ound development of
children. Through various outward bound
activities like war garmning and adventure o
training, children are cultivated the spirit of =
“Nothing is impossible” and strengthen their
endurance.
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- For 2006/07, RMB payments represented
approximately around 10% of our total cost of sales;

- As most of the Group’s competitors are also based
in China and on the basis that customers will not
change their purchasing practice, in theory, we could
raise price to cover the increase in costs over the
time. As a result of the inherent restrictions of the
industry, customers need strong logistic support. In
particular, there is an increasing demand for JIT
delivery in order for the customers to meet the need
for speedy delivery. On this basis, we believe that
our customers will still choose to produce in China
so as to stay competitive. We are thus confident
that our customers will not change their purchasing
practice drastically in the foreseeable future.

Electricity Supply

During the period, the Group used primarily local power
supply and supply from its own diesel-powered generators.
Although local governments had repeatedly assured that
supply was going to be sufficient to meet demand,
manufacturers were still subject to electricity suspension
this summer. However,

- The Group maintained 100% alternative electricity
supply capability as a safeguard to smooth
production;

- Though the cost of generating alternative power is
much more expensive, the overall impact on the
Group's performance is immaterial as electricity
charges only constitutes about 2% of the total cost
of sales of the Group.

The average price of diesel increased approximately 16%
when compared with 2005/06. The Group, however,
substantially increased the use of the cheaper local power
supply during the year. The price of diesel also started to
drop in October 2006.
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Generally speaking, the average unit cost of electricity
decreased slightly when compared with 2005/06. However,
the increased overall utilization and the commencement
of operation of Phase | of the new Yu Quan Plant had
pushed up overall electricity expense of the Group by 7.5%.

Steel Price

Although the Group’s unique business model can shield it
from general fluctuation of raw material prices, it is not
protected from steel price fluctuation. After the substantial
surge in steel price in the past two years, the surge during
the year under review had been relatively mild at about
2%. However, steel price is expected to continue to climb
in the first quarter of 2007/08 and hence this will have a
slightly negative impact on the Group. However,

- Since 2003/04, we have increased steel material
inventory which will give us sufficient time to
negotiate with customers for compensating us for
the rise should there be a sudden price surge. While
there is no guarantee that the customer would
eventually accept any price increase, it is common
knowledge that steel price increase is an industry
issue instead of a problem unique to the Group;
and

- Cost of steel represented less than 5% of the
Group's total cost of sales.

Labour

The labour supply affects the Group in two respects:
availability and cost

1. Regarding availability, we have not experienced any
serious shortage and staff turnover was slightly
improved during the year as compared with previous
year. Standard recruitment and employment of
temporary additional workers was sufficient to tackle
sudden surge in orders. Efforts to attract additional
labour during peak production seasons had also been
effective.
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There have been certain positive changes in the mMESFRANLTIHHHET —L£RIE
labour market in China during the year which H®EL  SHEZRNBREIK
alleviated labour shortage. These changes include: = BE:

- Notable increase in labour supply in early 2007 - BIHER-ZEZTLFY B
and after the Chinese New Year. We were BirERAERBENNRE - B
able to hire sufficient workers; MEREIZHIA

- Notable increase in female workers which - RIWMEEERBEZEAIGM -
brought the proportion of male and female STIMBE LT ALLBIRE o

workers closer in the workforce.

2. Rising labour cost is expected to pose serious impact 2. BIRALRBEHSEERREERX
on our future performance. Minimum wages in BERRAEE  BAKEKIER=
China had been raised by 20% since 1 September TERFNA—HLEFH20% - BEIK
2006 and correspondingly our labour cost reported 8 TR AR TMAEE SR 1T & 8 715
a double digit surge. Measures taken by the Group k- SBAKELTHENEE &8
in combat included: R
- Through automation of production to reduce - BEAEERIEZEGHL B
demand for labour; and THAFHER K

- Recruited temporary staff to meet requirement — FRBECHERTIEMNEE
during peak production seasons to cut down SERNEE - NEEEER
ancillary staff cost. ENA e

The increase in labour cost represented approximately 1% MERNS TR ERMAEROFZELE

of our total cost of sales for the year. HIHERARLKI1% °

Middle Management HEEEAR

Since the Group is in the business of rendering engineering HREERNERSEUNIRENERRG A

and related services, we need a good supply of engineers, F O BRMTEEFZHIREM KEE W

procurement officers, marketing executives, production and BEF HERHEMAZTEEZABUSE

other management personnel to ensure our service RYUEPRBEEBHNKE - BEENATE
standards. However, labour shortage and intense BREAA TSRS HZ - BROEREFRE
competition in the labour market have made it difficult for EBABRITBETNE -

us to recruit middle management personnel.
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“All-round Training Programmes” fo or and
management could foster the Group's long term
those programmes included time and stress
management by objectives and coaching.

B [2HUAT RIS AP EREEABSIABGR
B BEEE - CENARTZ AEEEERRAEEANES



30

.Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

R BB P AR A

Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

We thus rely on our own “All-Round Training Programmes”
and improved benefits and working conditions to nurture,
recruit and retain staff and encourage performance among
them (for details please refer to the Employment and
Remuneration Policy section on page 45).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Metal and Plastic Business

As the demand for server casings rose continuously and
partially offset the decline in EMS business, turnover of
the segment increased by around 3% to HK$1,480,918,000
(2005/06: HK$1,431,428,000). With more orders secured
from the customers during the year, the segment
contributed a larger proportion, at 45%, to the Group’s
total turnover (2005/06: 40%). Boasting a relatively higher
gross profit margin, metal and plastic business continued
to be the principal source of profit for the Group.

EMS Business

As a result of a major customer restructuring its business
and strategic repositioning, shipment of laser printers by
the segment declined and accordingly its turnover dropped
by around 15% to HK$1,839,112,000 (2005/06:
HK$2,161,313,000). Fortunately, orders from other
customers had moderate growth and partially offset the
effect of the shrunk laser printer shipment. As EMS business
has a relatively narrow gross margin, though it accounted
for 55% of the group total turnover (2005/06: 60%), it
brought only a small profit contribution of about 7%
(2005/06: 24%).
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Geographical Distribution

The Group does not rely on one single market but ships to
diverse markets. During the year, Asia (except Japan)
contributed HK$1,114,428,000 in turnover (2005/06:
HK$1,494,003,000). Turnover from Western Europe
amounted to HK$1,170,719,000 (2005/06:
HK$1,255,390,000) and turnover from direct shipment to
North America was only HK$477,525,000 (2005/06:
HK$600,095,000).

PROSPECTS

Although the challenges we met during the year led to a
slight setback in our results, the overall turnover and gross
profit margin were still maintained at reasonable levels.
We expect the problem and challenges that we
encountered during the year (Please refer to Risk Factor
on page 24) to continue in 2007/08. Accordingly, we made
the following forecast:

1. With the uncertainties in economy, the Group holds
a conservative view on its outlook. It believes that
its 2007/08 turnover would be at the same level as
this year’'s and growth, if achieved, would only be
in mid single digit;

2. We expect the ratio of turnover contribution from
the Metal and Plastic Business and EMS business to
maintain at about 40:60;

3. With Phase | of the new Yu Quan Plant in operation,
we can use the advanced machinery to enhance the
Group's capability in producing sophisticated metal
or plastic component products which will benefit
the Group in developing high value added products
in the long run. The Board is still optimistic about
the long term prospect of the Group;

i 35 2 #F

EB—MERZTEANEESR T8
KB —ig - DMHE (BARBRIN 15
EEEE 114,428,0008 T (ZEE R EN
FJE 1 1,494,003,000/87T)  FORENTH 5 All&%
51,170,719,0008 Tt (=TT H TN F
€ :+1,255,390,000/87T) * MEEMNEZRI
FEME & X% RI1h477,525,0008 T (= F
TR/ TNEE 600,095,000/ ) °

RE

HARNFEEEBI O RE - EWEE
RABUEEE  BERLBEZXRL
ENMRPARAEFEENKF - RE-FT
+/BNFE  BMERAFEMED N
BMEMAEDAFE (2HE - tOERR
AZE) - B RAPMEL T AT RIER

1. ZRIAKETHAPRE  BAIEER
REOBSBLERTREE AR -F
T/ EN\FEZEEBERFTIE
HEEASIR & - Eat AP B 2 E

&

2. TFEHLSBBERHHESTERAIE
B Z L BIR ) #EFE7040 = 60

3. HARHERBEF —HMELEARE -
AR R B MR - BT SE
BEREhesNERBABmr R IEsE
N HEEREAASEEERESR
B AtEFEEREBREMNS
HREEE

31



32

.Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

R BB P AR A

Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

The capex budget for 2007/08 is approximately
HK$150,000,000 (2006/07 actual: HK$91,625,000),
which will mainly be used on the construction of
Phase Il of Yu Quan Plant, purchase of large scale
machineries for metal product manufacturing and
automation, and moulds and prototypes
manufacturing machineries, etc. With the Yu Quan
Plant in operation, the Group now has all its
production operations clustered in an area, meaning
that it can trim logistic management cost. In
addition, heeding the relatively higher gross profit
margins of metal and plastic products, the Group
sees increasing production capacity for these
products as an effective way to improve profitability;

The Group has planned to set up a component
manufacturing facility in the eastern China to serve
the needs of customers based in the region.
However, as new terms have been added to the
cooperative plan, production may not be able to
commence before the end of 2007. The goal of
setting up a plant in the eastern China as soon as
possible remains our first priority;

The unaudited turnover of the Group for the two
months ended 31 May 2007 was HK$463,000,000
(2006/07: HK$455,600,000). As the unaudited
turnover for those two months may not represent
the performance of the Group for year ended 31
March 2008, investors and shareholders are advised
to exercise extreme caution in dealing in the shares
of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Robust Cash Generating Ability

With the start of the new Capex cycle, we have taken a
group-wide effort to improve the cash cycle. The result is
maintaining a net cash inflow from operating activities of
HK$154,664,000 as compared to last year's net cash inflow
of HK$287,236,000 despite a 8% decrease in turnover.
Net Gearing Ratio and Net Bank Borrowings are slightly
increased to 25% and HK$141,297,000 respectively (31
March 2006: 21% and HK$111,576,000).

Additional Bank Borrowings

The Group has adequate financial flexibility backed by long
term banking facilities secured. Our bankers have been
very supportive. Hang Seng Bank, HSBC and Standard
Chartered Bank have each provided the Group with a five-
year HK$50,000,000 installment loan facility, amounting
to a total of HK$150,000,000. The Group had not drawn
on these installment loan facilities as at 30 June 2007.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS TO
SHAREHOLDERS’' FUND RATIO STAYING
BELOW 1

The Non-current assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio stayed
at a healthy 57% (2005/06: 53%). This means that the
Group is using long term shareholders fund to finance
non-current assets like plants and machinery. The sole
purpose of the existing bank borrowings is the financing
of working capital (or more specifically, the accounts
receivables).

The Group’s business suffered a minor setback this year.
In theory, the decrease in working capital requirements
would reduce the bank borrowings requirements, assuming
no deterioration in current assets quality. The inherent
beauty of this self-adjusting mechanism of our business
model is one of the key pillars of our confidence in the
future of the Group.
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Financing for Growth

For 2007/08, the financing task will be much more difficult
than the last financial year because

- The Capex expenditure is higher than the last
financial year (HK$150,000,000 budgeted for
2007/08 vs actual HK$91,625,000 for 2006/07);
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Environmental Protection is also one of the main duties for 5
entrepreneur and citizenship. “Tree Plantation Day” at Kadorrie 4
Farm & Botanic Garden has been held for three consecutive years, (=
which became one of the gathering activities for staff and their
families. All these photos were extracted from the Photography

Competition are really great, don’t you agree? . .
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- The projected mid single digit growth in turnover, if
achieved, as compared with that of 8% decrease in
the last financial year means that working capital
requirement increases again.

As such, we expect the net gearing ratio will stay at a
level about 70%. We are also following our house rule of
using our profit after tax to finance “capital items” like:

i BB i BE XS TE RN Ay P BB (L B T 3
B HBEFEZ8% NKE » RR
EBESBERBAREF -

B BMEFROEELEHERSR
#70% 2 KF - RIRFIREREREE ZRE
UBRBZERNZFEAEAINESS
C:N

- Dividend - A B
- Capex - BEEEERE
Financing Capex by Profit
LaFERBEEEERECZCESRR
HK$ million BBATL 99/00  00/01  01/02 02/03 03/04  04/05 05/06 06/07
Profit After Tax BRE& RN 20 26 78 120 90 147 186 125
Depreciation and WEREHE
amortisation 32 39 34 32 34 38 50 54
52 65 112 152 124 185 236 179
Less: BE
CAPEX ATEERE 57 65 15 24 59 62 92 92
Dividend & 16 42 113* 92% 82 86 103* 47
(Deficit )/Surplus (BR) /Bt (21) (42) (16) 36 (17) 37 41 40
(Net Bank Borrowings)/  (FETHEE),/
Net Cash FHe (23) (51) 64 34 (6) (234) (112) (141)
(Net Gearing Ratio)/ (FRITEELER)
Net Cash Ratio S ERE R 7%)  (16%) 18% 9% 1%)  (56%) (21%) (25%)

* Including special dividend & & % Bl % &

As a prudent manufacturer, we never entertain the idea
of borrowing money to finance Capex, as this would expose
the Group to danger should the economy take a sudden
turn.

However, from the experience of previous years, even with
a higher turnover growth rate, a vigorous working capital
management program would alleviate the burden on cash
flow resulted from financing receivables and inventories.
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Resources Available

The Directors are confident that with the cash holdings of
HK$267,280,000 and banking facilities of
HK$1,621,000,000, the Group is able to meet its current
operational and capital expenditure requirements.

- As at 31 March 2007, part of the Group’s banking
facilities were secured by mortgages over certain of
the Group’s land and buildings in mainland China
with a net book value of approximately
HK$4,429,000 (2005/06: HK$7,204,000).

Exchange Rate Exposure

All of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar or RMB. As
the exchange rates of these three currencies were relatively
stable during the year, the Group was not exposed to
material exchange risk. The Group maintains a surplus of
assets over liabilities in RMB.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

10th Listing Anniversary

We celebrated the Group’s 25th anniversary last year and
this year 2006/07 is the 10th anniversary of the Group's
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. We
had many ups and downs in the past decade, with the
Asian Financial Crisis hitting the year after we became
listed. We were not discouraged, but worked much harder
instead. Our turnover for the year was HK$3,320,030,000
against HK$618,614,000 in 1997/98.
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In the past ten years, the Group has strived to improve

operational transparency through measures such as
voluntary announcement of quarterly results and leading
the peck in hosting “Tea-Break with Individual Investors”.
We understand that we have much to do yet to become
perfect, but we have taken an important step in the right
direction.

Winner of 2006 “Grand Prix for Best Overall Investor
Relations in Hong Kong”

Although the investment community generally held a
relatively negative impression of small industrial companies
and the Group’s performance declined during the year,
the Group was voted by institutional investors and analysts
as winner of the “Grand Prix for the Best Overall Investor
Relations in Hong Kong — Small/Mid Cap” organized by
“IR Magazine”. The Group was the first runner up in 2005
in the same award.
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2006 HKMA Best Annual Report Award

In addition to the various awards including those from
Asiamoney magazine and IR Magazine won by the Group
in the past few years (Please refer to page 26 and 27 of
2005/06 annual report), the Group’s 2005/06 annual report
received “Honorable Mentions” in 2006 Best Annual Report
Award organized by the Hong Kong Management
Association. Karrie was the smallest in terms of market
capitalization among the winners of the Award, most of
which were major blue chip companies. The Group
considers this to be a true honor.
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Rebirth: March Toward Excellence
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A Thousand-Mile Journey Starts
with A First Step
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The Directors believe that the Group’s annual reports and
other corporate literatures and the Company’s website are
vital platforms for information exchange between the
Group and its shareholders and stakeholders. Thus, we
use graphs, simple language and photos to aid
communication. We are delighted that these efforts earned
external recognition.

We Promise We Deliver
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2005/06
Heartfelt Dedication In All Details
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“Tea-Break with Individual Investors”

The Group is pioneer in the industry in organising “Tea-
Break with Individual Investors” and so far ten such “tea-
break” have taken place. When we first began to meet
guarterly with individual investors, our aim was to give
investors a new and unique channel to directly
communicate with the Group. Since then different
organisations have started to hold free seminars for
investors, but our investors are still willing to pay HK$50
for admission to attend our “tea-break” with the Group's
management. However, as investors become more familiar
with the Group’s business and general investor interest in
small industrial stocks declines, attendance of the

gatherings has been dropping. After careful discussion,

- we decided that the platform is still of value in
facilitating communication and exchange of
information between the Group and investors and
shareholders, and hence should be kept;

“tea-break”

- however, will only be arranged

following interim results and final results

announcements and quarterly “tea-break” has been
cancelled.
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The 11th “tea-break” will be held on 20 July 2007 from 7
to 9pm at Crystal Room IV, 3/F, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wah
Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories. As part of the Group’s
social responsibility effort, participants will be asked to
donate HK$50 to charity to be matched in donation by
the Group (total not exceeding HK$10,000). For those who
donate HK$100 or more, we will request the relevant
charity to issue a receipt to the donor for tax deduction
purpose.

Investors interested in knowing more about the function
can visit our website www.karrie.com.hk for more
information. The application form for attending the
function can be downloaded from our website or obtained
by calling 2411-1142 during office hour. Prior registration
is necessary for admission to the function.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Community Interest

As a responsible corporate citizen, we have actively
participated in corporate social responsibility promotion.
In May 2005, our employees formed a new volunteer team
to support activities that will benefit the elderly, children
and educational causes.

Moreover, the Group was awarded the “2005/07 Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services in February 2007. The Group is very happy that
its determination to honour its role as a good corporate
citizen is endorsed by the community.
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society and our focus is mainly on the elde il d
education. We have been awarded with-“Caring Company’
logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the seco

consecutive year.
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Joint Project — “Nothing Is Impossible” Outward Bound
Programme

The Programme was a joint project between the Group
and St. Christopher’s Home. The Programme comprised
two levels, one for secondary school students and the
other for primary school students, the aim of which was
to nurture a “nothing is impossible” spirit in youngsters
through activities including war-game training and
adventure training, helping them to develop tenacity and
determination in overcoming adversities. The activities also
helped the children realise their potential and enhance
their understanding of the self and on how to build
interpersonal relationships. Apart from funding the
activities, the Group also encouraged employees to take
part in them.

Donation

We made donations to the Evangelical Lutheran Church of
Hong Kong to support a one-year medical check-up
programme for 10 elderly CSSA recipients, who could not
afford the cost of body-check up, and sponsor various
festival celebration activities for the elderly. We also
donated moon cakes to the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
Tai Wo Neighbourhood Elderly Centre and visited some
elderly during the festival. In China, we donated schoolbags
and various stationery to the Dongguan Children Welfare
Federation and sent representatives to relay our regards.

Education

We made donations to the Faculty of Industrial and System
Engineering of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University to
support their academic researches and provide scholarships
in the hope of helping to train more talents for the industry.
We also cooperated with universities to provide
opportunities for students to use the Group as the subject
of their graduation dissertation. Plant visits were arranged
during school summer holiday for students. In China, we
funded the construction of Feng Gang Hua Qiu Secondary
School, contributing to the education in the country.
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Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group had
approximately 7,600 employees. With a good reputation
in the local community, the Group did not encounter major
difficulties in recruiting employees it needed.

Employee remuneration packages are decided in accordance
with prevailing market standards and the employee’s
performance and experience. The Group will also consider
its own business performance and based on the appraisal
and reward system in place to decide on award of bonuses
to employees with outstanding performance. Other
employee benefits include medical insurance, “Cooperative
Home & Car Ownership Scheme” and mandatory provident
fund. In view of the improvement in economic environment
and 2005/06 outstanding results, besides payment of
regular performance bonus, the Chairman of the Group
has executed his discretionary authority in paying a fixed
amount of extra bonus to all employees regardless of their
positions. The Group’s willingness in sharing its wealth
with all staff was undoubtedly welcomed from bottom to
top management, this move has boost up the staff morale.

Rewards for Performance

The standard 13th month pay was abolished in 2002 and
replaced by a performance based bonus system and
performance assessment. Employees with superior
performance will receive bonus higher that what they
would have received before the new system was
introduced.

In addition, the Group adopted two share option schemes
in 1996 and 2002 respectively. As at 31 March 2007, a
total of 113 employees were granted share options
(2005/06: 123 employees), and approximately
HK$3,328,000 (2005/06: HK$7,311,000) was charged to
the income statement. No share options were granted in
the period under review.
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“All-Round Training Programme”

The Group places much emphasis in personnel training
and development. To match with the Company’s mid-to-
long-term development and needs, we have been nurturing
a more capable workforce by providing employees with a
strategic, forward looking and integrated "All-Round
Training Programme”. The programme has enabled us to
maintain competitiveness and combat competition for

talents in the labour market.
1. Senior Management

Although the external environment is beyond our
control, we have full control over our fundamentals
including strengthening the quality of the
management and governance capability. We can
enhance internal governance by providing training
to improve senior managers’ soft skills.

During the year, the Group introduced a series of
advanced leadership training programmes to arm
senior managers with various skills such as time and
stress management, management by objectives and
coaching, etc., that they may help build efficient
teams to foster development of the Group.

2. Middle and Floor Level Management

“Graduates training programme” — Introduced for
some years in an expanded scale during the year.
The first batch of trainees has started working,

marking a good progress of the Group’s effort to
nurture talents with integrated skills for its business;

“Internal back-up personnel training programme” —
By internal recruitment and providing staff training,
the Group can save recruitment cost as well as
develop an internal talent pool and create room for
development for its staff;
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Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

“0On-the-job staff training programme” — The Group
will send staff members to attend different
professional skills training so that they can enhance
their technical and management skills by
appreciating and learning the techniques and
management skills used by others; and

“Mentor programme for the elite” — The Chairman
and senior managers will mentor middle
management with potential to groom them into

future leaders of the Group.
3. Frontline Employees

- The Group will continue to provide more pre-
job training to frontline employees facilitate
their thorough grasping of different
professional techniques;

- Video-taping complex skills and operations to
hasten learning and mastering of them by new
employees.

Looking forward, we will continue to provide management
training, introduce new management ideas, teach our
managers different modes of thinking and equip them with
tools to help them make decisions and solve problems and
stimulate creativity. Furthermore, we will focus on boosting
the technical standards of the Group’s core business by
providing professional training, and strengthening project
and new products introduction management training to
create a world-class professional engineering team for the
Group. In the future, to encourage employees to improve
their capabilities, the Group will include the time spent by
an employee on training programmes into his performance
appraisal. The aim of the move is to instill in employees
the drive to learn and keep the quality of employees abreast
of the standard from time to time.
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We Care about Our Employees

Heeding the shortage of mid-level management personnel
in the labour market, the Group has adopted a gentle
approach in personnel management and created a
harmonious work environment conducive to enhancing
productivity.

Staff Participation

To encourage communication between employees and their
families and promote harmonious family relationship, we
will invite our employees and their families to take part in
activities including tree-planting, visits and walk for a
million. In China, staff members participated in a number
of tree-planting and cleaning activities during the year
helping to protect the environment and foster public
hygiene.

Efforts to improve staff welfare and working conditions
included:

"Alternate Saturday Working Policy” — Following the
introduction of one Saturday-off once a month policy in
Hong Kong on 1 April 2006, we implemented Alternate
Saturday Working Policy on 1 May 2007 to support
promotion of “Work Life Balance” that can keep employees
efficient at work and also allow them to lead a fuller
personal life;

"Cooperative Home & Car Ownership Scheme” - To
encourage and finance potential elite in buying a home
and car as a means to retain talents who may otherwise
be lost in the competitive labour market;

“Karrie Club”
activities, the “Karrie Club”, which was set up during the

— In addition to leisure, sports and cultural

year, gives staff members a venue to relax and socialize. It
serves the purposes of enriching employees’ time after
work and increasing their sense of belonging to the Group;
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Our staff is our most valuable asset. We adopted a gentle
approach in creating harmonious environment and keep “work _
life balance”.
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“Committee on the Concerns for the Next Generation” —
Regular informal discussions are held with new employees
to find out how they are fitting in with the new
environment and problems they have encountered at work.
Assistance and counseling will be given to employees to
help them solve their problems and hasten adaptation to
the work environment.

“Project Smile”

To create a more relaxed and harmonious work
environment and encourage openness and optimism in
facing difficulties and stress, a “Project Smile Action Team”
comprising university students undertaking internship at
the Company organised a host of activities for staff. Special
games and activities were presented in August as “Smiley
Month” including a “Guess who is smiling” game and the
“Who has the biggest smile” election, etc. Apart from
bringing smile to the faces of employees, the activities
also allowed co-workers to interact and get to know each
other better.

The Group sees its employees as its most precious asset.
We should have the right person for the right job so that
each employee may realize the best and contribute to the
long-term benefit of our shareholders.

Riding the Waves, Excelling amid Challenges, Pooling
elite, Focus on mainland

As the global economy continues to improve and corporate
users are ready to invest with ample capital in replacing
out-dated information technology systems and equipment,
the Group is looking at abundant business opportunities
and bright prospects. However, from the production
perspective, without adequate time to achieve the
production capacity needed, it would be very difficult for
the Group to increase its turnover substantially.
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“Project Smile” is an innovating project initiated by a group of summer

trainee. The project has proven to be a success in creating a fresh and

relaxing working atmosphere to our staff, most importantly improve the e
understanding between departments. e

[BETH] DR-HEREBLEINZENASEERE  ETHRHBRKE
BTRABET - EFHEBARRNTHFRE  EERRMATHMZENT#E -



52

.Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

R BB P AR A

Chairman’s Statement EE#H &

Therefore, we decide to fortify both our “Hardware” and
“Software” by continuing capital investment and
investment in human resources with the Group’s long term
development needs in mind. Although problems such as
rise in raw material costs, appreciation of the RMB, rise in
interest rate and insufficient middle management personnel
still burden us, we will not be frightened but will remain

determined in marching towards our goals.

In addition, as our business is led by our production
operations in Mainland China and with Mainland China’s
position as the “World’s Factory” further strengthened,
we will focus on our plants in the Mainland China which
will become our dominant and core operations. We are
now gradually strengthening and integrating the production
techniques, operations and management culture between
the plant in the Mainland China and Hong Kong office.
We will also accelerate localization of the workforce. We
believe that these moves will allow the Group to achieve a
better operational efficiency and in turn bring the most
lucrative returns to the Group in the long run.

As the old Chinese saying goes “A journey of a thousand
miles starts with the first step” (main theme of the
2004/05 Annual Report), it is the firm belief of the
management that with “Heartfelt dedication in all details”
(main theme of 2005/06 Annual Report), the Group will
be able to accumulate and learn from experience and forge
a strong foundation. Working in unity is the winning
formula for achieving the best long term benefit of the
Group. Although we may encounter setbacks from time to
time like we had before (decrease in annual profit in 1997/98
and 2003/04), our confidence and fervour will not be
swayed.
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The main theme for this annual report is “Riding the
Waves”. The Group has gone through testing times in the
past 26 years presented with challenges and hurdles.
However, with a solid foundation, a united staff and
focused efforts, we have been able to overcome different
adversities. The Group is ready to march on and pave the
way for a more prosperous future. The Group and all its
staff holdfast to the principle “Nothing is impossible” and
are confident of riding the waves to reach new heights.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and all those who have given the Group
invaluable support, and also my fellow Directors, managers
and all staff for their considerable contribution to the
Group.

I would also like to specially thank executive director and
deputy chairman and chief operational officer Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming for his tremendous contribution to the Group
throughout the years, who took up the position as a non-
executive director starting 1 June 2007 because of health
reasons. Mr. Ho was also appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee. | also wish to thank Mr. Alfred Chow
Kwok Hung, who has resigned from the position of Chief
Financial Officer from 26 June 2007. His contribution to
the Group's outstanding financial management and
strategy, corporate governance and investor relations in
the past 9 years has made a remarkable and fruitful
accreditations.
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APPENDIX 1 Bt 45 —

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model REREXz2RE

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified BREH (RFEARBEZER

and generalized for easy TllzBRUABEREARE)

understanding)

1. Quotation Phase . 1. REBR

- 12 to 15 months prior to Quotation — ARPHE—Em2EE -

shipment, Customer A sends %;?‘;2& RAITERIAI12E 1518 A 1)
out Request for Quotation (RFQ) = FrE&EBEER]ZEkF
for a project to all “qualified B PEEEAENRA -

Around 2 months

suppliers”. #2/@8
2. Project Confirmation Phase 2. BERE
- Customer A confirms the Project — ARFPHERAKBEHERER
placement of the project to us;  Confirmation RTEEEE
- Customer A also provides Phase — BMEIZEMKRKISE
shipment forecast for the next RERE 2418 A &9 fg%fﬁ Al IR
18 to 24 months, which is the e RERSHER -
normal life cycle of a project. Around 3 months
#3f8A
3. Moulds and Prototype Making 3. BARERER
Phase
- According to Customer A’s Moulds & — SEERBAR P TIRENS
specification, we start to Prototype BERETRITIE I
perform the design works, make ~ Making Phase SEEERAREH
the moulds and prototype; HARIERER
— This process would take around — IR ERE 12
6 to 12 months; A
— Customer A would also work — AP EREMMELE
with our purchasing department TEM - EEBEFRE
on electronics components and Around 6 months R ER RAEEEE
the list of qualified suppliers for 618 A Fr o
such components.
4. Shipment Phase 4. FERER
— Customer A finalizes and revises — AR P& B E] T & A
the final shipment schedule; ) =
— We start manufacturing and Shipment Phase - TRAEERBKMNEZR
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT) NERR rEﬂ KRNE|IZSPEER
inventory warehouses. Ao
Around 4 months
5. Sales Recognition and Payment #H4@EA 5. tHEBRRARKE
— Customer A takes goods from — AR PREBIE & RATH
JIT warehouses; Sal.e<_.i EESIEIK G
- We get paid after the normal Re;c;gr;:t;::& — B RBMA Eﬁiiﬁ,%%??fﬁ<—
;;?(:)l.t period (generally 60 o & B60K) 193
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the
confirmed project and the related engineering works have
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report,
page 26).
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APPENDIX 1 (Cont'd)

Special Characteristics of Our Business Model (Cont’d)

Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year from
initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods. A
project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24 months.

2. We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the just-in-
time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, Electronic Data
Interexchange (EDI) or a combination of the above
methods.

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular project
and therefore have the obligation to ship goods to
customers even if the sales volume is much higher
than the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the electronic components
are either sourced through the customers or their
designated suppliers.

5. While the metal and plastic enclosures business is an
integral part of the computer and computer peripheral
sector, the industry thrives only in Taiwan but not in
Hong Kong.

6. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled in
China while the final products shipped to Asia or
Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market is by
shipment destination rather than country of origin of
the customers.
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APPENDIX 2

Corporate Governance

1. Establishment of an Executive Committee to improve
decision-making efficiency. The day-to-day operations
of the Group are now in the hands of a group of

professional managers;

2. Efforts to improve transparency

— disclosing in annual report detailed explanation
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind;
— meeting with individual shareholders periodically

through a new “tea-break” program.

3. Clearly defined dividend policy of payment of 30%*

or more of the profit attributable to shareholders;

4. Clearly defined ROE objective of 20%;

5. Clearly defined future turnover targets;

6. Announcing quarterly results;

7. Increasing the number of audit committee meetings

to 4 times a year,

8. Encouraging executive directors to hold at least

500,000 shares of the Group;

9. Willingness to share wealth created with all
shareholders through dividend. Since 2000/01, the
aggregated amount of the Group’s dividends paid/
payable is around HK$564,477,000 or around 101%

of the shareholders’ fund.

*Remarks: Because of the importance of maintaining financial
stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline

without prior notice.
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APPENDIX 3 Mg =

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERBREBX :
An unbroken 10 years record of dividend payment
105 LA R B 14 < [ B
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend

SEREEREBRERRREMEERI0%H U LAEIRKS

All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

THERKEZREZUEBUFE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim  Final Subtotal Special Special  Subtotal  Total Payout Ratio
8 A RIRE RE
E KH Mt BHRE  RARE Mt AF i dod
(Excluding)* (Including)*
(FEREER)* (BREER)*
1997/98 Nil % 1.00 1.00 Nil & Nil #& Nil £ 1.00 13% N/A T iE R
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil & Nil & Nil & 4.00 58% N/A 1 iE A
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil & Nil & Nil & 4.40 77% N/A 1 iE A
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil % 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 590  10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10  30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil % 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00  20.00 Nil #& Nil & Nil &  20.00 87% N/A 1 iE A
2004/05 850 1250  21.00 Nil & Nil & Nil &  21.00 58% N/A 1 iE A
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil % 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil & Nil & Nil &  11.50 38% N/A 1 iE A
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend #Including special dividend
Hit AR R IR B B 18 I Bl AR S
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4 8 g

Inventory & Debtor Turnover

7 E K FE Wik B E

No. of days H &k
100

——A—— Inventory Turnover 77 &A% Hf

-—— - -

Debtor Turnover & Ui b i/ 42 Hf

90

80

70 |-

60

50 -

40

30 1 1 1 1
98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02

(no. of days) (B #1)  98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02

03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07

02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07

Inventory Turnover

FEESEH 55 96 67
Debtor Turnover
JiE 15 R 4 95 R 57 52 65

39 42 72 39 45

56 63 80 61 67

Inventory turnover (Base on year end stock value/Cost of Sales) x 365 days

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Turnover) x 365 days

FEBEH (AFREFEE/HEKK)x 3650
& i R I 8 R (LA SR 42 B URR % 2 %8) x 365 H

Inventory Turnover Days 17 & B & i

(no. of days) (H &) 05/06 06/07 Change #i&
Raw Material R #} 18 23 +5
WIP 3 % 6 5 -1
Finished Goods 345X & 15 17 +2
Total & &t 39 45 +6

59



60

Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

R BB P AR A

Chairman’s Statement EE#HE

APPENDIX 5 Bt 8% F
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
ENREAFNEESE
(%) ) ,
30 —A— Gross Profit Margin EF2& (%)
- - Net Profit Margin 4EF & (%)
25
20 |
15 +
10 +
0O----0
5 - O ---0- ,’/ ~~D-—_-D_——-D~‘~—
— - -D/ m]
0 L 1 L 1 L 1 L 1 L |
97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07
(%) 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07
Gross Profit Margin 23.3 20.7 24.8 17.0 19.4 15.0 13.7 12.4 10.7 9.1
EF®
Net Profit Margin 4.5 4.3 3.1 2.9 6.8 6.9 5.3 5.7 5.2 3.8
)
HK$(million) (& & & T)
Turnover/Revenue 619 592 662 893 1,156 1,738 1,693 2,563 3,597* 3,328*
EEE WA
Profit attributable to
Shareholders 28 25 21 26 78 120 90 147 186 125
% B A5 8
* Revenue = Turnover + Other gains
I @N = HEE+ Hilks
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APPENDIX 6

FAQ

BUSINESS

1.

What is so special about Karrie's business model?

- Normally we deal with projects, which can
take one year from initial project confirmation,
development and engineering works to final
shipment of goods. A project shipment cycle
can run for 18 to 24 months.

- Usually we are the only vendor for a particular
project confirmed. Combined with the 18 to
24 months shipment cycle, we are bestowed
with relatively long-term business visibility.
(2004/05 Annual Report, page 60)

Would rising cost of raw material affect the
performance of the Group?

Under the Group's versatile ‘Total Transparent Cost
Plus Pricing Mechanism’ most of the raw materials
other than electro-galvanized steel plates are sourced
through the customers or though suppliers
designated by the customers. A rise in raw material
price (other than steel) has only a marginal impact
on the bottom line. (2004/05 Annual Report, page
18)

Experts say RMB is going to appreciate more in the
coming two years. What is the impact on the Group?

- RMB payments represents about 10% of the
total cost of sales

- As most of our competitors are also based in
China and on the basis that customers stick
to their present purchasing practice, in theory
we could raise price to cover the increase in
cost over the time.

To whom do Karrie sell its products?
Our products, including computer server casings,

laser printers, magnetic tape drive, are mainly sold
to multi-national customers.

B 8% <
HRME

ES S

1.

BEMzREEABMAER ?

- HMEERNEE—REAE
BEET  mEEEREH
o TRERETEEN - = m

& BEERES/FH—F
MEBAGZBEHATNEZ
THER -

- BERMFEENEEHEER
%A B HME— (R - i E— AR
EmzsnBHRATNE=+N
@A AmEMAHETRREE
HBRKOREN - (ZZTEM
SERFEFRENTH)

RERANG ERe R EBHRR
BREE?

RIFEEZE [ 2B AR NN B
HEBRA] - BREEIN - KERO R
RmEPAEREBNARHATF,E
ERERE ARG - S RAHER (3
FERIN EHAR W RE S RERE
2 (CZTW /THFEFEET
NE)

BERBELRERFARBDASH
BItHE EYHREAERPE?

- FRAARBHENABGEERR
HEKARA10% °

- HREEARBDIBEFHFZ
FEEMTERNTE - 2w L
EEms  EREPINERR
BAZRBEAR T ERE
HBEAR#BE —HATFEKX
B - DA BT RY

EARBINERBEEHREH ?

TP RENE DB E KR RS
AR EETITENM - BIGARIEHRE - K
MOARTET LBEERENZNT
ﬁl o
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CAPEX, DIVIDEND AND FINANCE

5.

Are you worried about a high level of bank
borrowings?

- The Group's shareholders fund is much higher
than the non-current assets meaning that the
Group is financing its non-current assets
through stable shareholders’ fund rather than
bank borrowings;

- Any increase in net bank borrowings could
therefore be attributed to the increased
working capital requirement due to an
increase in turnover. This is a positive news
but not the otherwise.

What is the status of new Yu Quan Plants?

- The site area of Yu Quan Plant is
approximately 240,000 sq. m. as compared
to the combined site area of 89,000 sq. m.
of the existing Yantien Plant and Fenggang
Plant;

- We will build Yu Quan Plants in various phases
depending on the economic conditions. Phase
| has launched production in October 2006;

- Phase Il has also started its construction and
expected to be completed by end of 2008.

Is Karrie going to change its dividend policy because
of the capex and working capital requirements?

- Our dividend policy is to pay out 30%* or
more of the profit attributable to
shareholders;

- In 2006/07, we paid out a total of HK11.5
cents as dividend (payout ratio: 38%, making
the 10th year of unbroken dividend payment
record;

*Remarks: Because of the importance of maintaining financial

stability in this crucial period of a CAPEX cycle, the
Directors reserve the right of changing this guideline
without prior notice.

B 8% 7 (48)
EEEERE  RERMEFE

5.

*i;
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APPENDIX 6 (Cont'd)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHERS

8. Should you worry about the corporate governance
standard of Karrie?

- For three consecutive years, fund managers and
research analysts have voted Karrie as one of
the best-managed companies in Hong Kong in
the Asiamoney Polls. In the 2004 Poll, Karrie
was voted as the second best in Corporate
Governance in Hong Kong. In 2005 Karrie was
voted as the best small cap in the same poll;

- We have made detailed explanation of corporate
strategies and the rationale behind in our annual
reports and our effort was recognised by Hong
Kong Management Association and awarded
with “Honorable Mentions” in 2006 Best Annual
Report Award;

- Since 2001 the day-to-day operation of Karrie
has been in the hands of a group of professional
managers. The management team is not related
to the controlling shareholder;

- Karrie is also willing to share with shareholders
the wealth created through distribution of
dividend. Since 2000/01, the aggregated amount
of the Group’s dividends paid/payable is around
HK$564,477,000 or around 101% of the
shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2007;

- To increase its transparency, Karrie
a. voluntarily announces quarterly result;

b. arranges “tea-breaks” with individual
shareholders half a year; and

C. publishes an easy-to-read annual reports
with graphs, tables and other useful
information.

9. Who are the major shareholders?

- As at 30 June 2007, the Ho's family/Pearl Court
Company Limited held around 54% of the issued
share capital of the Company;

- Value Partners Limited held around 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Bt 8% 7S (4%)
ERERRHEAM

8. HMESEEZMNNLEEARKFE?

- ﬂZ%'J@%EEi‘ FEE‘JIi??ﬁ%%%
BEEPHEBIREERESSWT
BHEFAESFSLE - EAF_EE
NEEER | ZFHERIE
BRELEERRBRIE-H -
BAF_TTEEF PR | PR A
FE/%E-F“ NCIRN R
F—%

- RERPHFAREEERREHEE
BErzES  HWRIEFIEEE
BEEHe | RRTVEEE —F
EREEREFRER|I2ERE
FIREIF

m

- RHMNEBZFTT-FHHEXAN
BEXERANTREARESET
1E - PTAR B EERARRER
BRAR

— EAMTEEERRERBERE
MrZHE B-Z2TT T—
FERKR BE_TTLF=A
=+— EE.D/\E/)—JE?E/%/)E
é’*’fzfﬁ‘i\ﬂﬁ B 4)564,477,0007%8

CEREEEM101% ;

- RIRSERHE =7
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b. BF¥FRBEAREERT
KRB+ &

c. FHRHEEZRIRER
£l EREENHESE -
Bl 2% & H 4th B B & FH A
RIE o

9. HEEBENFERR?
- HE_ZTETLFA=1+HIE
fa] K K &/ Pearl Court Company
Limited# & I {0 &54% :

- HEESFHFAHNSWEMD -
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APPENDIX 7 B 8%
Profit attributabl
Capex '_Hc\apex R ‘[g ;hzrggolfcliaerse
AAMEX BEEEERE PR FE {3 7
HK$000 HK$'000
200,000 - - 200,000
160,000 -1 160,000
120,000 4 120,000
80,000 - 80,000
40,000 - 40,000
0 'l 0
97/98 | 98/99 | 99/00 | 00/01 | 01/02 | 02/03 | 03/04 | 04/05 | 05/06 | 06/07 | 07/08*
S;%?@Lﬁ,ﬁgg 67,604 | 76,176 | 56,595 | 65,034 | 14,675 | 24,488 | 58,842 | 62,236 | 92,059 | 91,625 | 150,000
—o—  Profit attributable
to shareholders 27,865 | 25,162 | 20,616 | 26,368 | 78,370 | 119,808 | 90,440 | 146,573 | 186,379 | 124,928 ?
RRER PR
*07/08 Budget Phase 1: Phase 2: Phase 3: Phase 4: Phase 5: Phase 6:
*07/08 FEE Asian Restructuring, investment in Rapid growth Consolid- Rapid growth Consolid-
financial fixed assets and market ation ation
crisis repositioning
BB - F R - ERE ELEEE ERRER - FESBERER -
DMER |EBEE  RERTISENEML mRER E[EH miRIgR FEE
R
APPENDIX 8 Bt 42 N\
(%) Group’s Target ROE at 20% or above
40 - EEZHRREZEREREEEER20%H MU £
35 F
30 F
2
S & 25
Ly
< |
s 1§ 20
s
S & I5p
& ¥
10
5 L
0 | | | | | | | | | | J
96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07
HK$ million
BEBTL 96/97 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07
Profit after Tax BR 18 )5 7 28 25 21 26 78 120 90 147 186 125
Shareholders’ Equity EX 310 318 332 339 356 347 364 375 416 527 557
Return on Equity (%) REEZEH=R(%) 261 88 75 62 7.3 225 33.0 24.0 353 353 224
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APPENDIX 9

Potential Dilutive Effect of Share Options
BREBZTHELE

B 8% 1

(As at 30 June 2007, total issued share capital is 412,284,000 shares)
(BE=—FTT+FNA=1+HEFHTRAEH412,284,000)

Number of exercisable

outstanding share options

RITEBREHE
Percentage
over total
Exercisable during or Other issued
after the period Directors Participants Total share capital
HE#RITRA
RBARZERATTEZFE = Hit28RE By ZEML
01/04/2007 - 31/03/2008 6,890,000 17,782,000 24,672,000 5.98%
01/04/2008 - 31/03/2009 1,760,000 1,360,000 3,120,000 0.76%
Cumulative total £ &t 8,650,000 19,142,000 27,792,000 6.74%
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The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (the “Year”), the Group
has applied the principles of the recently promulgated Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) and complied with the code provisions
(the "Code Provisions”) of the CG Code, save for deviation
from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.2 and E.1.2 of the CG
Code. This report describes our Group's corporate
governance practices and explains the said deviations from
the CG Code.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. The Board of Directors

1.1 As at 31 March 2007, the Board consisted of
eight Directors, including five executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer), Mr. Kwok Wing Kin,
Francis (Deputy Chairman), Mr. Lee Shu Ki
and Mr. Wong Shun Pang, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr. Chan Sui Sum,
Raymond and Mr. Fong Hoi Shing. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming was re-designated as non-
executive Director on 1 June 2007. The Board
has the collective responsibility for the
leadership and promotion of the success of
the Group’s business by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs.
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1.2

1.3

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the shareholder’s
value and provision of superior products and
services. The Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the overall objective and
strategy of the Group; monitors and evaluates
its operating and financial performance and
reviews the standard of corporate governance
of the Group. It also makes decisions on
matters such as approving the annual results,
interim and quarterly results, connected
transactions, appointment and re-appointment
of Directors, declaring dividend and adopting
accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the management.

The Board conducts regular scheduled
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.

The Board had met four times for the Year
and considered, reviewed and approved the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2006, quarterly and interim results of
the Group for the Year.

1.3
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ATRAFEEFEEHNE

The attendance records of Board meetings

held during the Year are set out below: J& 40 8%
Attendance of individual Directors at rFEEESERAENESH
Board meetings during the Year HE =2

No. of attendance/

No. of meetings Attendance rates

68

1.4

HERE/ EERE HE=E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai {218 5% A 4/4 100%
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming* I EREE 4/4 100%
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis BABEAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHHEE 4/4 100%
Mr. Wong Shun Pang Bl i 4/4 100%
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITESF
Mr. So Wai Chun HEkEE 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond BE&AEE 444 100%
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing HBR A 4/4 100%
Average attendance rate FHHEE 100%
* was re-designated as non-executive Director * RZZEZELFA—HEH

on 1 June 2007

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board
has established an audit committee and a
remuneration committee. Detailed descriptions
of each of these committees are set out
below. All of these committees adopt, as far
as practicable, the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Board in relation to the
scheduling and proceeding of meetings, notice
of meetings and inclusion of agenda items,
records and availability of minutes.

1.4
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2.

Board Composition

2.1

2.2

As at 31 March 2007, the Board comprises
eight Directors: five executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, an executive Director, is
the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. On
1 June 2007, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as non-executive Director of the
Company. The Board has received annual
confirmations of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors and
believed that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet with the guidelines
for assessment of independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and manage
the Group, taking into account the scope and
nature of the operations. The Directors have
a mix of core competencies in areas such as
accounting and finance, business and
management, production and quality control
techniques, supply chain management,
industry knowledge and marketing strategies.
Details of the experience and qualifications
of Directors and Senior Management are set
out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report.

EExgEX

2.1

2.2
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3. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors
3.1 At each annual general meeting ("AGM"),

3.2

3.3

one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office by rotation. The Directors, since
his last election or appointment who have
been the longest in office shall retire and be
eligible for re-election at the AGM. The
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of
the Group shall not, when holding such office,
be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number
of Directors to retire in each year. With the
introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the AGM
at least once every three years.

As at 31 March 2007, non-executive Directors
including independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a fixed term not exceeding
three years and are subject to the
requirements of retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders at AGM in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”").

The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
election or re-election at the forth coming
AGM are set out
shareholders to assist shareholders in making

in the circular to

an informed decision on their elections.

3.

EENEE EBREZ

3.1

3.2

3.3
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3.4 Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable
to act as a Director, the Board will consider
the experience and skills of the appointee; as
well as personal ethics, integrity and the
willingness to commit time in the affairs of
the Group. Where the appointee is appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, the
Board will also consider his/her independence.
During the Year, the Board had also reviewed
and made recommendations in respect of the
re-appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the shareholders at the last
AGM.

Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance. Throughout the year ended
31 March 2007, the Company had applied the
principles and complied with the requirements set
out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, except the
following:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not separate
the roles of its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho") currently holds
both positions.
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Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has
substantial experience in the manufacturing industry.
At the same time, Mr. Ho has the appropriate skills
and business acumen that are the pre-requisites for
assuming the role of Chief Executive Officer. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person would provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership and allow the Group to be
more effective and efficient in developing long-term
business strategies and execution of business plans.
The Board considers that there is no need to
segregate the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer, which should continue to be
performed by Mr. Ho.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that
every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws, at each AGM, one-third
of the Directors for the time being or, if their number
is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number nearest to
one-third but not greater than one-third shall retire
from office provided that notwithstanding anything
in the Bye-laws, the Chairman of the Board and/or
the Managing Director of the Company shall not,
whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year. With
the introduction of the CG Code and to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Group will voluntarily retire at AGMs at least once
every three years.
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Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman of the Board should attend the AGMs.
Owing to another business engagement, the
Chairman of the Board did not attend the AGM
held on 4 August 2006 (the “Meeting”). Other
members of the Board and the Chairman of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees, Mr. So Wai
Chun, attended the Meeting in which Mr. Lee Shu
Ki, an executive Director, took the chair of the
Meeting. The Board considers that the members of
the Board and the Chairman of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees attending the Meeting
were already of sufficient calibre and number for
answering questions from shareholders at the
Meeting.

The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

1. Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1 The Board has established the RC in June 2005
with terms of reference, comprising a majority
of independent non-executive Directors, which
meets at least once a year. It is chaired by
Mr. So Wai Chun and comprises two other
members, namely Mr. Chan Sui Sum,
Raymond and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming. All RC
members, with the exception of Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming, are independent non-executive
Directors. The quorum necessary for the
transaction of business by the RC is two.

1.2 The principal responsibilities of RC are to
formulate remuneration policy of the Group,
review and make recommendations to the
Board in respect of the remuneration policy
and to determine the remuneration of the
executive Directors and the senior
management.
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1.3

The RC met once during the Year with an
attendance rate of 100% and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy
of the Group and the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management staff.

2. Audit Committee ("AC")

2.1

2.2

The AC’s membership comprised solely the
following independent non-executive Directors
as at 31 March 2007:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond; and
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

On 1 June 2007, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive Director, was appointed as a
member of the AC.

The Board is of the opinion that the members
of the AC have sufficient accounting and
financial management expertise or experience
to discharge their duties.

The operations of the AC are regulated by its
terms of reference. The main duties of the
AC include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including the
review of quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group;

o to review the external auditors’

appointment, remuneration and any

matters relating to resignation or

termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control which involves
regular review in various corporate
structures and business process; and
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2.3

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account the
potential risk and the nature of its
urgency in order to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s business
operations. The scope of such reviews
includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance and risk management.

The AC met four times during the Year with
an attendance rate of 100% and reviewed
the quarterly, interim results and the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2006. The AC had also reviewed the
Group's audited annual results of the Year.
The Company Secretary of the Company keeps
all minutes of the AC.

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

1.1

1.2

The Company has adopted a Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the
Group (the “Company’s Model Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code") contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors,
they have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in both
the Company’s Model Code and the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2007.

2.3
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D.

1.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
preparing the Group’s accounts which gives
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the companies and of the Group on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumption or
qualification as necessary. In preparing the
accounts for the Year, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage of such
information to include annual, interim and
quarterly reports, price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures as required under the
Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well as
any information that is required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Since September 2003, the Company has been
publishing its financial results on a quarterly
basis in order to enhance transparency about
its performance and to give details of the
latest development of the Group in a timely
manner. The Company is expected to
announce its annual results within 3 months
after each financial year end and announced
its interim results within 2 months after the
end of the relevant periods.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the Audit
Committee, has reviewed and reported on the
adequacy of effectiveness of the internal control
systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key controls
of the Group to the Board and the Audit Committee.
The responsible Department Heads will be notified
of the control deficiencies noted for rectification.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’s external
auditor HK$1,598,000 for audit services of the
Group and for non-audit related services
HK$217,000, representing mainly taxation services.
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E.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1.

The Company strives to convey to
shareholders pertinent information in a clear,
detailed, timely manner and on a regular basis
and to take into consideration their views and
inputs, and to address the shareholders
concerned. Their views are communicated to
the Board comprehensively.

The Company communicates with its
shareholders through the publication of
annual, interim reports, press announcements
and releases. All communications to
shareholders are also available on the
Company’s website at www.karrie.com.hk.

The AGM provides a useful platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the chairmen of the AC and RC, or in their
absence, members of the relevant Board
Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

Details of the voting procedures and rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included
in the circular to shareholders, which has been
dispatched together with this Annual Report.
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F.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

1.

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Quarterly results announcement

The Group has voluntarily adopted quarterly
result announcement commencing from
September 2003 onwards. This is part of the
Group's effort to go beyond the Stock
Exchange requirements and to make the
Group's financial position as transparent as
possible to shareholders, potential investors
and the general public. Annual reports and
interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period
stipulated by the Listing Rules. All press and
results announcements and reports are posted
on the Company’s website.

Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same day
immediately after the quarterly, interim and
annual results released via teletext. Briefing
for analysts by way of presentation at
luncheons, receptions or telephone
conferences are organized thereafter. During
the briefing, the Group’s management
provides an in-depth analysis of the Group's
performances in respect of the relevant
periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group are
well understood. There is also ample
opportunity for the analysts and media to ask
questions and interact with the executive
Directors and senior management.
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Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the Group
has been arranging tea-break with individual
investors to build up an interactive and direct
communication channel. This allows individual
investors talking to the management of the
Group. Meanwhile, the Group would give an
update about the status of the Group’s
development and share of their feelings
toward the Group.

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and the
latest news of the Group's developments on
its Company’s website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’'s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.
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Senior Management Profile SREBAEZBEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 61, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as the
founder of the Group. Prior to founding the Group in
1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years’ experience in factory
management and in manufacturing plastic, metal and
electronic products. He is responsible for the Group's
overall corporate strategies and objectives. He is also a
director of Pearl Court Company Limited, a corporate
substantial shareholder of the Company, and the brother
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and husband of Ms. Ho Po Chu.

His solid business knowledge and working experience
throughout the years was being recognized by the
academic. He was awarded with Honorary Fellowship by
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration
and Honorary Doctorate in Management by Lincoln
University in April of 2007.

He is a fellow member of the Asian Knowledge
Management Association and Honorary Chairman of The
Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association. He has been
appointed for the second time as a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province in January of 2007. Mr. Ho is currently
participating in affairs of different association of foreign
investors, which including China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment, Dongguan City Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Dongguan City
Fenggang Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Hebei Chinese Overseas Friendship Association
and Hong Kong Hebei Association Ltd.
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Mr. KWOK Wing Kin, Francis, aged 45, was appointed
as a Director of the Company in October 2000, and is a
Deputy Chairman and the Marketing Director as well as
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. Mr.
Kwok graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
diploma in business management and is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Management Association. Prior
to joining the Group in 1989, Mr. Kwok had ten years’
experience in plastic manufacturing sector and procurement
work in electronics manufacturing sector.

Mr. LEE Shu Ki, aged 51, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in December 1997, and is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the daily operation of the Group’s Accounting
Department. Mr. Lee graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a higher diploma in accountancy and is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the
United Kingdom. He has over 25 years’ accounting and
financial management experience in manufacturing
businesses. Mr. Lee joined the Group in June 1995.

Mr. WONG Shun Pang, aged 55, was appointed as a
Director of the Company on 1 June 2004 and is the Senior
General Manager in charge of the factories owned by the
Group in the People’s Republic of China and is a member
of the Executive Committee of the Group. He is responsible
for the operations of China factories. Mr. Wong graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Production and Industrial Engineering. Mr. Wong had
worked for the Group from 1981 to 1993 and rejoined
the Group in 2001. He had over 30 years’ experience in
engineering and manufacturing management for plastic,
metal and electronics industries.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 53, was re-designated as non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June
2007. He was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and was a
Deputy Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as
the Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group.
He is responsible for overall supervision of the Group's
operation. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in factory production. He is also a director
of Pearl Court Company Limited, a corporate substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the brother of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been carrying on business in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years.
He is the major shareholder and director of a company in
Hong Kong. His businesses are mainly in financial services
and international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed
as the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand
Limited, a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited which
is a listed company in New Zealand.

Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond, aged 67, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
in February 1998. He graduated from Oklahoma Baptish
University in the United States with a bachelor degree in
Arts in 1964. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience in
the construction industry. He is also a director of Chaplin
Chemicals Limited and Shelton Food Industry Limited.
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Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
December 2004. He has extensive experience in accounting,
finance and management. He holds a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration and a higher diploma in
accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Management

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 58, is the Director of Administration
of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the founding members of
the Group in 1980 and has over 20 years’ experience in
office administration and purchasing. She is responsible
for supervising personnel and overall administration of the
Group. She is also a director of Pearl Court Company
Limited, a corporate substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the wife of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and sister-in-
law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 35, is the Assistant
Administration Director of Administration Department and
responsible for overall operation of personnel,
administration and EDP department of the Group. Ms. Chan
is one of the members of Executive Committee and Internal
Audit Committee of the Group. Ms. Chan graduated from
The City University of Hong Kong majoring in Public
Administration and Management. She joined the Group in
1996 and has over 10 years’ experience in administration
and management.
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Ms. TAM Fung Ping, Edith, aged 49, is the General
Manager of Storage Product and Electronics Manufacturing
Services (EMS) Department, responsible for the production
and operations of storage products and EMS Business of
the Group. Ms. Tam is also responsible for the overall
operation of the Group’s logistics system and supply chain
management. Ms. Tam was graduated from The University
of Ottawa in Canada with a bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering. Ms. Tam had worked for the Group from
1990 to 1993 and rejoined the Group in 2000. Prior to
joining the Group, she had four years’ experience as
manufacturing engineer and purchasing specialist in the
electronics manufacturing companies, and eight years’
experience in logistic management in the factories stationed
in the People’'s Republic of China.

Mr. WONG Siu Ching, aged 49, is the Marketing Director
(Division 1) of the Group, responsible for project
development and marketing for the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 1988, Mr. Wong had over 10 years’
experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 40, is the Marketing Director
(Division 2) of the Group, responsible for marketing
development work. He joined the Group in 1985 and has
over 15 years' experience in sales and marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wabh Ying, aged 42, is the Assistant Quality
Director of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in
1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 42, is the Assistant General
Manager at the Group'’s factories in China, responsible for
the overall personnel and administration management. She
joined the Group in 1984 and has over 15 years’ experience
in managing the production process of manufacturing
industries.

ERMENE WUt AR AREFHE®
REFRIBAEARKE BERESEEFH#
EnREFEERIEB  EERERSE
Eo-BNMNMITAEEESREREMRASR
MEEEEFEE - B NEEERMNEX

BAEARS  HARWMTIESTEM - &
MNER—NANEBEE-NAN=FHARLEE
R YR_FZZTFEHME - NEAR
SEA  RAFTONFEREFREQAZ
HETRERMNEXRBERLN\FHETHE
W TR B 2 & & o

FLERE WA AEETHAE
(F—#) AEAKEBEZERNAMSHE
B R—NANNEMAKREER - £X4E
BREBRTFHELTSERLER

RBEXKE  Wtpx AEREHHHAE
(B4 AEMSEBAR - BR—N
NEFMAREER  HEBATRFHER
MG HEEER

PREHS4E O+ 5% AEEREIE
RE - RAABRENBASEIZLR GREE
BEIKRE)  FHEYRETEARES - ®
R—ANZFEMAREERR - #EBE+=
FREFEERANMEETELR -

MARNAE - W+ —px - AEETEEE
ZEIBEE  AEAENITHERER -
BER—ANOENMAXREE - FEHEBE TR
FREEXLEERFEELR

85



86

.Karrie International Holdilig§ Limited

3R BB P B AR A

Senior Management Profile SREBAEZBEAER

Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 55, is the Internal
Audit Manager of the Group, responsible for setting up
internal audit function and reporting directly to the Board
and Internal Audit Committee. Mr. Wong graduated from
Curtin University of Technology, WA with a bachelor degree
in Management and Marketing. He also holds a master
degree of Accounting from the same University. He is an
associate member of each of The Association of
International Accountants, UK and CPA Australia. He is
also a member of The Institute of Internal Auditors Inc.
U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 10 years’ experience in internal
auditing and 12 years’ experience in financial accounting.
He joined the Group in March 2003.

Mr. HA Hon Leung, aged 47, is the Technical Director of
the Electronics Manufacturing Services (EMS) Department,
responsible for engineering capabilities and technology
development in electronic products and system integration.
Mr. Ha holds a bachelor degree from The University of
Windsor, Canada, and a master degree from The University
of Waterloo, Canada, both in Electrical Engineering. He
also holds a master degree in business administration from
Heriot-Watt University, UK. Mr. Ha has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and technical management in
the electronics industry.
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Report of the Directors EE& &

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of computer casings, office automation products,
moulds, plastic and metal parts (together referred to as
“Metal and Plastic Business”) and provision of electronic
manufacturing services business (“EMS Business”).

The Group’s turnover by principal product category and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in Note 5
to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK8.5 cents per share was
paid during the Year (2005/06: HK$9.0 cents per
share). The Directors have recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the
Year (2005/06: final dividend of HK13.0 cents and special
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 121 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 13 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements.

As at 31 March 2007, the Company’s reserves of
approximately HK$249,068,000 representing the
contributed surplus, retained profit and proposed dividends
were available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$382,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES
The Old Scheme

The old share option scheme of the Company (the “Old
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 November 1996 pursuant to
which share options were granted to employees and
executive directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. No
further options can be, or have been, issued under the
Old Scheme from 21 May 2002, the date of adoption of
the new share option scheme of the Company (the “New
Scheme”) and termination of the Old Scheme. Details of
the Old Scheme are summarised herein below:

(i) The participants of the Old Scheme include any
eligible employee (including any executive directors)
of the Company and its subsidiaries;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)
The Old Scheme (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

The total number of shares may be issued by the
Company if all options which had been granted
under the Old Scheme have been exercised is
36,000,000 which represents 8.73% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of this report;

The maximum entitlement of any eligible employee,
when aggregated with shares issued and issuable
under all options granted to him, must not exceed
25% of the aggregated number of shares for the
time being issued and issuable under the Old
Scheme;

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Old Scheme at any time during a period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee and in
any event shall be not later than ten years from 1
December 1996;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted is determined based on a
formula: P = N x Ep, where “P” is the subscription
price; “N" is the number of shares to be subscribed,;
and "Ep” is the exercise price of the higher of (a)
the nominal value of the shares; or (b) 80% of the
average closing prices of the shares of the Company
guoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the last five
trading days;
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(iv)
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) iR st E (&)

The Old Scheme (Cont’d) EftE (&)

(vii)  The Old Scheme was terminated on 21 May 2002 (viy EBFfEER-_ZEZE-_FHRA_-_1+—H
but in all other respects the provisions of the Old Ik EEFHEZEMEXDRAE
Scheme remain in force and all options granted prior B RETBEEERERLERRE 2B
to its termination shall continue to be valid and BESEEE L AIBLESTE
exercisable in accordance therewith. The exercise EREFERL ZBRECEBITH
period of the options granted under Old Scheme HRZZEERNF+—A=THERK
expired on 30 November 2006 and no options were Rz BHAR B mARTTE 2 ISR

outstanding as at that date;

(viii) Details of share option movements during the Year (viii) BRIBEFFERAFE 2 BRIEZEF
under the Old Scheme are as follows: BT -
Number of Share Options
BREZE
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/

before exercise Outstanding  Granted Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March  during during during  at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2006 the Year the Year the Year 2007
RERE RERE -—3BRE “ERtE
R AH iR ZA=1t-B RAEE REEE WNAEE ZA=1-8
fe REAM  RE s @R 2Bk HATE EET T %%/BE  HEATE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  ('000) (000) (000) (000)
(B (Br) (B () () () () ()
Employees 20/09/2000 0300 20/09/2000- 0.35 2.95 150 - (150) - -
& 301172006
20/09/2000 0300 21/09/2001- 0.35 2.95 150 - (150) - -
30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0300 21/09/2002- 0.35 2.95 200 - (200) - -
30/11/2006
20/09/2000 0300 21/09/2003- 035 - 320 - - (320) -
12/08/2006
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted on 21 May 2002 to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules effected on 1 September 2001. Details of the New
Scheme are summarised herein below:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity
(as defined in the New Scheme);

(i) The participants of the New Scheme include any
employee, director (including executive and non-
executive director of the Group), shareholder,
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, other service
provider, partner and business or strategic alliance
partner of the Group or any Invested Entity (as
defined in the New Scheme) or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects may be any of the
above persons;

(iii)  The total number of shares may be issued by the
Company if all options granted under the New
Scheme have been exercised is 27,792,000 which
represents 6.74% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company at the date of this report;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(iv)

(vi)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company at the date of adoption of the New
Scheme and thereafter, if refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit by the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time;

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no participants shall be granted an option if the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to such participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant would exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. Options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue for
the time being and with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company's shareholders;

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Scheme at any time during a
period to be notified by the Board to each grantee.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held
or a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised;
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any
particular option granted under the New Scheme is
determined based on a formula: P = N x Ep, where
“P" is the subscription price; “N” is the number of
shares to be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise
price of the highest of (a) the nominal value of a
share in the Company on the date of grant; (b) the
closing price of shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant; and (c) the
average of the closing prices of shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and
as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the New
Scheme; and

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth
anniversary of the adoption date of the New Scheme.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRESE (®)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) et (2)

(x)  Details of share option movements during the Year (x) BEFFENAFE ZBREZEHF
under the New Scheme are as follows: BT

Number of Share Options
EREHE

Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding  Granted Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March  during during during  at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2006 the Year the Year the Year 2007
RERE RERE -2%3xf ZBELE
R B %8 =ZB=1-B RAEE REEE REEE ZA=1-H
i RHBH  TEE TEE  2ER <BR  HEATE ERF T %/BE  HEGR
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  (‘000) (000) (000) (000)
(#7) #7)  (#7) @ ®H® @ ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EEREATRAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 280 - N - 280
GEEP: 06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 0171172002 1.65  01/01/2003- 1.65 - 50 - - - 50
FxBLE 3111012012
01/11/2002 165 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 750 - - - 750
3110/2012
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2006- 1.86 - 320 - - - 320
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 320 - - - 320
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRESE (@)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) et a (&)
(x)  (Contd) x) (&)
Number of Share Options
BREHE
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise Outstanding  Granted Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March  during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant Price Period grant options 2006 the Year the Year the Year 2007
RERE RERE -3%5% “ERtE
R BA i®B ZA=t-B RAEE RAEE RAEE ZA=+-8
#E REBH  RE TRE  2ER 2BR  HEATE ERT T X%/BE  HEAE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) (000) (000) ('000) (000)
(#7) #7)  (87) @ ®m @@ ()
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2003- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
PHELE 31/10/2012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 - 300 - - - 300
3171072012
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2005- 1.86 - 80 - - - 80
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2006- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2007- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2007- 3.325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2009- 3.325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BRESTE (&

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

#Het8 (&)

)

(x)  (Cont'd) x) (&)
Number of Share Options
BREZA
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/
before exercise  Outstanding  Granted Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March  during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant Price Period grant options 2006 the Year the Year the Year 2007
RERE RERE -—325% ZBELE
BB fi%8 ZB=1-B RAEE REEE REEE ZA=t-H
fe RHBH  HEE TEE 2B <BR  HEATE ERT 7 X%/BE  HEGE
(HKS) (HKS) (HK$) ('000)  (‘'000) (000) (000) ("000)
(#7) #7)  (#7) @ ®m @@ ()
Mr. Wong Shun Pang 01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2003- 1.65 2.95 100 - (100) - -
iy 3111012012
0171172002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 2.95 200 - (50) - 150
3171072012
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2006- 2425 - 200 - - - 200
3011172013
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2007- 2425 - 200 - - - 200
3011172013
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2005- 1.86 - 160 - N - 160
26/04/2014
2710412004 1.90  01/01/2006- 1.86 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 200 - N - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
Ms. Ho Po Chu 07/02/2005 3.35  01/07/2005- 3.325 - 800 - N - 800
MERLL 06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BREE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) et & (&)
(x)  (Cont'd) x (&)
Number of Share Options
BREYE
Closing
Price Price at Lapsed/

before exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of at31March  during during during  at 31 March

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2006 the Year the Year the Year 2007
RERE HRERE Z—2EXE “EEtE
BHAA 18R ZA=1-8H REKEE WAEE RAEE ZA=1-H
21 RLRH  TRE TR B8 BB HATE ERT T &%/BE HRTE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(&) (&) (&) (f) (f) (f) (f) (f)
(ii) - Other Eligible Participants
AMEERLER
Employees 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 130 - 100 - - (100) -
EB 12/08/2006
22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 1.30 - 100 - - - 100
21/05/2012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2003- 1.65 2.875 420 - (100) - 320
31/10/2012
011172002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 2.908 1,550 - (300) - 1,250
31/102012 (AVGT 1)
01/12/2003 2.475  01/01/2006- 2.425 2.934 4114 - (562) (200) 3,352
30/11/2013 (AVGEH)
01/12/2003 2.475  01/01/2007- 2.425 - 4,164 - - (200) 3,964
30/11/2013
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2005- 1.86 2.942 896 - (120) - 776
2610412014 (AVGT 1)
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2006- 1.86 3.025 360 - (40) - 320
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 1.90  01/01/2007- 1.86 - 280 - - (80) 200
26/04/2014
01/02/2005 3.15  01/01/2006- 3.15 - 978 - - (54) 924
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 3.15  01/01/2007- 3.15 - 1,956 - - (108) 1,848
31/01/2015
01/02/2005 3.15  01/01/2008- 3.15 - 1,956 - - (108) 1,848
31/01/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/07/2005- 3.325 - 1,800 - - - 1,800
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3.325 - 880 - - - 880
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3.325 - 1,760 - - - 1,760
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3.325 - 1,760 - - - 1,760
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BREE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) ¥at& (&)
(xi)  Details of share option movements during the period xi) BEHFAENR_ZTZTLFNWA—HZE
between 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2007 under the NA=ZTHILEZEREZSFIBEN
New Scheme are as follows: T
Number of Share Options
EREZA

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during the  during the  during the

Closing period from period from period from
Price Price at 1 April 1 April 1 April

before exercise  Outstanding  2007to 2007 to 2007to  Outstanding

Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of dateof  at31March  30June 30 June 30 June at 30 June

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
A R i

“EEtE ZERtE CEELE
RERE RBRE -23t5BE-A%Z WMA-BE WMA-HE C-EEtE
REBA T8 ZA=t-B ARZTH ~AE=tH #xAE=tH ARZTH

#e REBH kg ks 2ER ZER HATE  EERT T &H/BH HAGE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (‘000) (000) ('000) (000) ("000)
(Bx) (B1) (Bx) (¥) () () (¥) (¥)
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EERRATHAR
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2007- 3325 - 280 - - - 280
GEL P 06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3.325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 560 - - - 560
06/02/2015
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis 01/11/2002 165 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 50 - - - 50
IxERE 311102012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 - 750 - - - 750
3171012012
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
2710412004 190 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 320 - - - 320
2610412014
2710412004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 320 - - - 320
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 3.35  01/01/2008- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BREE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) ¥at& (&)
(xi)  (Cont'd) (xiy (&)
Number of Share Options
EREZA

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during the  during the  during the

Closing period from period from  period from
Price Price at 1 April 1 April 1 April

before exercise  Outstanding  2007to 2007 to 2007to  Outstanding

Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of date of  at31March  30June 30 June 30 June at 30 June

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
B i B

“EEtE ZEEtE CEELE
RERE RERE -ZTtENA-AZ ME-AZ MA-HE -EEtE
REBA 88 =ZR=t-B xB=1tH ~AZtH #RA=ZtR AAZtH

#% RERE  fTEE Ty 2Bk 2Bk HATE  ERT TE &%/BH HRTE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000)  (‘000) ('000) (000) ('000)
(1) (&) (B71) () () (F) () ()
Mr. Lee Shu Ki 01/112002 165 01/01/2003- 1.65 - 200 - - - 200
ShEEE 3111012012
01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 - 300 - - - 300
311102012
2710412004 190 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 80 - - - 80
260042014
2710412004 190 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
260042014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 160 - - - 160
26/042014
07/0212005 335 01/012007- 3325 - 200 - - - 200
06/0212015
07/0212005 335 01/01/2008- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/0212015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd) BREE (&)
The New Scheme (Cont’d) ¥at& (&)
(xi)  (Cont'd) (xiy (&)
Number of Share Options
BREHE

Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during the  during the  during the

Closing period from period from period from
Price Price at 1 April 1 April 1 April

before exercise  Outstanding  2007to 2007 to 2007to  Outstanding

Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of dateof  at31March  30June 30 June 30 June at 30 June

Name Grant Price Period grant options 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
B i B

ZEEtE CETtE CEELE
RERE RBRE -23t5BE-A%Z WMA-BE WMA-HE C-EEtE
REAA %A ZA=t-A ~"A=1H AA=tHE A~AZtH ARA=tH

#e REAH e TER 2Bk ZER HATE  ERT TE &¥%/BE EEXd
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (0000 ('000) (000) (1000) (000)
(Bx) (B7m) (B 3 () () 3 3
Mr. Wong Shun Pang 01/11/2002 1.65  01/01/2004- 1.65 - 150 - - - 150
BIEEL A 3111012012
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2006- 2425 - 200 - - - 200
3011112013
01/1212003 2475 01/01/2007- 2425 - 200 - - - 200
3011112013
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2005- 186 - 160 - - - 160
26/04/2014
27/04/2004 190 01/01/2006- 186 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
2710412004 190 01/01/2007- 186 - 120 - - - 120
26/04/2014
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3325 - 200 - - - 200
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3305 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
07/0212005 335 01/01/2009- 3305 - 400 - - - 400
06/02/2015
Ms. Ho Po Chu 07/02/2005 335 01/07/2005- 3325 - 800 - - - 800
CES/ e 06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

BRESS &
etE ()

)

(xi)  (Cont'd) xi)  (#&)
Number of Share Options
BREHR
Lapsed/
Granted  Exercised  cancelled
during the  during the  during the
Closing period from period from  period from
Price Price at 1 April 1 April 1 April
before exercise  Outstanding  2007to 2007 to 2007to  Outstanding
Date of  Exercise Exercise  date of dateof  at31March  30June 30 June 30 June at 30 June
Name Grant Price Period grant options 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
i I i
ZERLE CZBRLE CZEBLE
RERE  RERE —STtEMA-BEZ MA-BE MA-AE -E5tE
REBH fifA =ZB=+-B AB=tR AB=t+B ABZtR ABZtH
#e RERH  RE ks 2Bk ZB# AR EBET i XN/ WA
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) (000) (‘000) (000) ('000)
(Br) (B7) (Br) () (F) () () ()
(i) Other Eligible Participants
AR ER2EE
Employees 22/05/2002 130 22/05/2002- 1.30 - 100 - - - 100
3 21/05/2012
017112002 1.65  01/01/2003- 1.65 - 320 - - - 320
317102012
01/1172002 165 01/01/2004- 1.65 - 1,250 - - (300) 950
3111012012
01/12/2003 2475 01/01/2006- 2425 - 3352 - - (80) 3212
3011172013
0171212003 2475 01/01/2007- 2425 - 3,964 - - (80) 3,884
30/11/2013
2710412004 190 01/01/2005- 1.86 - 776 - - (100) 676
2600412014
2710412004 190 01/01/2006- 1.86 - 320 - - (200) 120
26/04/2014
2710412004 190 01/01/2007- 1.86 - 200 - - (200) -
260412014
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2006- 3.15 - 924 - - - 924
3110172015
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2007- 315 - 1,848 - - - 1,848
31/0172015
01/02/2005 315 01/01/2008- 315 - 1,848 - - - 1,848
31/01/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/07/2005- 3325 - 1,800 - - - 1,800
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2007- 3325 - 880 - - (200) 680
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2008- 3325 - 1,760 - - (400) 1,360
06/02/2015
07/02/2005 335 01/01/2009- 3325 - 1,760 - - (400) 1,360
06/02/2015
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

A professional actuarial firm has been invited in the year
of 2005/06 to perform a valuation of the share options
granted under the share option schemes.

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the cost of share-based transactions should
be recognised as an expense over the period from the
date of grant until they are exercisable by the receiver of

BRESE (@)
etE ()

—HEXHERAAR-_ZTZR TR
EEFEAR TZ%J‘&%E@W%

REBBMBHRELNE R ([FEME
Q2] BREREEBBMNAFEAR
BRMESAEE  BHEXHERRIR
Fak BER_TZTLA=ZA=1+—H

such payment. The expense required to be reported for SRR ENEREMEEANEBERIR
share options granted on or before 31 March 2007 would FEEEAS
be estimated as follows:
Financial Year
BMBEE
2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 Total
&%

P&L expenses (HK$'000) 768 4,718 7,311 3,328 1,493 436 18,054

Bk (TAET)

There are several relevant measures that may be considered
to assess the financial impact of the share option schemes,
including the expense of share-based transactions under
generally accepted financial reporting standards (e.qg.,
HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based transactions
attributes the expense of share-based transaction over the
period from the original transaction date (i.e., grant date)
to the date when the recipient’s entitlement to the payment
has been fully realized (i.e., vested).

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the Year and the expense of share-based transactions under
HKFRS2 requirement, the Binomial option pricing model
(the “Binomial model”) has been used. The Binomial Model
is one of the generally most accepted methods used to
calculate the value of options and expense of share-based
transactions.

iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi‘ﬁ%ﬁif"ﬁk%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ1’E§WEE§

BRETEEMBRENOTE  BRERE
RN RERE (ZZDE/%HMWEEUZ)—F

AN 5HE@EH - ERAK
MXMNXZNEE LGN EMER
R (B RSBRFEAR) #HH -

BBMBERRRTE TARND X AHHRZ 5
M E i ER —AAMEEEEN ([=
BAENX]) GG - [ZIEAEBERX D EE
BREEERBRNXNNRSHERX LK
REBEMNZTTEZ— -
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The New Scheme (Cont’d)

The parameters of the Binomial Model include the risk
free rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger price multiple.
The risk free rate has made reference to the yield Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date. The dividend yield makes
reference to the dividend history and it is assumed that
the grantee will exercise the option in accordance with
their sub-optimal exercise policy.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there was no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last ten financial years is set out on
page 199 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in Note 8 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as
at 31 March 2007 are set out in Notes 17 to the financial
statements.

BRESE (@)
etE ()

“HEARAZZ2HEBEBRE 2 ERERF
RREERE - RPBITEBREMERS
KBERZ - BERNETISREBINE
EeZBRZEHRE - RELERERIRBREA
ARTLERBRRBEBRBRETRE
PR AT R A

B L

NRAARREMERHBARBAZLAIM
BERREBTHRZELEGR  MER
SR DI TR IR B A BB 2 RS e

TFEUMBERE

AEEBETEYRFECRZEREER
BERRHERAFTFHRE—BALTNLE -

EEEN

REEA > KRB HERBEEBKHIM
BEREB2ERRTRIFETLEMNE
K TEFAEFEN

B B 2~ B

ARAEMBERABZHB  HRMBEREK
B RE\

RITEREEX

AEER-_ZETELF=ZRA=1t—RHZRTT
EREELHBIRYBRERMET £ -
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (was re-designated
as non-executive Director on 1 June 2007)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki
Mr. Wong Shun Pang

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for specific terms and hold office until 30 June 2008, 4
February 2008 and 6 December 2007 respectively, subject
to extension.

In accordance with Bye-law 87, Messrs. Wong Shun Pang
and So Wai Chun will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. All such Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

EEg
KEEARBEAFTHRABL  TEAZE
ES/(1lI N

BITES

Bt (E/ERITHABE)

MEREE (R -_FELFNA—H
EEBITRBIFHTEF)

BXBELE (BIERE)

FRIEELE

= B 5t &

BYFHTES

BERTE
BRInFR T AL
TR EE

AARBUFRTESZARHIANBESF
HEE - HEHAS IR -_ZEZNFRA=
+H ZEZNF-_ANABRER=ZZTTLF
TZARBER - TR -

R ABIAABETRMRTE - |IBES TR
HERTESNRAGRTZBERBFERS
t®RERT - -FIAERSESREERILRR
BEEEEL -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Upon the expiry of the previous lease agreement on 17
November 2005, a new lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) dated 16 November 2005 was entered into
between Kings Lion Development Limited (“Kings Lion”)
as landlord and Karrie Industrial Company Limited (”Karrie
Industrial”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with two car parking spaces in the
same building at a monthly rental of HK$111,607 (that is,
at approximately HK$4.2 per square foot) for a term of
two years commencing on 18 November 2005.

ESZRBEN

ALY EERNRRBFAS LEEE
E2ESFITLEAITAR—FAARRAT
BERKILZRBAEHOOCEEBERIN) -

ESREHNZAN&E

ZANYNSTEE ) NI N B = S E LS
BMERI P RARAZEBMARRES

EERAEEREREFEANGZEESLY -
BERXZ
EREERER _—_TTRF+ A TLH

Hme - SMBERAERAR ([S]) (BHE
MNESZVNERERAA(IEMER]) (K
RAIZEZEMBAR) FBRA)R=ZZZR
F+—A+NHRURFREES LAK
611-6199 R LERENESHEm &
HHEIEH26,573F FR) & B M ER R %A
E THENIYEAERZ ([BEH
=1) 0 A111,6078 0 (AMEFHRL4.2
) AT HHH-_FTRF+—
A+ /\B#5t -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together with
his wife, control 100% of the voting power in general
meeting and also control the board of Directors of Kings
Lion. The transaction therefore constitutes a continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Rule 14A.34
of the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction have been
set out in the announcement dated 16 November 2005
issued to the shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the transaction and confirmed that the transaction has
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of its business and on normal commercial terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the
transaction, and have confirmed in a letter to the Directors
stating that the transaction had been approved by the
Board, was entered into in accordance with the terms of
the Lease Agreement and had not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2005.

BERXS (&)

RIBCETRADFE14AE - AR RRZ
BiEAL  AAAREZERMIEELEER
HEFIZFHMZBERE100%EZ#E K
HEEG - ZRXZERBE(EMRADES
TWAE S = TIHEB K AR R B 2 FFE R E
5 - AR SHBEABEEARANR-E
TREFE+—AB+ A BRKREZEHZ QM
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2007

The interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies are as follows:

(A) Interests in the Company

EERBETHRAEZROES

R-EZEt+tF=F=+—H

RAARZEERERITHRABEARARQTA
A EE (xR (E %&Hﬁﬁﬂﬂm
([CEHEBD]) EXVED) BIRR D &8 FE AR 1
PHRAENES AR  MzSEE AR
(a) RIBCGEHIEHB) FI2EETHEEZE
uafﬁ}ﬁﬁuaﬁ-% (o ﬁw‘%(tm“Ti%
ETEHFRHNIRLE #ﬁIJ>> AR

RAT WA

() REQAFzER

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEBTZERBRYR
Corporate/ % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share
interests interests interests interests capital
EEEER
BAER REREG HiE BitEE BRESH
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai A 2 18 5 A 5,830,000 209,650,000 172,200,000 215,480,000 52.26
(the 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Bt 5 —) (Pt 5 —) (ftzE=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming MEREE 8,100,000 - 172,200,000 180,300,000 43.73
(the 3) (the 2)
(ft3E=) (frzE=)
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, 2Pk BB A 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000 0.80
Francis (Ngte 4)
(Pft #E9)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FRELE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000 0.80
(the 5)
(f 32 1)
Mr. Wong Shun Pang =B kA& 2,610,000 - - 2,610,000 0.63
(the 6)
(Bft 7 75)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 78 k& 2,000 - - 2,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu MERZ L 37,450,000 178,030,000 172,200,000 215,480,000 52.26
(the 7) (Note 7) (the 2)
(Pt 3 +) (MT?t) (frzE=)
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= /4= = 3L =
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' EERBEITRAEZROER (@)
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
(A) Interests in the Company (Cont’d) () REQRIZ#ERE (&)

Notes: B 7

1. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai comprise — (e & 2 B A#E % B15,830,000
5,830,000 ordinary shares. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is BARF L BB EK - W8
deemed to be interested in (a) 37,450,000 shares held FEERBERFA (@HE KRB ERK
by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner TEREBERBEARARAZ
and (b) 172,200,000 shares in which his children 37,450,000% B £ ¢ J2 (b)E K jm 18
under 18 are interested. Such 172,200,000 shares in B F 22 %75 172,200,0008 B 1) 2
which his children under 18 are interested are R o 7% %5 172,200,000/ i 17 2 7
duplicated with his interests as a founder of the Ho wmoc WR B IR B L A E R Ho
Cheuk Fai Family Trust (“HCF Trust”) in the same Cheuk Fai Family Trust ([HCF Trust])
block of shares referred to in Note 2 below. BB IZ A (ARHEEE — Frt) B Rm

18N FREER 2R —#%E -

2. 172,200,000 shares are held by Pearl Court Company — - 172,200,0008% f% {7 F8 Pearl Court
Limited (“Pearl Court”) as trustee for a unit trust, the Company Limited (| Pear| Court]) LA
HCF Trust. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai is deemed to be HCF Trustz B {572 X5 AHF
interested in these 172,200,000 shares as founder of B o (A5 8 % A E BHCF TrustZ i
the HCF Trust. Ho Po Chu is interested in these SN AR REER %% 172,200,000
172,200,000 shares by virtue of the fact that (a) she PR 2z a5 o {r] B Ik &2 T 4R AR A
controls or exercises the control of one-third or more FAEZ%172,200,0000% % 7 2 %
of the voting power at general meetings of Pearl iy \Z%(E;%?@K‘Pe 1l Courtl A&
Court; (b) she holds one unit in the HCF Trust; and EHISITRES =02 —3IA LR
(c) she is one of the discretionary objects of a S (b)) B HCE Trustdy — {E &
discretionary trust known as Ho Wai Leung Memorial iz« R(OWE A — 8B B Ho Wai
Trust (“HWL Trust”), the trust property of which Leung Memorial Trust ([HWL Trust|)
comprises 9,999 units in the HCF Trust and in which @"J’%?’%i HMIEETHR - ZBE
Ms. Ho Po Chu, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho EEEFFBHCF Trust29,999% (7 + H
Cheuk Fai’s children under 18 are the discretionary BIEESHRBMERZL - [
objects. These 9,999 units of HCF Trust are held by B A R (] 2 R R A RO 18R F
HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HITL") as trustee HPK © 5% 559,999 HCF Trust &
for HWL Trust. Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho iz 5 HSBC International Trustee
Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, their children under 18 Limited ([HITL]) £ AHWL Trust#) %
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 172,200,000 shares FEARH o MUk - 7% %172,200,000
are duplicated with each other. MM 2 B - A8 R e ,EE?E

B2 T REBERMI8E
MFRRAEAEEZRER R
—HE=

3. The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise = A2 B %o & 7 {8 A #E % 86,700,000
6,700,000 ordinary shares and 1,400,000 outstanding e A 2 m) 5 B £ 521,400,000 4
share options. RITEE 2 BEIRREAE K -

4. The personal interests of Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis g FBoKE S A 2 B A 2 B 700,000/%
comprise 700,000 ordinary shares and 2,600,000 AN 7 R R 1) K2 2,600,000 K
outstanding share options. 1T 2 M RR 4R AK o

5. The personal interests of Mr. Lee Shu Ki comprise o EEE A 2 (E A H 1,400,000
1,400,000 ordinary shares and 1,900,000 outstanding P A 7 B 5@ A 1) B2 1,900,000 4
share options. RATHE 2 AR AR -

6. The personal interests of Mr. Wong Shun Pang N EIENE %A 2 8 A #E % B 660,000/%
comprise 660,000 ordinary shares and 1,950,000 A2 A E AR A7) £ 1,950,000 &
outstanding share options. TR 2 BB RR AR B o

7. The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise - MEXRX T+ 2 E A#&H
36,650,000 ordinary shares and 800,000 outstanding 36,650,0000% 7~ & 7] & 3@ Ak AR 19 &
share options. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be 800,000&] A 1T 2 FE IR A A X = {7
interested in (a) 5,830,000 shares held by her spouse, Bk L AR B E A () E BB s
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, as beneficial owner and (b) BEEERERBHEAARE L
172,200,000 shares in which her children under 18 5,830,000% s 7 ¢ Ko (b)H A 187%
are interested. Such 172,200,000 shares in which her BYF 2P 172,200,000 % I% 17 2 12
children under 18 are interested are duplicated with 7 o % % 172,200,0000% fix 7 2 #&
her interests in the same block of shares referred to 7 R RA B R (KR —
in Note 2 above. %’L) MERMIBHEM TR ZHEERYZ

SN
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

EERESTRAEBZRNERS @)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated (Z) REBZEZEZRAR
corporations
(i) Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL") () BEHE@mBRAA([FZHE®D])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE10ETZERFEELROHE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests  interests  interests  interests capital  Positions capital
BAEE XBEZ HtEz GHES BAl HE BAl
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
]l 48 5 & (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M=)  (&E—) (faz)  (Ws—) (o)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
Bkt (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) ~ (Note 1)  (Note 2)
(fsE—)  (MsE—) (sx=)  (W&E—)  (WED)

(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i) BZERRBERAA([ZERHE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each

BREE100ETZERFRELEROHE

Corporate/ % of issued % of issued

Personal Family Other Total share Short share

interests  interests  interests  interests capital  Positions capital

EEERS Bk Bk

BARZ ZE#Ez HtEz A&HESR Bl e BAK

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
Al 2 48 5% & (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note3)  (Note 1)  (Note 3)
(BfsE—)  (HsE—) (=) (WaE—)  (E=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated

corporations (Cont’d)

EER&Z

—_ =

& 1T

BAEBZRER (8)

() REB LBz RERRAE ()

(iii)  Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited (“KIHL") (i)~ Karrie Industrial Holdings Limited
([KIHL])
Number of non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each
SREBIBTZERERELERD YA
Corporate/ % of issued % of issued
Personal Family Other Total share Short share
interests  interests  interests  interests capital  Positions capital
EEEED BR BR
BAERZ ZBEZ HttEz AiEz BAW KB Bk
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
]l 48 5 & (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(M=)  (WsE—) (Bstm)  (BsE—)  (FEEm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
EE$ 3 (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4)  (Note 1) (Note 4)
(eE—)  (BsE—) (farm)  (s—)  (atm)

Notes: B EE -

1. Karrie International (B.V.1.) Limited (“KIBVI"), a direct — Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been (JkBVI]) ~ ARE 7 E#EZENE
granted options to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 2AEc BRTRBEARBMR2E
and Ms. Ho Po Chu their non-voting deferred shares EEMABRLEREZMNER - 7
in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. Accordingly, KIBVI is ERREEKHLA R BN ERRER
taken to be interested in these non-voting deferred FERR 7 o B (A A 8 S A MM B8 3k
shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. ZERLEARAERTRBEMS E
Ho Po Chu have each created short positions. In EEMZKE > KIBVIERFEE ZF K
addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in the Company; fztEam o BE - Rl (F) [RA
and (i) the interests of their children under 18 in the DAz S P - BB EL - 207
Company, as referred to in Notes 1, 2 and 7 under A > E PR E18IA TH T X
the section headed “(A) Interests in the Company” FAARB Z R (0% LA
above, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are [AE IR L+ 2 8 WA 535 A KIBVIE
each deemed to be interested in the long positions ZER 2w o X F R R (E
that KIBVI has in these non-voting deferred shares. ARBEEROOWERIEEER -
Such interests are duplicated with their personal
interests in these non-voting deferred shares.

2. The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises - 72 M £ mm B 377 B0 B 50,0000% &
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each A H {81008 7T 2 B % RARRE A% {0
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. {gg;g}ﬁj%ﬂ&ﬁﬁmoﬁngﬁwﬁ

VARG °

3. The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises = FERKCEITR M B 10,0000 &
10,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each A B 10078 7T 2 45 SEREIE ST B 1)
and 10 ordinary shares of HK$100 each. {gg;g}ﬁj%ﬂ&ﬁﬁmofﬁngﬁwﬁ

VARG °

4. The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 M9 KIHLE 317 () i 20k & R TE B 178
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each and 10 TLZ B SRR AT ) R 10 B
ordinary shares of HK$1 each. HEIATZ EBRKRODAEK -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

As at 30 June 2007

There have been no changes in the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and any associated corporations (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
during the period from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2007.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competes with the business of the Group.

EERESTRAEBZRNERS @)

BEXFEEN  ARRBEEENRRT
A B I A AR AR iR B A E
BB fD ~ AR D Mo (B 55 RE R BV A an SR
B MzxFEm AR () REGEHFEDD
EINGRATHIFZELMALEHE « X
b) KB(LETAREFTETEFRFINIR
RS UDE i ARANNCTS & R s i

R-EEtLtFEFXNA=F+H

R-_ZEZLFNA-BE-ZTTLFRA
=+ BHE ARAZEFERRSITHRA
BN R R R AT AEBOX B 0 By & AE R
BT EENEDENAR  MEEEAR
KR (a) RIB(EZFIRDI) L3521 BETHF
ZERMAREERE 3 (b) KIECLETAF
ERETRFRINFEESTRDBAARF]
RERZF - URBHRES -

EERNGFERB2ER

ARREESHMBBENEBERBEF 2%
15 g s e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

As at 31 March 2007 and 30 June 2007 A —EELtF=ZF=+—HR=-FZELF
NA=+H

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than IUTALE(MBIEEERARAZESITR

a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the shares AB)RAR AR MR G5F %E RE

or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the RARVERCEFIRD) F3361KFEZEC

register required to be kept by the Company under Section feEm AR :

336 of the SFO are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BEREEIIBTZEERHEE

Personal Corporate/ Shareholding

Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
EEEER

IRER A 8 Az HfttfEzm BRESL

Pearl Court 172,200,000 - 41.77%

(Note 1fff 5% —)

HITL - 172,200,000 41.77%
(Note 1Ff1 5% —)

Cheah Cheng Hye #1585t & - 24,478,000 5.93%
(Note 2BT5F =)

Value Partners Limited (“VPL") - 24,478,000 5.93%

(Note 2BT5F =)

Notes: Bt 5

1. These 172,200,000 shares are held by Pearl Court as trustee — - %%%172,200,000/% B {7 e Pearl\CouE{”E?‘,%
for HCF Trust. HITL is deemed to be interested in these HCF TrustZ 25 AHF A  HITLHR & B %
172,200,000 shares held by Pearl Court by virtue of the fact % i Pearl Court¥§ A 2 172,200,0004% i% 17
that 9,999 of 10,000 units of HCF Trust are held by HITL as 2w - B AHITLE AHWL TrustZ 25 A
trustee for HWL Trust. #57810,000fEHCF TrustE {7/ 2 9,9991@ &

fif °

2. VPL is interested in 24,478,000 shares in the capacity of — . VPLIEAKREAKIRIEH 24,478,000 f% 1D ©
investment manager. Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is interested in FR TR @5 /8 58 4 K5 A VPL 35.65% < IR 1# -
the same block of shares by virtue of his 35.65% shareholding U 4 35 45 A S 5255 24,478,000% 3% 19 &Y
in VPL. e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007 and 30 June
2007, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares” above, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2007 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 14%
Five largest suppliers combined 41%
Sales
The largest customer 28%
Five largest customers combined 84%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

FERR (&)
BREXREZERERTHRABRIEZRE

SITBRABZBR D ER] PHRESN  R-F
Z+tF=A=+—BRZZEZELFRA=
TH WEALEBEARR BN KA
Bz EEIRE  MZEEEIAET
RIECE 15 01) F33616A T 17 2 B it
PTRC &%

TEREFRHERD

RE-TT+H=A=+—AILEE 4
KEEEEREERES 2 BERMEE
DA

BE

=R 14%
K fE g L 41%
Fi=k=

SN 28%
AKREPF £ 84%
Bralidh REE BHENBBAIUE

EPAMEAANRBIRAEIB5% 2 IR &
BAECMNLAANKEEIEHRERLEFPZ

R o
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 13 August 2007 to Friday, 17 August 2007
(both dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Branch Registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Room 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Friday, 10 August 2007.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 3 ¥ B Eh ¥R £

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERUKEST SR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KARRIE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
119 to 198, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

BEANEBRZRAERATARR
(REREZZMALZBERL A)

KAz SR (A TR I3® M) EEZINER
F1192198B = FBBIZERER AR ([E
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RERDEBRNGERASRER UK
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 4% BBl ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

RBETNEE
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 July 2007
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Balance Sheets EEBER

As at 31 March 2007 R-ZZ+F=H=+—H

Group Company
rEE ¥ NUNE|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —ETRF ZBELE —ZERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W TR TEx 0 TR TER
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Leasehold land and HE LK
land use rights T A 6 47,927 48,560 - -
Property, plant and %% 5 &
equipment B 7 269,150 232,038 - =
Investment in subsidiaries E"WE
Z%xéi 8 - = 403,495 415,592
Interest in i R/NE]
associated companies 2w 9 - - - -
Deferred tax assets BERBEEE 18 1,042 847 - =
318,119 281,445 403,495 415,592
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables 2 5 e Wk 3R 10 610,850 605,098 - =
Inventories FE 11 374,974 339,828 - =
Prepayments, deposits and BRNR - BEK
other receivables H & U IR 5K 35,015 22,721 300 231
Amount due from JRE U Bt & X A
associated companies iR 3K 9 8,770 - - -
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 12 6,359 - - —
Cash and bank balances Re kRRTERF 12 267,280 323,466 118 215
1,303,248 1,291,113 418 446
Total assets BEHBE 1,621,367 1,572,558 403,913 416,038
EQUITY &
Capital and reserves NN S
attributable to the BB AR
Company'’s equity holders RN J kA
Share capital i 7% 13 41,228 41,051 41,228 41,051
Other reserves H & 15 107,505 101,922 294,790 289,207
Retained earnings RE & A
- Proposed final dividend — B ARE R 12,369 65,682 12,369 65,682
- Others —HAft 395,096 317,543 43,514 3,596
556,198 526,198 391,901 399,536
Minority interest DERE H R S 424 424 _ _
Total equity EmmE 556,622 526,622 391,901 399,536
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As at 31 March 2007 R=—ZZE+E=A=+—H

Group Company
N | ¥ NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEZtE —TTRF ZEEtFE —TTRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% TR FAT FTER FET
LIABILITIES BfE
Non-current liabilities *¥RBaR
Long-term bank borrowings, ~ FHRTE
secured Pgig 17 90,875 148,625 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIERE 18 7,536 9,876 - -
Provision for long RHRB &
service payments £ 19 6,053 5,977 400 -
104,464 164,478 400 -
Current liabilities mEaE
Taxation payable JE BT 1E 2,959 1,589 134 111
Trade and bills payables B S ERIRR
L 16 451,605 429,996 82 -
Accruals and other payables EEEBRAR
H it & 1R 5% 183,086 153,276 11,396 16,391
Receipts in advance BRIRR 4,929 10,180 - -
Short-term bank borrowings, R HIEITEE -
secured A 17 317,702 286,417 - -
960,281 881,458 11,612 16,502
Total liabilities BELE 1,064,745 1,045,936 12,012 16,502
Total equity and liabilities BEhkBEEE 1,621,367 1,572,558 403,913 416,038
Net current assets/(liabilities)  RENEEFE,/ (BE) 342,967 409,655 (11,194) (16,056)
Total assets Z@ﬁﬁ
less current liabilities BB B E 661,086 691,100 392,301 399,536

Ho Cheuk Fai Kwok Wing Kin, Francis
i =2 18 2Pk B

Director Director

BFE EF
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Consolidated Income Statement — expense by function
GEBRER-—REAYEISE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HEZ=-ZZ+F=A=+—H1t

2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T FET
Revenue A 20 3,328,097 3,597,242
Cost of sales 55 & KA 21 (3,024,002) (3,211,354)
Gross profit EH 304,095 385,888
Distribution and selling expenses DHENIHEE R 21 (40,343) (31,153)
General and administrative expenses — % & 1T & 21 (113,358) (136,195)
Operating profit 52 5 Al 150,394 218,540
Finance income B 75 WL A 23 11,104 10,127
Finance costs B 7% X A 23 (23,764) (24,531)
Profit before taxation B 7% B g 7 137,734 204,136
Taxation BIE 24 (12,806) (17,757)
Profit attributable to KARRERAE A
equity holders of the Company JE 15 55 A 124,928 186,379
Earnings per share & 1% % A
(expressed in HK cents) (AZSALET)
- Basic — &K 26 30.3 455
— Diluted — 5 26 30.2 451
Dividends % 2 27 47,413 102,596
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GmERBEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 HEZ=-ZZ+F=A=+—H1t

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

BEAQADRERE A
Other
Share reserves Retained Minority Total
capital (Note 15) earnings interest equity
H 1t i1 YRR RDAE
B (HE 15 REHEA i &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TFTHER TER TER
Balance at 1 April 2005 “ETRFNA-B &R 40,777 91,649 283,505 424 416,355
Profit for the year AERH - - 186,379 - 186,379
Issue of shares upon exercise 17 { B % 4
of share options m#ET 2’ 274 4,422 - - 4,696
Employee share option scheme: {& 8 B8 it 2l
- value of employee services - EERB2EE - 7,311 - = 7,311
Transfer to retained earnings B ARIE R MM E R
upon lapse of share options & B & 7l = (1,460) 1,460 - -
Dividends paid 2R S - - (88,119) - (88,119
Balance at 31 March 2006 —EERE=ZA=1—H
2 41,051 101,922 383,225 424 526,622
Balance at 1 April 2006 “EERNFHNA-BEH 41,051 101,922 383,225 424 526,622
Profit for the year AE R - - 124,928 - 124,928
Issue of shares upon exercise 77 (i & IR 4
of share options #1722 177 2,576 — - 2,753
Employee share option scheme: 1&g 8 B #E T2 :
- value of employee services  —EERBKZEE - 3,328 — - 3,328
Transfer to retained earnings ~ BRELUMEZR
upon lapse of share options R i 7 - (321) 321 — -
Dividends paid BB - - (101,009) - (101,009)
Balance at 31 March 2007 —EZt§=H=1+-H
R 41,228 107,505 407,465 424 556,622




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZEHR <€

For the year ended 31 March 2007 & Z =& +F=H=+—H1t

MER

2007 2006
—ETLE ZETRF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
P TER TET
Cash flows from operating activites K& FH HERE
Profit before taxation BR 5 B s 7 137,734 204,136
Depreciation of property, MmE - BE&&
plant and equipment ZITE 52,978 49,414
Amortisation of leasehold land and ME LT R+ fF AR
land use rights 28 1,050 614
Share-based compensation expense MR ZHzMe 3,328 7,311
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEESE
plant and equipment pd - VAC &) 367 (171)
Write-back of provision for obsolete RERFHETFEERE
and slow moving inventories PACIE: - (18,157)
Provision for/(write-back of provision for) & 5 & Wik X
impairment of trade receivables BEEE, (EHE2EE) 526 (3,512)
Write-back of provision for amount JiE s B 1 B IR SR 1R
due from associated companies 7 [o] B (1,874) -
Provision for/(write-back of provision for)  KEARE &
long service payments R/ (EB2OE) 359 (1,205)
Interest expenses FExZH 23,764 24,531
Interest income FERA (11,104) (10,127)
Operating profit before LEESEHAIL
working capital changes 1R R 207,128 252,834
Inventories B7E (35.146) 118,342
Trade receivables 2 5 IR (6,278) (41,505)
Prepayments, deposits and BN RZER
other receivables H i & I iR X (12,294) (103)
Amount due from associated companies & UL B & 1\ B IR X (6,896) =
Trade and bills payables ZORNIRALER 21,609 (16,605)
Accruals and other payables JEET B A I Hfth JE 151 R 5K 29,810 26,976
Receipts in advance T8 Ui iR 3K (5,251) (6,107)
Cash generated from operations REEFECRE 192,682 333,832
Interest paid B H 8 (23,764) (24,531)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEMNEH (15,422) (23,438)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REBAMNEH 1,451 1,560
Long service payments paid ENREREE (283) (187)
Net cash generated from RETBESE
operating activities ZEEE 154,664 287,236
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ZERERE
For the year ended 31 March 2007 BE=-ZEZ+F=A=+—H1t

2007 2006
—EZtH —EERE
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
P TER TET
Cash flows from investing activities RETBzRERE
Purchase of property, plant NEWE  HFE
and equipment By (91,208) (68,193)
Increase in leasehold land and land ENMEELTR
use rights T b A (417) (23,866)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment REBZFER 751 173
Increase in pledged bank deposits EMERRITER (6,359) =
Interest received 2 F 8 11,104 10,127
Net cash used in investing activities RELHMAREFE (86,129) (81,759)
Cash flows from financing activities METBHz2RERE 28
Proceeds from exercise TR BRERER
of share options 2,753 4,696
New long-term bank borrowings HREBRTEE - 130,000
New short-term bank borrowings FEHRITEE 802,560 772,346
Repayment of long-term EERBARITEE
bank borrowings (57,750) (38,750)
Repayment of short-term BEEHRTEE
bank borrowings (732,444) (897,383)
New trust receipts loans FETREBEER 577,625 809,597
Repayment of trust receipts loans BEETHEER (616,499) (925,400)
Repayment of capital element EEREHEREL
of finance lease obligations Ve L) - (1,091)
Dividends paid 2R S (101,009) (88,119)
Net cash used in financing activities REEHMACREFE (124,764) (234,104)
Net decrease in cash and BekBReFEN2
cash equivalents FOR (56,229) (28,627)
Cash and cash equivalents MA—BZzHER
at 1 April ReEEY 323,374 352,001
Cash and cash equivalents “A=t+T—-HBZEEK
at 31 March ReZEY 12 267,145 323,374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of computer casings,
office automation products, moulds, plastic and metal parts
and provision of electronic manufacturing services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 6 December
1996. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares have been listed in the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 16
December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated, and have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 July 2007.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRS) under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are
carried at fair value.

1T —RESR

EMBRERBERAR (TRRAE]) REK
Bor (ARIAKE]) TERSRERH
EBEMINR MRAENEEM - RA - 2
BheBH M HEETEXTRIES -

RKRABRR—NANARNETZASHBRBERE
ST - ¥ %= & ik 2 Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

ARABZBOR—AARFE+ A+ KXE
REBBMAEXZMERRAERLET -

BAMBREATETIIE (BIEDAH
H) AN BRECEHEFRAE_ZTT
£ AR TIE -

2 EESBERE

BEANGAMBREARBZEIEGER
BERTX - BRABHAN  EBRER
ERIFAMBFENEBER °

21 HmBEE

ARG aMBHRRERBET SV HME ER
(BBMBER) RBELKAERE
YRR FEEBBRCR U BEEMY
BRBEZE[HMIEHLES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in
current year but not relevant for the Group’s operations

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2006 but are not relevant to or have no
significant impact on the Group’s operations:

- HKAS 19 (Amendment), Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures;

- HKAS 21 (Amendment), Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation;

- HKAS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions;

- HKAS 39 (Amendment), The Fair Value Option;

- HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment), Financial
Guarantee Contracts;

- HKFRS 1 (Amendment), First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards and
HKFRS 6 (Amendment), Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in
current year but not relevant for the Group’s operations
(Cont’d)

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease;

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 5, Rights to Interest arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds;

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 6, Liabilities arising from Participating
in a Specific Market — Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment; and

- HK(IFRIC) - Int 7, Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not
yet effective in current year and have not been early
adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
have been published but are not effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, Scope of HKFRS 2 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006).
HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 requires consideration of
transactions involving the issuance of equity
instruments — where the identifiable consideration
received is less than the fair value of the equity
instruments issued — to establish whether or not
they fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. The Group
will apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 from 1 April 2007, but it
is not expected to have any impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements;

2 EESHHERBE #®)

21 mBEE (&)

AN B A R0 (8 BN 5K B 2 AE B 2 E
B~ AEET 027 ()

0
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2R BATHRE

AEEYEIEFRATIE RMEENSE
BIARERZZER - EFIMERE

- 5 BRMBERESREZES) -2
Be[ZBMBERN 2z &E] (=%
ERFRAA-BR 2K 2 ST H
BAEX) - BE (BEMBRE2RESR
B - RBRENSNBETHESET
AR5 — &P AREZ AT #RIHKE
BRAETERTIAZATE LA
BEHERTBREEMBER 228
BN AEEER - LFHA—
FEEAEL (BEREMBHRERES
8g) 2B BEREHISHAEER
ZIEAVBRRBEMTE

127



-

-

*
d

= Karrie International Holdin-g.s-Limite

3R BB P B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBERE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 21 HmBEE (E)

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not v NSy e N QTN W) [ R
yet effective in current year and have not been early ZER - (EFTHIEFE (B)

adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 9, Reassessment of embedded
derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 Jun 2006). HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 requires
an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative
is required to be separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when the entity
first becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent
reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be
required under the contract, in which case
reassessment if required. As none of the group
entities have changed the terms of their contracts,
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 is not relevant to the Group’s
operations;

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 10, Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 November 2006). HK(IFRIC) — Int 10
prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an
interim period on goodwill, investments in equity
instruments and investments in financial assets
carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
balance sheet date. The Group will apply HK(IFRIC)
—Int 10 from 1 April 2007, but it is not expected to
have any impact on the Group’s financial statements;
and

TE(BARMEREREZES) -2
BB EIAATETAE] (B
TERNFANA-—BRZRAB 2GR
HEER) - BE (AR EHRE2RE
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BtES (BERMHERERBRES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not
yet effective in current year and have not been early
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

- HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007. HKAS 1, Amendments to capital disclosures,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007. The Group assessed the impact of
HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 and
concluded that the main additional disclosures will
be the sensitivity analysis to market risk and capital
disclosures required by the amendment of HKAS 1.
The Group will apply HKFRS 7 and the amendment
to HKAS 1 for annual periods beginning from 1
January 2007.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

2 EESHHERBE #®)

21 RELEE (&)

AN TG K A R T AN 2K (3] I 4R 12 R IR
BRI ~ ZET M2 FE (4B)

- BEPHREEMIIEHMTA K
Bl BA-_TTLF-A—BHZRK
F@a-ﬂil“zﬁ?rﬁﬁ?ﬁi?& BEGTEA

[BARBEZER] A-FTL
E-H—EI&Z&E‘-W‘* SErHEE
Mo REB D EEEMEHRELER
TREBEGAEANZEBIIZRE &
WAEBZBEINNER ST EETE
RN ZERT AT E 5 35 Rl B 2 80 R
EDPMMEARE - AEEKH_-F
TrE—-F AR S HIREER
BN BMEEL TARFTB G E
AIZIERT -

22 #HEWRE

RAEVBBRREBEARAREMANB AR
BAEBE=A=1T—HILZHMB®EK -

@ HEBLE

MBAREAEEAREGN LT B EEE
BRZFIBER - —QW’ﬁﬁfiﬂﬁﬁ%&FE
B2lE EFEARERSEH S —F
B BAl TTT@%TRT@Z@E&% %
ZHREMZEHDTER -

MEBARAEZGEEEEAREZEE2E
RAaAlR - WBAREZEHEREZAR
{F L&A AR o

129



130

= o= *

= Karrie International Holdin-g.s-Limite&

3R BB P B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(b)  Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group that are recorded in the
consolidated income statement. Purchases from minority
interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

(c) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available for
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
the carrying amount are recognised in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(b) Transactions and balances (Cont’d)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities (such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss). Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets (such as equities classified as
available for sale) are included in the available-for-sale
reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2% to 4%
8% to 12%
Machinery 10% to 15%
Moulds and tooling 15%
15% to 33.33%

Buildings
Fixtures and leasehold improvements

Furniture and computer equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within other (losses)/gains — net, in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.6 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plants and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance such assets
during the period of construction or installation and testing,
if any. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.5 in this Section.

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2 EESHHERBE #®)

26 HEEIRE

ERIRBEERET BEARBFHRERZ
Mg WIAARAR - KABREREEN
ZEFAB (B A ZBFREMA -
PRE MmN ARIAR R ZEEERE 28
EMEHX HERIREEEEZABEE
TR NMAMEREREA NMENEEE - B

BREERAENER  KANABEZHEMY
X BB MR WK 2.5l

BRITE °

27 MEAR BELARAUBEEZ
B

REEERFHARNRARERCEE
BEREN BERLSFRAEETAS
REBEHHAXBARBRRNREER
e R W Bl By BUUR B TT RS - BIF#
Zﬁ?’%ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁidﬁﬂm%mﬁ
M {8 ] B A W B B pLRL B E TR AT © R
ﬁ%ﬁ&ééZﬁﬁ@hﬁﬁT%@ﬁ%
ZERER -AIWESBEUNEEZ QA FE
HREERAXERAEEMELHRRE

B RETERER @ BEIRI D HBAH
ﬁi/}lb%(ﬁ@?ﬂz T_L)ZE—TEEJE/ %ﬂ
G BREEI ERXBECEELAETHE

%25 B HI39 5 (2
5o

% Al LA [ 1T iR

135



136

= o= *

= Karrie International Holdin-g.s-Limite&

3R BB P B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.11 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.13 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.14 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.15 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments wholly due within
twelve months after the balance sheet date are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made. Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

(c) Pension obligations

Group companies operate several pension schemes. The
plans are generally funded through payments to trustee
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.15 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(d)  Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on
high quality corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.

(e) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.17 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related

receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery
of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(b) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.
(c) Management income

Revenue from the provision of management service is
recognised when the service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures. Most of the Group’s operating activities are
denominated in United States dollar (“USD"), Hong Kong
dollar and Reminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group has not used any forward contracts or currency
borrowings to hedge its exposure as foreign currency risk
is considered to be minimal.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings.
As at 31 March 2007, most of the Group’s borrowings
were primarily at floating rates. The Group generally has
not used interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade receivables included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group has put in
place policies to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
directors aim to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

3.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer
guotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debt.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date.
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BRENR - AEERKAIHMBEEZT
SHRERERERE -

RBEHARMSER SR T A (FIam5sh
TETA) 2 2 FEFNABERMNEE - &
SEMNAZETE  URESEGERE
F2mERBRELRE - REEHHBE
UTAZTEREARXSGEREETE - &
by - BIERfARTREIRIBSIRE - HIAE
TEHEMIAZAFE - FXREHZQ
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e B wRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives. It will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

3 BXERBERE (&)
3.2 AFEME (&)

B RBAMEN R 2 REERGES
HE RREROEQAFE -FRKRER
B MBEREAFEZGHFRAREGHE
TRENASERUSRTANSERD
SMERRRGTE o

4 BRMtzEIHEEF R A

st M H & WA - ARBBER
BRMEMEZRETHE BREGRENR
THEHRKEHZEERAM -

AEBBRRELGEAMRE - FITZE
RIERTANETEER  RISGHEERERM
Al - RAKEEH TETBRFEZEEM
BEZIREAEEHEAFHE 2B MERR
Af AT e

(@) MXR BERREZERAFH

AEEEEBREYE BEMRRBEE
MR ERFRRTEER - EFER
FREERNEREERDEZDE - B
FEERBZEREREHEE - EFHG
AeERFHRERZ  EEESE M
EER EERIELZIRBUEEES
1% 5 S5 S OB, © BFR 2 OB F H R RE B G
AeERFHRAER - RHZREAAES
HBRR2FRETNEFHRFNEZTHAIELH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.

(c) Write-downs of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

4 BEREMtzEIHAFTRAE )

(b)  FEUBR R 2 14 5 RE

N e Y A e e g IR E SR
ZERWHGHRBEER - BFMHELERK
BBk B BUR Al e m g2 5K - Rl E sl
FEWOIR KA IR 6 - R B IR R (E T
ZEHHIE NG - EEHASRERER
AAEERR  AZEESN&RbETHRE
B R AR EREWIRR 2 R EENRES
BEME -

(c) MWREE

REFEERMEZFHEMBRFEERZA]ER
FE - —BEAZRAESBANEERFR
A5 R ] BE K BE B2 3R B RS AR AT SR R MURL © B
RIMOR R ZEL A REEr - EFRHz2
HEREMAAZER  AZEREFER
BN HRAREFEZIREERTF
8 ZWOR -

(d) MEH

BREBIANEETEZES B DA R ZM
s GEEEERAEGHERGR  FE
FHEXRHAE - E—REBBET  7FZ
RPMETEM B R 2 RETREEE A
o AKBREBEHEENFERHNBEINLK
2GR AR K ESARBEERAE -
MEFEEHLZEERBRREAZINGLEKLZ
TBEITRA HEZBRFEFLLFTERE
HAMR 2 PRSI AR E A 4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ZSHMEHR

(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (a) EXFERENX XKD

At 31 March 2007, the Group is principally engaged in RZZEZLF=ZA=1T—RAAXEEFER
the manufacture and sale of computer casings, office ERENHEEBKRINR MOAEXNEE
automation products, moulds, plastic and metal parts m- 2R BRREEXNH (WA
(together referred to as “Metal and Plastic Business”) and H%%ﬁ%]) NRH-EFEERIRB ([E
provision of electronic manufacturing services (“EMS BEERIE®]) -

Business”).

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, KEBERAEE 2 AT BHRE - XEBRTE
the Group has determined that major product segments NEBZEMODEBREARARERARAME
be presented as the primary reporting format and NERRERERAZET -

geographical segments as the secondary reporting format.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2007 HE_SZ+tF=-A=+—HEELtZH
are as follows: EEBWT -
2007
—ETLHF
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
TR ErEX
e RIEHK HAt CEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER FTHERT THER
Segment revenues o EWRA
Total segment revenue DEWA B 1,605,146 1,839,112 8,067 3,452,325
Inter-segment revenue 7 EB U A (124,228) - - (124,228)
Revenue WA 1,480,918 1,839,112 8,067 3,328,097
Segment results DEEE 132,270 10,057 8,067 150,394
Finance income B 11,104
Finance costs B 75 B AR (23,764)
Profit before taxation BR 75t AL A 137,734
Taxation 18 (12,806)
Profit attributable to PAN/NGIE ¢
equity holders of B AEE R
the Company 124,928
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e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(@) Primary reporting format - business segments

5 ZoHWMEH &)
(a) EFXABERX-XBII (&)

(Cont'd)
2006
—ETRF
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Others Total
Te R BFEZE
EY RIEH Hit GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
Segment revenues 2 BBA
Total segment revenue D E U A 2 %R 1,541,151 2,161,313 4,501 3,706,965
Inter-segment revenue 2 BB e A (109,723) - - (109,723)
Revenue WA 1,431,428 2,161,313 4,501 3,597,242
Segment results D EEE 161,917 52,122 4,501 218,540
Finance income BRI 10,127
Finance costs B S R (24,531)
Profit before taxation BR %5t Al g A 204,136
Taxation 1% 18 (17,757)
Profit attributable to AR AR
equity holders of A AEIE R
the Company 186,379
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e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 ZoHWMEH &)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (@) EXHFEERX XK (&)
(Cont'd)
Other segment items included in the consolidated income HoHBEEEREEGEeBERERAN
statement are as follows: ™
2007
—EELHF
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Total
Te¥R EFEX
X% RIEHK GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET
Depreciation e 36,865 16,113 52,978
Amortisation B 515 535 1,050
Provision for/(write-back of provision B 5 UOR R EEE
for) impairment of trade receivables (% 7 [l #) 548 (22) 526
(Write-back of provision for)/provision REFS (ERE2BE)
for inventory obsolescence /S (15) 15 -
2006
—TER
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Total
he¥R EFEE
EY S RIXK A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Depreciation E 34,934 14,480 49,414
Amortisation i 292 322 614
Write-back of provision for impairment ‘2 5 & U iR &l (B 2 15
of trade receivables 2 [B] B (3,512) - (3,512)
Write-back of provision for REFEERH
inventory obsolescence 2 [B] B (18,144) (13) (18,157)
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e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 oHER &)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (@) EXHFEERX XK (&)
(Cont'd)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2007 and R-EELF=ZA=Z+—HZOEHEEM
capital expenditure for the year ended are as follows: BEUNRBEZRLFECEEEBAND
™~
2007
—EELE
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing
plastic services
business business Total
LE&ER BErEx
X% RIEK R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Segment assets DBWEE 810,922 693,229 1,504,151
Unallocated assets KENEE 117,216
Total assets BEEMRE 1,621,367
Segment liabilities HHBEaE 343,308 408,351 751,659
Unallocated liabilities rEHBE 313,086
Total liabilities BERE 1,064,745
Capital expenditures EAERH 53,173 38,452 91,625
2006
—ETRF
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing
plastic services
business business Total
he¥R FEFEE
EY) RIER GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET FAT
Segment assets DEEE 753,964 661,034 1,414,998
Unallocated assets REDEE 157,560
Total assets BEEHE 1,572,558
Segment liabilities DEEE 327,932 425,467 753,399
Unallocated liabilities AENEE 292,537
Total liabilities BEHLE 1,045,936
Capital expenditures EXERA 46,296 45,763 92,059
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e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 22EER @)
(b) Secondary reporting segments - geographical (b) REBREEX-HEDI
segments

The Group's revenues are mainly derived from customers
located in Japan, Asia (excluding Japan), North America
and Western Europe.

AEBEZBWA MY BREIE/SAR I
MABF/BEA) ~ LM R AR -

2007 2006
—EBEELE Z—TZTAREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Revenue WA
Japan H 7 557,358 243,253
Asia (excluding Japan) M (REEEAX) 1,122,495 1,498,504
North America 1t 3= M 477,525 600,095
Western Europe i 1,170,719 1,255,390
Total ®(E 3,328,097 3,597,242

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the
final destination of shipment is located.

WARBHANERNMAEBRRK DK

2007 2006
—EBELEE _—ZTEAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Segment assets DEEE
Japan A7 - -
Asia (excluding Japan) TN (RBEREAR) 1,547,598 1,524,224
North America 1t M 25,799 22,965
Western Europe i 47,970 25,369
Total ®IE 1,621,367 1,572,558

Segment assets are allocated based on where the assets
are located.

DHEERBEEMEMEDE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(b) Secondary reporting segments — geographical
segments (Cont’d)

5 ZoHWMEH &)

(b) REHBEFEA-HEDI (&)

2007 2006
—EELFE _—_TETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET

Capital expenditure BEXREHR
Japan A7 - -
Asia (excluding Japan) M (REEEAX) 91,596 92,038
North America JEEM 3 21
Western Europe sl 26 =
Total #mE 91,625 92,059

Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the assets

are located.

BAXABRRBEEMEA DK -
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights

represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net

book values are analysed as follows:

6 MHELMRImEHRE

AEERHEL R T FRAE ERE
ENEEHEERE  REKRBFEI TN
T

2007 2006

—EELFE _—_TETXREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

Net book amount at beginning of the year 4 %] IR E & 48,560 11,868

Addition nNE 417 23,866

Transfer from deposits for land use rights X & B &= £ F A #E - 13,292
Transfer from construction in progress REZIREER ([E7)

(Note 7) - 148
Amortisation 5 (1,050) (614)
Net book amount at end of the year FRIREEE 47,927 48,560
Cost B AR 52,187 51,770
Accumulated amortisation Rt (4,260) (3,210)
Net book amount at end of the year FRIREFE 47,927 48,560
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Hong Kong EXE—HEHRI0ES0F 1,091 1,118
Leases of 10 to 50 years in Mainland China & — & B 10E 504 45,850 46,438
Leases of over 50 years in Mainland China B —f&50F A 986 1,004

47,927 48,560

The leasehold land located in Hong Kong are held under

medium-term leases expiring in June 2047. The leasehold

land located in Mainland China are held under land use
rights of 45 to 57 years expiring in April 2043 to October

2062.

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land use rights in

Mainland China with a net book value of approximately
HK$1,252,000 (2006 HK$1,283,000) are mortgaged as
collateral for the Group's short-term bank loans amounting
to approximately HK$7,107,000 (2006: HK$17,391,000)

(Note 17).

ERBEZHEITHIREE _FHELFAN
AHOmz P HBEOMES - EHBEcEE
T HRERBO+TEER+E5 (BEE
—_TEN=FEAE_ER-_FtALZzL
WEREmREAE -

AEBURFE 2E THE - HEHAER
MR E 41,252,000 T (ZEZE N F
1,283,000 L) EE R EHRITERL
7,107,000 7T (ZZFZ /X4 : 17,391,000/
gL) 2R (IEE17) -
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e B wRMEE

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YME- -BERRXE
(a) Group (a) A*&KH
Leasehold Moulds  Furniture and
Construction-  improvements and computer
Buildings in-progress  and fixtures Machinery tooling equipment Total
FRR
BT EBIR NEEE BE HARIR ElRE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAn TAn TAn TAn TAn
At 31 March 2005 ZEERE=-B=1-H
Cost A 96,543 2457 52,293 302,454 21,546 38,534 513,827
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (10,581) - (22,675) (215,456) (18,500) (33,206) (300,418)
Net book amount REFE 85,962 2457 29,618 86,998 3,046 5,328 213,409
Year ended 31 March 2006  HEZZEARE
ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BIERE 85,962 2457 29,618 86,998 3,046 5,328 213,409
Additions TE 3,746 29,079 2117 2,616 2,795 5,840 68,193
Transfer to leasehold land and ~ EZRETH RT3
land use rights il = (148) = = = 2 (148)
Transfer in/{out) g1/ (1) 2,250 (2,250) = = = = =
Disposals & - - - = = @) 2)
Depreciation nE (8,848) - (5,607) (29523) (1,282) (4,154) (49,414)
Closing net book amount BRERSE 83,110 29,138 26,128 82,091 4,559 7012 232,038
At 31 March 2006 ZEEXFZB=1-H
Cost A 102,539 29,138 53,397 326,650 21,641 36,587 569,95
Accumulated depreciation 23t g (19,429) - (27,269) (244,559) (17,082) (29,575) (337,914
Net book amount REFE 83,110 29,138 26,128 82,091 4559 7012 232,038
Year ended 31 March 2007 B ZE-BE+E
ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BNERSE 83,110 29138 26,128 82,091 4559 7,012 232,038
Additions RE 25,045 14,11 8,362 33,741 3,529 6,359 91,208
Transfer inf(out) g1/ (1) 30,555 (30,614) = - - 59 -
Disposals e - - - (1,112) (1) (5) (1,118)
Depreciation il (9,885) - (6,473) (30,460) (1,550) (4,610) (52,978)
Closing net book amount BRERSE 128,825 12,69 28,017 84,260 6,537 8,815 269,150
At 31 March 2007 ZEEtFZB=1-H
Cost A 158,139 12,69 61,759 355,981 24,900 11,880 655,355
Accumulated depreciation 23t g (29,314) - (33,742) @n, 1) (18,363) (33,065) (386,205)
Net book amount REFE 128,825 12,69 28,017 84,260 6,537 8,815 269,150
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ¥ BERRE#E)
(Cont’d)

(@) Group (Cont’d) (a) %8 (&)

Depreciation expense of HK$50,964,000 (2006: T & # 50,964,0008 T (ZE T XN F

HK$47,307,000) has been taken to cost of sales, and 47,307,000 L) EEHEK AT H K

HK$2,014,000 (2006: HK$2,107,000) to general and 2,014,000 7T (ZZEF/<4F : 2,107,000

administrative expenses. TL)RFA—RRITHER o

(b) Certain of the Group’s buildings in Mainland China (b) AEEBEUVRAFRBEzETEFREFE
with a net book value of approximately #93,177,0008 T (Z T ZT KX F
HK$3,177,000 (2006: HK$5,921,000) are mortgaged 5,921,000 7C) EEREERITE R
as collateral for the Group's short-term bank loans #7,107,0008 T (ZEZT X F :
amounting to approximately HK$7,107,000 (2006: 17,391,000/ JT) 2 B (F5E17) o

HK$17,391,000) (Note 17).

(c) The Group’s interests in buildings at their net book () AEEEEF I HERERHEREFES
values are analysed as follows: M
2007 2006
—EELE —ZTTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH& T
Buildings in Hong Kong, held on leases REEFBEEF
of between 10 to 50 years 10250F 7 E 2,251 2,329
Buildings in Mainland China, held on leases A B B #EF
of between 10 to 50 years 10250F 7 E 123,994 78,147
Buildings in Mainland China, held on RAPRFEEF
leases of over 50 years Z@S0FHHE 2,580 2,634
128,825 83,110
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e B wRMEE

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 8 RHBLARAZRE
Company
NN
2007 2006
—EELFE _—_TETXREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRMD 2KAE 193,285 193,285
Less: Provision for impairment of B RHBARICIRE
investment in subsidiaries A% (3,087) (3,087)
190,198 190,198
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 213,297 225,394
403,495 415,592
Amounts due from subsidiaries represent funding by the B B AR REBRRARBEE R ZH
Company to the respective subsidiaries and are BRARIRNEBEREL -

denominated in HK dollars.
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 8 RHNBLAIAZRE &)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZEELtF=ZA=+—"HEZEWNB QA
2007 are: ZER

Place of

Particulars of
issued/registered

incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and

158

Name types of legal entity  place of operation share capital Interest held
MR R ERTR
% EEERER TEXBREELH o iR A B&EKE
Karrie International The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in the Ordinary US$100 100%
(B.V.L) Limited limited liability company ~British Virgin Islands L@ 1005E T
RBRERES REER  RBREXES
BAREFERA
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong, limited Plastic injection moulding Ordinary HK$100 100%
Company Limited liability company operations in Hong Kong LAEAR1008 T
EREBRERAR BE BEREAMALR BRIBLE FE Non-voting deferred (i) =
HK$990,200
s Y S ()
990,200/ 7T
Castfast Industrial Hong Kong, limited Manufacture of computer casings, ~ Ordinary HK$100 100%
(Yan Tien) Limited liability company office automation products, L@ 1008 T
EREREZBREK BE BREAAH moulds and plastic and Non-voting deferred (ii) -
BARAR metal parts; provision of HK$10,000
electronic manufacturing services, % 22 4 i 1T A% (ii)
property holding and 10,000/% 7T

investment holding in
Mainland China

RETKIR WAENEER
RARZEBESBHMG R4t
BETEERIRG  HENER
REER  PH
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e B wRMEE

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

Name

L

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
types of legal entity
af B 3L 3 B K
EEERER

Principal activities and
place of operation

FTEXBREEHH

8

RBRABEZRE (&)

Particulars of
issued/registered
share capital
BRTR
it i A

Interest held

EEEA

Castfast Magnetics
Moulding Limited

ERUSTER
ARAR

Dongguan Yanxun
Electronics Company
Limited (iii)

REEAET
AR A& (i)

Hong Kong Hung Hing
Metal Manufacturing
Company Limited

FREESEHMD
BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BB BRAMERA

Mainland China, sino-
foreign joint venture

TEFNRELE

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE BEREAMERF

Manufacture of plastic injection

moulds and metal stamping

dies in Hong Kong

HETREARSBHE

RE &R

Manufacture of computer casings,
video cassette housings, office

automation products and

plastic and metal parts in

Mainland China

REBRINR  REH

MR

BREXBERREBR

TEBH - PE

Manufacture and sale of metal parts

in Hong Kong
HERHESBAMN

B

Ordinary HK$10
LEARI10ET
Non-voting deferred (ii)
HK$30,000
BRZRETR)
30,000 T

Registered capital
HK$4,500,000

BRIIEFN
4,500,000/ 7T

Ordinary HK$100
LAAR 1007 T
Non-voting deferred (ii)
HK$250,000
BRERETR)
250,000/ 7T

100%

85%

100%
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e B wRMEE

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8 MRHEBARZKRE (&)

Name

L

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
types of legal entity
af B 3L 3 B K
EEERER

Principal activities and
place of operation

FTEXBREEHH

Particulars of
issued/registered
share capital Interest held
BETR

AR A BEEA

Karrie Industrial Company
Limited
EMERARRAA

Karwin Engineering
Company Limited
FERMIEERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BB BERAMERH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BB AREELRH

Manufacture and sale of video
cassette housings, sale of
computer casings and office
automation products, plastic and

metal parts, metal stamping dies,

plastic injection moulds and
provision of electronic
manufacturing services in
Hong Kong
%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%%%@
HEBMMR  MWAZE
XEEm EBReBHMG
LEBRERARERIRR
RETTEXRIRY &8

Design, manufacture and sale of
computer casings, office
automation products;
manufacture and sale of plastic
and metal parts, metal stamping
dies, plastic injection moulds
and provision of electronic
manufacturing services in

Hong Kong
R WERHETHIRR
PAENEER  HEBBR

cEET  EBFERAR
BRIRRREHRETER
RIRH - B

Ordinary HK$1,000
LR 1,000% T
Non-voting deferred (ii) -

HK$5,000,000

BRZRETR)

5,000,000/ 7T

100%

Ordinary HK$10 100%
LTAERI0ET
Non-voting deferred (ii) -
HK$100
e & ()
100/ 7T
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8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 8

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

REBRARZ2RE (@)

Particulars of
issued/registered

Name types of legal entity  place of operation share capital Interest held
o B L 3t B % BETR
1 EEERER TEXBREEE KA BEkH
Karwin Technologies The United States of Provision of consultancy services Ordinary US$100 100%
Incorporation America, limited to group companies in the L@ 1005E T
liability company United States of America
X6 AREAERA RUEBERARETASERA XH
Kings Horse Investment Hong Kong, limited Property holding in Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100%
Limited liability company RENE &5 E@ERI10ET
YERBEERAE BB BREERAA Non-voting deferred (i) =
HK$10,000
ERFEELK)
10,000/ 7T
Karrie Technologies Hong Kong, limited Provision of electronic manufacturing Ordinary HK$30,000,000 100%
Company Limited liability company services in Hong Kong & % 30,000,000/ T
EMRRHMBERAR FE ERECRR RESTFEERLIRYE FF
Kings Dragon Investment ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited liability company REER  BE TRER2E T
YaEeRE (F8) BE BREAEAR
BRRA
Karpo Technologies Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
Limited liability company REEKR BB @ik 1,000% T
REMBERAA R AREALH
Kwong Hing Computer Hong Kong, limited Property holding in Mainland China ~ Ordinary HK$100 100%

Metallic Components
Limited

EREK BRI
BARAR

liability company

BB AREEDH

BENE  +H

LRmR10075 T

Non-voting deferred (ii)
HK$1,250,010

s Y ()
1,250,010 7T
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e B wRMEE

8 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 8 RWEBRAIAZKRE @)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and Principal activities and issued/registered
Name types of legal entity  place of operation share capital Interest held
0 R L 3t B % BETR
a1 EERRESR TEXBREEHH at i R A BREA
FRREETEX Mainland China, Investment holding in Registered capital 100%
BRARA wholly-owned foreign Mainland China HK$24,000,000/
enterprise REER  # paid in capital
hE - 2EEE HK$5,000,000
ST % ERIN-¥N
24,000,000 7T/
BERER
5,000,000/% 7T
Note: Bt 5
(i) The shares of Karrie International (BVI) Limited are held directly (i) Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited Z % {»

(i)

(iii)

by the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held
indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of HK$200,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited (“DYECL")
is a co-operative joint venture established in Mainland China
with an operating period of 15 years up to May 2010.
Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 October 1995, the
Mainland China joint venture partner of DYECL (the “joint
venture partner”) has agreed to waive its entitlement to share
the profit of DYECL in return for a pre-determined annual
fee. Upon expiry of the operating period, the Group and the
joint venture partner are entitled to a distribution of assets
in accordance with their respective equity interests.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at

any time during the year ended 31 March 2007.

(i)

(iii)

DARREERA - R B2 ZBRN
TIARREIEERE -

EBEREEEEROYIFBAEEMESR °
BEERMHEREE  TEESZRE - K
FHEBRAAEEERFRELBRRIRE 2
44 %A #2318 200,000,000,0005% ¢ : & BIZE
RpEES ZFEMDIK ©

REBEAETFTERAR ([REREAL) TR
TERIZEELE  EA¥HATEH
F-RZZ-ZFHHAER - BE—HRN
—ANEF+TA-THEREZHHE * R
ZREAZTTEBARERREEDZRS
FER Mz ARR—EHEEZF
BoNAEHRLE  AKERGTEE
AFESREEaMOBZEE -

RBE-_ZTS+EF=-"A=+—HBILEER
EMBARBHETMAERHITZEEER -
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e B wRMEE

9  INTEREST IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 9 REBEQTzER
2007 2006
—BELFE —_TETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH& T
Unlisted shares, at cost EETMRR D 2 KA A 12,000 12,000
Share of net assets NEEEFE
Beginning of the year F 1)) - =
Share of loss of associated companies DEHERNT L EIE - -
End of the year FE - =
Due from associated companies JE Lt B & X B IR 3K 8,770 1,874
Less: Provision for amount due from B REEE R RIRRZ
associated companies i - (1,874)

8,770

The outstanding balances with the associated companies
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand and denominated in HK dollars.

T F
B -

LB ER
=
N

AlRAERE ZIRFREER

-

C WHEBKREEE  RABERS
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e B wRMEE

9 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Cont’d)

Particulars of the associated companies indirectly held by
the Company at 31 March 2007 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

9 REBERRZEZ @)

Particulars of
issued/registered

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital Interest held
g/ BRI ER EROTR/

1 EEBERER TEXBREEnE KA BiERH

NEC Nagano Karrie Hong Kong, limited Trading of scanner module and Ordinary 30%
Electronics Limited liability company inverter in Hong Kong HK$20,000,000

REBAEREAN BE AREELE KERWSATRABRRS T 3# 1% 20,000,0007% 7T
ETARAT BE

Dongguan Naganichi Mainland China, sino- Inactive in Mainland China Registered capital 30%
Karrie Electronics foreign joint venture ~ EEEX - @ HK$29,600,000
Limited TE RNRELE AME A

REREETERAA 29,600,000 Tt

EHEBRBARERZMNEFARAF 2KRMH TS
AARHERE - RERREFTAERAA
DEHFEAERRNETFTERARZEE
MDA e

The shares of NEC Nagano Karrie Electronics Limited are
indirectly held by the Company. Dongguan Naganichi Karrie
Electronics Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NEC
Nagano Karrie Electronics Limited.

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES 10 EZEWRIRR

2007 2006
—EELFE ZZTETRX

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

Trade receivables g 5 IR R 619,352 613,109
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B BB REWIR OB EER

receivables (8,502) (8,011)

610,850 605,098
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e B wRMEE

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from 30
to 120 days. Aging analysis of trade receivables is as

10 EBEZEWIRMK (@)

AEE-RETEP 2EHHE30BEE120
He-BZRIIRZIREDTMT

follows:
2007 2006
—EBELE ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
0 to 90 days 02 90H 544,029 557,023
91 to 180 days 91% 180H 20,699 42,726
181 to 360 days 181£360H 51,388 12,477
Over 360 days 3608 JA E 3,236 883
619,352 613,109

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

There is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group’s sales are made primarily to few
key customers. As at 31 March 2007, the trade receivables
from five largest customers accounted for approximately
85% (2006: 86%) of the above total trade receivables.

The Group has made a provision for impairment of trade
receivables of HK$526,000 during the year ended 31 March
2007 (2006: write-back the provision of HK$ 3,512,000).
Such provision was included in general and administration
expenses in the consolidated income statement.

BoRBIRR 2 EmEERE A FEEM
3 o

EAEBEBETFEEREIEZRF ' K
AEBFERHEFEECZRR - R
T+HE=ZA=+—HBH AABFZBHE
R A LB B 5 IR 5K 4985% (=&
TREF  86%) °

BE_ZTTLF=-A=-+—BHLFER"
A& BB 5 e WOk FOR (B 2 5 /5526,00078
TT(ZZTRF  EEZEHR3,512,000%
T RREEEDAER - RRITRER
A SEGEBRRXN

165



. .Kar'rie International Holdiﬁgé.Limite(i

3R BB P B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 10 BESZEWIRIK (&)

AEEZEZRWIRRZREENTIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in the following currencies: BREN -
2007 2006
—ETLE —TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK dollar ok 8,758 17,550
US dollar ETT 602,594 591,063
Singapore dollar B 0 & 8,000 4,496
619,352 613,109

11 INVENTORIES 11 #FE
2007 2006

—EFLE —_ZTTRX

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Raw materials R 190,776 158,240
Work-in-progress F B 39,472 47,490
Finished goods LK an 144,726 134,098
374,974 339,828

FERAEARERAALIAFEERNRN 2 £

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$2,689,656,000 (2006:
HK$2,951,062,000).

%8 /5 2,689,656,0008 T (Z T N F -
2,951,062,0005% 7T) ©

ANEBPAEERA LNk O BRE L&
HEEEE(ZCET N F: EFH 2O A
18,157,000/ 7T) °

During the year, the Group did not make any provision for
slowing-moving inventories. In 2006, a provision of
HK$18,157,000 was written back.
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12 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND

BANK BALANCES

As at 31

March 2007, Group's bank deposit of

HK$6,359,000 (2006: Nil) was pledged as collateral for

12 EHZBTER RERBT
g

R-_ZEZL+F=A=+—H AEEZR

1T1F B #6,359, ooom_??/ﬁ )

certain bank facilities of the Group. EEMTETRITERSFRITZBRE -
Group Company
AEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtFE —ZTTRF ZEBELFE —ZTTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand TERKIRE 52,308 56,468 118 215
Short-term bank deposits ﬂ,ﬁﬂﬂiﬂrm 214,972 266,998 - -
267,280 323,466 118 215
Denominated in: EEENA
HK dollar ok 6,666 22,529 118 215
US dollar 7T 246,417 290,278 - —
Renminbi AR 2,819 5,144 - —
Japanese Yen Hot 1,020 3,297 - -
Singapore dollar B i 10,096 506 - -
Others Hia g% 262 1,712 - -
267,280 323,466 118 215

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits,

with maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months, was 4.45%
(2006: 4.54%) per annum during the year ended 31 March
2007. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based

on daily bank deposit rates.

BHE—_TTLtF=-A=+—HLEFER "
FEBEA—E=Z@BACEBRERTERZE
m%wf%445%(_ TINF  4.54%) - §R
THERFMEBWA ST A RITERF ENZ
@ﬁﬁ
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12 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND 12 EHZBTER BERET

168

BANK BALANCES (Cont'd) BT (E)
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and RREREEMS - He BeFERR
cash equivalent and bank overdrafts comprise the TEXBETYIEE:
followings:
Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BELE —ITERF ZEBEELE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THET FHET
Cash and bank balances & RIRTET 267,280 323,466 118 215
Bank overdrafts RITEX (135) (92) - —
267,145 323,374 118 215
13 SHARE CAPITAL 13 BAE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
ROEHE HE vk = H1E
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
¥ FET T+ FHET
Authorised: ETERA
Ordinary shares TRREK
of HK$0.1 each 181041 800,000 80,000 800,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITR
BEHERA :
Ordinary shares TR TR
of HK$0.1 each T 18 10781
Beginning of the year F 1) 410,512 41,051 407,766 40,777
Issued of shares upon TR T
exercise of share options #7172 f& {n
(Note 14) (MfsE14) 1,772 177 2,746 274
End of the year FKE 412,284 41,228 410,512 41,051

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company in the

year rank pari passu with the then existing shares of the

Company in all respects.

ARBRAFH BT EBBRESTT E IR

BABMDER e
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14 SHARE OPTIONS

With effect from May 2002, the Company has adopted a
new share option scheme, under which it may grant options
to employees of the Group (including executive directors
of the Company) and other third parties (as stipulated in
the agreement of the Share Option Agreement as dated
21 May 2002) to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise
of options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the options, (ii) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of
HK$0.1 each.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement of a minimum period
for which an option must be held or a performance target
which must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

No options have been granted to employees and directors
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2007
(2006: Nil).

14 B E

AR -_ZEZE-_FRAFEE—EFER
BETE  TREMASREZES (BEARQ
AZHITESR) RE=F (R _FFH
AZ+—BzEREFES 2R BEER
BAERBARAIZRMD  E&RZUAEARD
RIEREZETRARE (TRERTERER
EMEITZIRMD)30% AR - ZERETE
BEHBEARAICERZSERT - LOKRARIK
MREREXRTEHZKTE S (NEEXRT
EREANARIZARRRRMD 2 FH
Wi g R>ARAIRG 2 EESFRI10E
W ZFEUARSEBE -

BREFEWRERIN - TEBRER L E
TAHRIBEHMRITHERRBTERLZ
MR -

ARRAME-FRLF=A=+—ALSF
ERREAREREFEHBRE(CTT
RE ) o
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e B wRMEE

14 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) 14 BRE @)
Details of movement of share options under the old and TEEREGE CERERBZE STt
new share option schemes during the year ended 31 March FZA=T—HLEFEZEHHFE :
2007 were:
Number of shares
EREHRA
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Subscription Beginning during during termination of End of
Date of grant Exercise period price of year the year the year empEIEo n;gent year
N \JJ:
RYBH frEsR RRER £ AEECEE AFEEAE  BAMAX EE
HKS ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 000
B T T T T T
0ld share option scheme
ERRES S
20 September 2000 20 September 2000 to 0300 820 - (500) (320) -
“EEEFAACTA 30 November 2006
ZEEZENAZTRE
ZE2ERE+-A=TH
New share option scheme
TRRESE
22 May 2002 22 May 2002 to 21 May 2012 1300 200 - - (100) 100
“ETCFRACTCR “ET_FRACTCRE
ZE-Z£RA-T-A
1 November 2002 1 January 2003 to 1.650 3,570 - (550) - 3,020
“EE_F1-A-A 31 October 2012
“2T-f-f-HE
“ET-HtA=t-H
1 December 2003 1 January 2006 to 2475 8,678 - (562) (400) 7,716
“ET=E+2A-8 30 November 2013
“2TRF-R-HE
ZE-ZFt-A=tH
27 April 2004 1 January 2005 to 1.900 3,136 - (160) (80) 2,896
“EEMEMAC- LA 26 April 2014
“2Tn§-f-REZ
“Z-REMAZTRA
1 February 2005 1 January 2006 to 3.150 4890 - - (270) 4,620
ZZTRE-A-H 31 January 2015
“EREINE-R-BE
“E-1%-A=1-H
7 February 2005 1 July 2005 to 3.350 11,400 - - - 11,400
“ESRECALA 6 February 2015
“2TnFLR-HE
“E-nFZARA
32,694 - (1,772) (1,170) 29,752
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14 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

14 BRE @)

i

Details of movement of share options under the old and %ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁ‘iﬂzﬁ% REREE _TETRX
new share option schemes during the year ended 31 March FZA=1T—BLFEZE&HFE
2006 were:
Number of shares
BREZE
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Subscription Beginning during during  termination of End of
Date of grant Exercise period price of year the year the year  employment year
Rt AH TRER BRER £ A£EERE XEEEAE  BAMAN £E
HKS ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT T T T T T
Old share option scheme
ERRETS
20 e %tember 2000 20 September 2000 to 0.300 820 - - - 820
ZEEEENACTH 30 November 2006
ZEITENAC %E%
ZEENET-A=TH
New share option scheme
22 May 2002 2 May 2002 o 1300 400 - (200) - 200
ZEECFRACTCH 21 May 2012
ZEE_ERA_tCRE
“E-ZFRAZT-H
1 November 2002 1 January 2003 to 1.650 5,450 = (1,880) = 3,570
“ERE+-A-H 31 October 2012
ZBE-E-A-B%F
“F-_FtH=t-H
1 December 2003 1 August 2005 to 2475 11,860 - (120) (3,062) 8,678
_Z? Et-A-H 30 Novernber 2013
“RZRENA-BE
ZT-CET-A=1H
27 April 2004 1 January 2005 to 1.900 3,742 - (546) (60) 3,136
ZETMEMAZTLA 26 April 2014
:ZZﬁE A-A%
“E2-BEMA-TAA
1 February 2005 January 2006 to 3,150 5,450 = . (560) 4,890
ZESRECA 31 anuary 2015
=% 7/\¢ ﬂ EE
F-0%-R=t-H
7 February 2005 u\y 2005 to 3.350 11,400 = . - 11,400
“ERRE_ALA 6 February 2015
:Z@ﬂﬁtﬂ AE
“E-REZAKA
39,122 - (2,746) (3,682) 32,694
Out of the 29,752,000 outstanding options (2006: £29,752,000K{THE 2 BB #EH (Z T TS
32,694,000), 20,864,000 options (2006: 14,738,000) were 1 32,694,000) ' 20,864, 00_0( TE X
exercisable. Options exercised in 2007 resulted in 1,772,000 g 14,/7_38,000) ﬁﬁﬂgT Ti’?ﬂﬁ cH_F
(2006: 2,746,000) shares being issued at an average TLFEIRCBERESEIZEGRI1558 T
exercise price of HK$1.55 (2006: HK$1.71). The related (ZZFFRF - 1.7187T) 3171,772,000%
weighted average share price at the time of exercise was @ (ZFFNEF : 2, 46,\00/9%1%) o FET{E
HK$2.94 (2006: HK$3.27) per share. RAEBMEFAREASEKR2.948 T (=
TTRNF 3278 ©
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15 OTHER RESERVES 15 Htf#E
(a) Group (a) A*&KH
Capital Share-hased
Share Capital redemption  compensation
premium reserve reserve reserve Total
EX UREXfiZ
R RE N (e kA1 s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TR ThER TR ThR
Balance at 1 April 2005 “ETREMA-H
Lt 79,814 5,900 449 5,486 91,649
Employee share option scheme [EEBRE:E
- value of employee services -EERKEER - - - 7,311 7,311
Transfer to retained earnings upon BREXAMER
lapse of share options vyl - - - (1,460) (1,460)
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEREMET
of share options & 4422 - - - 4,422
Transfer to share premium upon EBRREnER
exercise of share options R s E 679 - - (679) =
Balance as at 31 March 2006 “ZEAFZAZT-H
L 84,915 5,900 449 10,658 101,922
Balance at 1 April 2006 “ETRFMA-A
A3 84,915 5,900 449 10,658 101,922
Employee share option scheme [EEBRE:E
- value of employee services -EEREER - - - 3,328 3328
Transfer to retained earnings upon BREXAMER
lapse of share options RE &M - - - (321) (321)
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEREMET
of share options 2B 2,576 - - - 2,576
Transfer to share premium upon EBRREnER
exercise of share options R s E 325 - - (325) =
Balance as at 31 March 2007 “Z5+FZA=t-H
L 87,816 5,900 449 13,340 107,505
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e B wRMEE

15 OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)

15 Hfttf##E @)

(b) Company (b) AEQF
Capital Share-based
Share redemption Contributed  compensation
premium reserve surplus reserve Total
Ex NREZFZ
3% E BE @A BABH MefE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEn TEn TEx
Balance at 1 April 2005 “ITREMA-AZER 79,814 449 193,185 5,486 278,934
Employee share option scheme {8 8 B ik =t &
- value of employee senvices  —EE R 2 EfE - - - 7,311 7,311
Transfer to retained eamings BREXRAMEE
upon lapse of share options R & i I - - - (1,460) (1,460)
Issue of shares upon exercise  17{ i R 1 1 217
of share options LB 4,422 - - - 4422
Transfer to share premium  {TFEREMEE
upon exercise of B E
share options 679 - - (679) -
Balance as at 31 March 2006 —ZEEAE=A=+—H
mﬁ% 84,915 449 193,185 10,658 289,207
Balance at 1 April 2006 “EEAEMA-AEH 84,915 449 193,185 10,658 289207
Employee share option scheme  {E B B R i =t &
- value of employee senvices  —EE R 2 EfE - - - 3,328 3,328
Transfer to retained eamnings BB MR KM MER
upon lapse of share options R & & # - - - (321) (321)
Issue of shares upon exercise  17{ ¥ B M %17
of share options a3 2,576 - - - 2,576
Transfer to share premium ~ {TEBEREMES
upon exercise of i fE
share options 325 - - (325) -
Balance as at 31 March 2007 —EE+#=A=+—H
L% 87,816 449 193,185 13,340 294,790

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

BEBRE-NAN—FREDER (BF]) -
BABBAIHE DR TR - BRI
BRORRBPENBPEE - HMHEE
EZAZ2REESESR "E(‘E%IE&H
EBTRARARRMDEEZAFAE - A
ARABAAIEM - XAHDIK EJZTﬁé%%SU\
BEBIEHDIK
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e B wRMEE

16 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Aging analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

16 BEZENERRARRE
EORMNERRBRZIREDTOT

2007 2006

—EBELE ZEEZRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 416,870 408,745
91 to 180 days 91% 180H 20,046 16,836
181 to 360 days 181£2360H 10,914 2,871
Over 360 days 360H K E 3,775 1,544
451,605 429,996

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills

payables are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBZBZRMNKRRARRERZREEMN

TIE® KB :

2007 2006
—EBEtLtE —TTEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

HK dollar ok 97,043 96,444
US dollar ETT 299,067 294,483
Renminbi AR 52,571 30,451
Euro R 7 2,043 5,958
Japanese Yen Ht 531 2,293
Others Hia g 350 367
451,605 429,996
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17 BORROWINGS 17 BE&
2007 2006
—EELFE _—TTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Non-current ERB
Long-term bank borrowings, secured RHRITEE - AHEA 90,875 148,625
Current Vi)
Bank overdrafts RITEX 135 92
Trust receipt loans S IEE & 142,210 181,084
Short-term bank borrowings RERITEE 117,607 47,491
Current portion of long-term REVIRITEBE 2 BNERER 1S -
bank borrowings, secured B & 57,750 57,750
317,702 286,417
Total borrowings BIEE 408,577 435,042

(@)  The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

Long-term bank

(@) AKERBEZIHAMT

Short-term bank
borrowings and

borrowings bank overdrafts Trust receipt loans
RERTEE EHERTEERETEX EEHBER
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EBRLF ZTTRF ZBBLE ZTTRF ZBBLFE —TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET TER TEX TERT TAT
Within 1 year —F QR 57,750 57,750 117,742 47,583 142,210 181,084
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 45,875 57,750 - - - -
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 45,000 90,875 - = - =
Wholly repayable REFR
within 5 years 2HEER 148,625 206,375 117,742 47,583 142,210 181,084
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17 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

(b) The average effective interest rates of the Group's

17 B8 (@)
by AEERGEEBZRITEETHER

bank borrowings at the balance sheet date are as MEWT :
follows:

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
Long-term bank borrowings, at floating rate ~ KEJIRITEE » ZFE X 4.92% 5.04%
Short-term bank borrowings, at fixed rate MHRTEE  TEX 5.94% 5.58%
Short-term bank borrowings, at floating rate  J2HISRITEE - F B X 5.24% 5.36%
Trust receipt loans = AL UUR B K 5.13% 5.11%
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 7.96% 8.04%

(c)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

(0 BEZREASEATIEEREL

2007 2006
—EELEF —EERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TFET

HK dollar B 401,470 417,651
Renminbi AR 7,107 17,391
408,577 435,042

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their
fair values.

Short-term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$7,107,000 (2006: HK$17,391,000) were secured by
certain of the Group’s leasehold land and land use rights
and buildings in Mainland China with a net book value of
approximately HK$4,429,000 (2006: HK$7,204,000). Other
short-term bank borrowings are secured by the corporate
guarantees provided by the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries (Note 30).

EEZRA\ERL N FEMRI

#37,107,000% 7T (ZFZF /54 : 17,391,000
L) ZRHRITEERAANEENR AR
Eti - tHFERAEREFERER M
BRAEEFIREELR4,429,0008 T (=ZF
TN ¢ 7,204,000 7T) o HMEHRITE
ERUARBIRERETHB AR 2R E#E
RIEBEIR (HFFE30) °
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%).

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

18 ELEH IR

BEEMERAEBELINENEZERTEN
K175% (ZFZRF : 17.5%) E2 &k
{% o

EEATEENAHELENIAE E EETER
HAEEERE  MELMRBHRY MFE— B
e - A BEEH BREELREHR AR
BEEEH - A ABERFER - T2
BHERAREERBRAIIK

2007 2006

—EELE Z—TIZTAREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E (1,042) (847)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEBAE 7,536 9,876
6,494 9,029

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$114,000 (2006:
HK$101,000) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant
tax authorities) which can be carried forward indefinitely.

R-EZELF=A=+—8, KEBNHX
ERIERIIE 2 BB EEA 114,000 7T (=
TERNF 1 101,00087L)  EFERRKZR
AREBEBHRENE (AXE BRI
FE)  ZoBAINERBMET -

177



- —
- -ﬂ.'-‘___; - -.._J._'--l_‘.fnf:-
- i el s ;

. .Kar-rie International Holdiﬁgg-Limite(i

3R BB P B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

18 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 18 EEMIE (&)
The movement of the deferred tax assets and liabilities BREHRBEERGE S SHHER —EHFH
prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation Bz AHREEAAT :

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EiEBEESE
Accelerated
depreciation and total
IR T8 R A5
HK$'000
FH& T
As at 31 March 2005 —EERF=A=+—H 12,574
Credited to income statement EEZRTA (2,628)
As at 31 March 2006 —EEXRF=ZA=1+—H 9,946
Credited to income statement EEGRTA (996)
As at 31 March 2007 —EE+F=A=+—H 8,950
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Provisions Tax losses Others Total
5 BiE Hitb 4ot

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

As at 31 March 2005 —EERF=A=1+—H (5,680) (101) (780) (6,561)

Charged/(credited) to SRR GTA)

the income statement 5,680 (338) 302 5,644
As at 31 March 2006 —EERF=ZA=+—H — (439) (478) (917)
(Credited)/charged FEEZEE GEA) Mk

to the income statement - (1,731) 192 (1,539)
As at 31 March 2007 —EE+F=ZA=+—H — (2,170) (286) (2,456)
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

18 EEMIE (£)

A summary of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities prior to Bl — iR 2 SR BT ERT - BT

offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction B(EE)REBEZHENT :
is as follows:

2007 2006

—EELFE —ZTTRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT

Deferred tax assets RIERIAE E (2,456) (917)

Deferred tax liabilities EEFARE 8,950 9,946

6,494 9,029

19 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
- GROUP

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
approximately 10% (2006: 10%) of the basic salaries of
its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group's
contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes was
approximately HK$3,269,000 (2006: HK$2,921,000).

19 BAERNEE-£HE

(a) REMHRMREE

AEEDZHEEREZ2ERFEAER
rEl([REDFE]) - BESFTIERE
BMEEE  HBURFEATE - RE®R
Beitd AEEMMEEBAVREHE
BzBM(EERBIERTERIEM) 5%Y
ZAEEL R - BT HES 28 AHRK
PA1,000/8 7T 4 LR - B8 2 #5RR1E B B
HE -

RETBEZEATE  AKEBERSTEE
BimREZBREBERNGSIEL R -
AEBEERETRESEERFHESH10% (=
TTREF 10%) FHEHK - MEEERE
RIRRE S SGRIRREF R B AE LT
&g - RNBEZHARKE S H—H
BB R A B) 2 R IRE S AL -

RAFEERAEE R FlRIKTEEL 2
R4 53,269,000 T (ZBEE XNF
2,921,000 7T) °
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19 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS
— GROUP (cont’d)

(b) Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees in
Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by Mercer
Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent qualified
actuary valuer.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
are determined as follows:

19 RHKBANEET-£8 @)

(b) RERBZEH

RHRBEEBR/AKEREETE(RRERE
PEETERTRILEREEMNZR
HRBERITEEE -

ZEEBRRURFEMGFEEELFE I E
AAEMBRERMBARERAGE TAE
BMHRMIE B EE - ZRERBEE
THBELAEBRBEMEEANEREM
BERRDRAEE -

ERAEERBRERCEBIEIIEA

BT :

2007 2006
—EELE —ZTTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Present value of unfunded obligations and ZEiHFRABEBEBERARITE
liability in the consolidated balance sheet &HEKBEZRE 6,053 5,977
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19 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS 19 RAKRBNETE-K£E (&)
— GROUP (cont’d)

(b) Provision for long service payments (Cont’d) (by RHERBSEHE (&)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income EREeBERRER BN ¢

statement are as follows:

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Interest cost A B AR 279 363

Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised BHERZBEEER, (W= 80 (1,568)
Total, included in employee Gt PR EERMNAIA)

benefit expenses (Note 22) (P 5E22) 359 (1,205)

The above charges/(credits) were included in general and KEZH/(BH) BEE—REITEER
administrative expenses. A e

Movements of the provision for long service payments of AEERARGSEGEHEOT -
the Group are as follows:

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAET

Beginning of the year F ] 5,977 7,369
Provision/(write-back of provision) RNEFEE, (EHFEZ L)

in current year (Note 22) (FF5E22) 359 (1,205)

Payments made during the year REDMHK (283) (187)

End of the year FIK 6,053 5,977
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19 RETIREMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

— GROUP (cont’d)

(b) Provision for long service payments (Cont’d) (b)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

RUBRBEEE (B)

PIRZEERERERAT ¢

19 RHKBANEET-£8 @)

2007 2006
—EELE _—ZTEARF
Per annum Per annum
B 5F
Discount rate Ah 3R & 4.30% 4.50%
Expected rate of future salary increases RIRE B 2 FEEAIE R X 3.00% 3.00%
20 REVENUE 20 WA
2007 2006
—EELFE —ZTEXRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Turnover S
Sales of merchandise from HE
— Metal and plastic business — A& BRBER 1,480,918 1,431,428
— Electronic manufacturing —EFTFTEFE
services business KRITER 1,839,112 2,161,313
3,320,030 3,592,741
Other gains H b U 25
— Rental income A ON 3,176 4,501
— Management service fee income —BERBHA
(Note 31) (Mf7E31) 4,891 —
8,067 4,501
Total revenue & HIgA 3,328,097 3,597,242
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21 EXPENSES BY NATURE

21 RMESEZEHR

2007 2006
—EEEF —ZTETRX
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Changes in inventories of finished goods — &k @ &+ &
and work-in-progress - (5.614) 64,670
Raw materials used Rz REME 2,695,270 2,886,392
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BE KRR
equipment (Note 7) ZIE (Msx 7) 52,978 49,414
Amortisation of leasehold land and HE T Rt A
land use rights (Note 6) 2 B8 (Y3t 6) 1,050 614
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMAZ (BEEZMS)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 22) (% 22) 215,375 190,270
Operating lease rental of premises MEZKREHRERS 20,666 18,338
Net exchange (gain)/loss PE X (W) /BB IF 5 (2,296) 449
Auditors’ remuneration % EAD B & 1,598 1,340
Fees for non-audit services FZEBRBEER 217 121
Provision for/(write-back of provision for) & 5 fE W IR ZOREEE
impairment of trade receivables (EHEzE#H)
(Note 10) (M$5E 10) 526 (3,512)
Write-back of provision for amount JE Lt B & X B IR 3K
due from associated companies £ {5 2 Bl B (1,874) —
Write-back of provision for obsolete and PRERBHTFTE
slow-moving inventories (Note 11) A2 BB (I 11) - (18,157)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEL&E
plant and equipment 2B (W) F58 367 (171)
Other expenses HE X 199,440 188,934
3,177,703 3,378,702
Representing: (e
Cost of sales HEMK AR 3,024,002 3,211,354
Distribution and selling expenses S NIEEER 40,343 31,153
General and administrative expenses —ERITHER 113,358 136,195
3,177,703 3,378,702
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22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES -
INCLUDING DIRECTORS'’

22 EERAZH CSBREEHS

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as () AFEEERMNZHAT :
follows:

184

2007 2006
—EELFE —_ZTETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses - IT& - 5$E5§2?E,\I 208,419 181,243
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R KK 2N — 5 5K ET 2 3,269 2,921
Provision for/(write-back of provision for) RAORE € EH
long service payment CEfEzEE) N 359 (1,205)
Share option expenses for options granted & T & £ K (& B & I #
to Directors and employees ZEH 3,328 7,311
215,375 190,270
(b) Directors and senior management (b) EEBERSHREBAE
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 HE_TZLF=-A=ZF+—HLEREEZ
March 2007 is set out below: MedxzOT -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary* bonuses scheme Total
BERKe EEEKS
EE4E e e A EZHR GRS
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAET BT TET TET FAET
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fa] 2 128 58 A - 4,770 3,901 12 8,683
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming 2 B4 - 1,156 73 12 1,241
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis KR LA - 1,146 1,748 12 2,906
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHELE - 1,066 661 12 1,739
Mr. Wong Shun Pang HIEME %4 - 1,174 465 12 1,651
Independent non-executive director ~ FE#{TEFE
Mr. So Wai Chun BIERILA 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond Rin & 100 - - - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing abi=i % 60 - - - 60
* Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which & EoHEEEARMAER ZHE  ZHE

are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant Directors at the date of grant and

recognised over the vesting period.

BREXTARESTERESZAFEETE
REGBHAARK -
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22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES - 22 BERAZH—BEESEH=
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Contd)
(b) Directors and senior management (Cont’d) by EERESREEBAE (&)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming resigned as executive director and re- RN_ZETLFA—H - AEREEBFT
designated as non-executive director with effective from 1 WITESUENZERIFENITES o
June 2007.
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BHE_ZZXFZA=1+—HLEEESFZ
March 2006 is set out below: s RamT :
Employer’s

contribution
Discretionary  to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary* bonuses scheme Total
BERNe EIRKE
EEEH ne e A GHEZHER CE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL THET TAT

Executive director HITEE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fa f 18 5 A - 4,770 5,198 12 9,980
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming £ ELE - 1,181 2,221 12 3,414
Mr. Kwok Wing Kin, Francis PR KA - 1,233 1,975 12 3,220
Mr. Tam Wing Hung oKL - 579 - 11 590
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FHREEE - 1,119 950 12 2,081
Mr. Wong Shun Pang = EHs ok & = 1,261 607 12 1,880

Independent non-executive director BV HHTEE

Mr. So Wai Chun HEELE 78 - - - 78

Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BRIimAR LA 88 = = = 38

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing abis2 bk 59 - - - 59

* Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which 3 ELHERENRNAER 2 HE - ZmE
are determined based on the fair value of the share options BRERTEBESEREFR 2 AFLEERE
granted to the relevant directors at the date of grant and FESBEHAAR -

recognised over the vesting period.

Mr. Tam Wing Hung resigned on 13 February 2006. RZEERNF A+ = B KL EF

[Ragp2e
|
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22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES - 22 EERAZH —BRESMSE
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (%)
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Directors and senior management (Cont’d) by EERESREEBAE (&)
No directors waived any emoluments during the year KEEEEHEMES (ZFZTRF -
(2006: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the /) NNEENKENRIES TEM
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid/ EEARS| H B AREE KK LB
payable to any director during the year (2006: Nil). ZHE(ZEEREF &) -
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (c) EEREFMAML
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEEBAREESTMATERE
highest in the Group for the year include three “H(ZEERF: OR)EF A
(2006: four) directors whose emoluments are e 2N EXHHT o RAFAEER
reflected in the analysis presented above. The “EH(ZEERF —R)EEFAL
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2006: ZENMEMT
one) individuals during the year are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELFE _—_TETXREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Basic salaries and allowances* EXRF & KR 1,873 1,164
Discretionary bonus B 15 B 2 FEAL 1,779 855
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  BK & A — 7 E H ZET & 24 12
3,676 2,031
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22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES -
INCLUDING DIRECTORS'’
EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

22 EERAZH CSBREEHS

(%)
(c) LEREBHFMAML (E)
ZEMSETIEABER :

2007 2006
—BBLE _—TEAF

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JT £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T £ 2,500,000/% 7T - 1
* Included the amounts of share-based compensation, which E EoHEEEARNAER 2 FE - ZmE

are determined based on the fair value of the share options
granted to the relevant employees at the date of grant and
recognised over the vesting period.

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2006: Nil).

23 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BEXTARESTERER I AFEEE
REFBHAAR

AEERLEERFAL (BREEREME
B)WEENTAMSIESRERMU ZHE
(ZZZERE  H|) -

23 MBBRARKAR

2007 2006
—EEEF —ZTETRXN
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Interest expense on: FMERX :
- bank borrowings wholly - RAFREHEER
repayable within five years ZIRITEE 23,670 24,441
— finance leases —REMHE - 10
— others —HA 94 80
Finance costs B 75 Bk A 23,764 24,531
Finance income — Interest income WA —F Bl A (11,104) (10,127)

Net finance costs B TSR N JF B

12,660 14,404
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is exempted from Bermuda taxation until
2016. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

24 Fi8®HiBX

AAREREEREREE_T— X F
Ik - BEBFEBHIIBBEARNFE 2 LT ERE
mAIE17.5% (ZEFRNF 1 17.5%) 2FHE
TR o

ERABERIXBZHEREK

3

2007 2006
—EEEFE —ZTETAN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Current taxation: WITHIA -
Hong Kong profits tax BEENEM
— current year —KFEE 14,586 14,196
— under provision in prior years —FFZ T RERE 755 545
Deferred taxation (Note 18) EERIA (B sE18) (2,535) 3,016
Taxation charge 18 3 12,806 17,757

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits
tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as
follows:

74 5 85 99 4 Tt T 2 2 40 B4 5 4R P
AREALERZFGH KT E 20
GEFE T TR

2007 2006
—EEEFE —ZTEAX
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit before taxation B %% A1 A 137,734 204,136
Calculated at a taxation rate BHRER175% (T NEF
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 17.5%) &t & 24,103 35,724
Income not subject to taxation BAARN WA (15,606) (26,787)
Expenses not deductible AR 2 2 H
for taxation purposes 4,156 8,452
Under provision in prior years FTE2TIRERE 755 545
Utilisation of previously FTREFABERTEER
unrecognised tax losses (602) (177)
Taxation charge FIE S 12,806 17,757
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

Dongguan Yanxun Electronics Company Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Mainland China, is
subject to Mainland China enterprise income tax at the
rate of 33% (30% state income tax and 3% local income
tax). However, it is exempted from Mainland China
enterprise income tax and local income tax for two years
starting from the first year of profitable operations, after
offsetting prior years' losses, followed by a 50% reduction
for the following three years. No Mainland China enterprise
income tax has been provided since Dongguan Yanxun
Electronics Company Limited is in a tax loss position.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “new CIT Law”). The new CIT Law
reduces (increases) the corporate income tax rate for
domestic enterprises (foreign invested enterprises) from
33% (15%) to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008. The
Group has assessed the impact of such new CIT Law and
considers that there is no significant effect to the carrying
value of deferred tax balance at 31 March 2007.

The new CIT Law provides that further detailed measures
and regulations on the determination of taxable profit, tax
incentives and grandfathering provisions will be issued by
the State Council in due course. As and when the State
Council announces the additional regulations, the Company
will assess their impact, if any, and this change in
accounting estimate will be accounted for prospectively.

25 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of approximately HK$87,293,000 (2006:
HK$89,947,000).

24 FREMEX (@)

REBEAEFARRAB IR BB EE
LZMBRARE - BAEN33% 2 BEBERR
BH 0% /BERF—MEHR - M3% S
TREE) o R BN H B EMER AT F
EEREZENFEEMFEZHH LT
BEXGE—MEHRNME T AEN - mMER
= FRIFR50%R AT » 5% A IR B 70 7
BEZMR - FIALRBERTBEERMARF
Bt R -

RZZEZEF=ZA+,8  2BRBARKR
AEHEFEAREMBCEMERE
(I EMBRIE]) - TREMBTIER
DM A E NERE) ZEERT
BRM33% (15%) B25% * B -_ZET)\F
—B—HRBRER AEEFTHEHECEMSE
MEZEEE RAR-ZEELF=A=
+T—HZEERBEEH2EEELZEXE
BEATE -

i RAEBARTFHRE BRG] B
BEBERTEPHRX ZE - PHATER
MoK EmBBREEEZREFEM - 2E
BREMIIERIE  ARREFHEER
2 mA B Ef{atz288arERK
fEH AR -

25 ADTAREFEAERMGRZR

ARABIBRERFEABLHEAPBRIE—2E
BAARRABIRE 2% 487,293,000% 7T
(ZZEZT /N4 : 89,947,000 1) °
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26 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

26 BREF
EREABNIRBARRBBRER A AR
R MR AFAD EIT 2 EBRINE TS

Y Parad
= H o
g&ﬂ Ean

the year.
2007 2006
ZEBEE —ZITRF
Profit attributable to equity holders RRAFIREFEE AFEMLRT
of the Company (in HK$'000) (FBTah) 124,928 186,379
Weighted average number of ordinary EEITEBRZINE T
shares in issue (in thousand shares) (FB&&H) 412,019 409,579
Basic earnings per share T IR & A5 A
(HK cents per share) (R ABALET) 30.3 45.5

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Company has outstanding share options, which have
a dilutive effect on the ordinary shares. A calculation has
been performed to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options.

AR T T AR P 8 2 A
B AL REE DR R N
FERBEE -

ARRDB#HTEBR ZBRE - REXR
TEBREMMzABEZEREE &
EEAVFE(EERANRARRND ZFHFE
mE) ABAZKRPDER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B wRMEE

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd)

The number of shares calculated as above

with the number of shares that would have been issued

assuming the exercise of the share options.

26 BREA &)

is compared

BAETAAEZENHEE, EERKRER
BITEMESHITZRMBBELHLER -

2007 2006
—BELFE —ITETRF
Profit attributable to equity holders RRAFIREFEE A B R
of the Company (in HK$'000) (FH st 124,928 186,379
Weighted average number of ordinary BEETLRR 2 METFHEH
share in issue (in thousand shares) (F &) 412,019 409,579
Adjustment for share options AR 2 B (F’RED)
(in thousand shares) 2,040 3,790
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREERERN
shares for diluted earnings per share T % 2 A 1 8
(in thousand shares) (F &) 414,059 413,369
Diluted earnings per share TR E % A
(HK cents per share) (=R ABLET) 30.2 451
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27 DIVIDENDS 27 RE
2007 2006
—EELFE _—_TETXREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Interim dividend paid of BT R A
HK8.5 cents (2006: HK9.0 cents) —FEERKR8.5E
per ordinary share (ZZ2ZNF : 9.0 &) 35,044 36,914
Final dividend, proposed, of ¥k R BRI AR B
HK3.0 cents (2006: HK13.0 cents) — B EBEAR3.0/EL
per ordinary share (ZZ2ZRF - 13.0%140) 12,369 53,367
Special dividend, proposed, R Bl AR B
nil (2006: HK3.0 cents) —BEERE
per ordinary share (ZZTENE : 3.0810) - 12,315
47,413 102,596

A final dividend in respect of 2006/07 of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend of
approximately HK$12,369,000 is to be proposed at Annual
General Meeting on 17 August 2007. These financial
statements do not reflect this as dividend payable.

@ﬂi

7N
f%3.0

%o Wi 4% 1§ ||
em}iéﬁi%rﬁd%
||

o

N ZETLFEZREAREAE

01l - ©£% /412,369,000 T -
EEFNATEtERERAFRS
o A BRI ERMZIZZZIEN
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

28 HMEBERER

STATEMENT
Analysis of changes in financing is as follows: BMEBEBEE 2HMAT :
Share capital ~ Short-term Long-term Finance Trust
and share bank bank lease receipt
premium  borrowings  borrowings  obligations loans
RAR EH R aE ElE
R E RTEE RITEE HEEHE EX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL THEL TEL
As at 31 March 2005 “ZEREZA=1—H 120,591 172,528 115,125 1,091 296,887
Issue of shares upon IEERER
exercise of share options Sl 4 4,696 - - - -
Transfer to share premium upon TEBREMEZE
exercise of share options B g E 679 - - - -
New bank loans MRITEE - 772,346 130,000 - 809,597
Repayment of bank loans ERRIEE - (897,383) (38,750) - (925,400)
Repayment of capital element EERMEREEE
of finance lease obligations LA HH - - - (1,091) =
As at 31 March 2006 “EEXF¥=A=+—H 125,966 47,491 206,375 - 181,084
Issue of shares upon I B R Em
exercise of share options B 2kh 2,753 = = = =
Transfer to share premium upon TEBREMEE
exercise of share options K& E 325 - - - -
New bank loans MBRITEER - 802,560 - - 577,625
Repayment of bank loans ERREIEER - (732,444) (57,750) - (616,499)
As at 31 March 2007 “ET+LF¥=A=T-H 129,044 117,607 148,625 - 142,210
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29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 29 EERFARERE

LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had the following significant AEBEARBTBULNTREERTHERE
commitments and contingent liabilities which were not LA REEZEZERERSIAEE -

provided for in the financial statements:
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREE

The Group had the following authorised and contracted REBBUTERERBN ZEREAE :
capital commitments:

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—BELE —ITTERF ZBEELtE =TT F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET
Investment in a subsidiary RAHI B R A 2K E 19,000 19,000 - -
Construction of e TN g e
factory premises WEEF
in Mainland China 23,845 3,711 - -
Purchase of property, BEWME  BE
plant and equipment & q 6,030 130 - —
48,875 22,841 - -
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29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land and
buildings under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements extending to October 2047. The total
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

29 AERJAEE (&)

(b) REHERE

AEBEZEMRE_ZTHNLFE T AEH
NAHHEZEHEREZE&EHERZ -
RN AESFTMOT

Group Company
rEH ARTF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2ELE —ITERF ZEBELtE —ITETF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET THERT FET
Amounts payable e & 5
Not later than one year THBE—F 9,007 7,756 - =
Later than one year and  B#@—F K
not later than five years THBBRF 23,940 14,789 - -
Later than five years iR A F 241,447 130,338 - -
274,394 152,883 - =

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AEBARKRTAREE 2 ELEHEREER
QN

2007 2006

—EEEE —ZTETAREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAET

Not later than one year @ —F 721 709
Later than one year and BB —FRITEBBAF

not later than five years 1,965 1,997

Later than five years BiE R F 860 1,286

3,546 3,992
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29 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(c) Guarantees

As at 31 March 2007, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately HK$824,750,000 (2006:
HK$753,450,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

30 BANKING FACILITIES/PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 March 2007, the Group's banking facilities were
secured by:

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s land and
buildings in Mainland China with a net book value
of approximately HK$4,429,000 (2006:
HK$7,204,000); and

(i)  corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries.

29 AERJAEE (&)

(c) HE&R

R-BELF=A=+—0  KAFHKT
PEREEERHERTRE TENB QA
2 BIER S REA) 5824,750,0008 T (= F
T N4 : 753,450,000/ 7C) °©

30 SRITHME BEEM

RZZET+LF=ZA=+—8  AEERT
BMEZETS

(iy ARBEMRTEZEBOLHERETIR

¥ {E 44,429,000 T (ZFEE X
F 17,204,000 7T) : &

(i) ARAPARETHEBREZRFER -
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors regard Pearl Court Company Limited, which

owns 41.74% in the Company’s shares, to be the ultimate

controlling party of the Company.

(@) Transactions with related parties

31 BEAXLRS
& E 37 APearl Court Company Limited * #

B RATATA%EH -

o

(a) EHEAEALTZXS

BB DR

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 2E THER FAT
Sales of goods and services: HEEYRR® :
Sales to associated companies $HE T HEE QA (i) 1,519 4,555
Purchase of goods and services: BEEYRKRE :
Purchase of raw materials A Bt & 1 A
from associated companies BEME (i) 17 582
Purchase of machinery [m) B & A A)
from associated companies EE MR (ii) 462 2,522
Purchases of leasehold land [ 3R 52 Bl B i E
and land use rights and MEARIBE TR
staff quarters from THMEREREIRS
REmMBEEBMERE QA (iii) - 3,582
479 6,686
Others: Bt :
Rental charged by Kings Lion SEE T
Development Limited ERAMBRRNT (i), (iv) 1,339 1,299
Management service fee income ) Bt & 2 &) YR
earned from associated companies EEBIRA (ii) 4,891 —
Machinery rental income earned ] B & 2 A) Y ER
from associated companies HESHE 2 WA (ii) - 1,751
6,230 3,050
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

Note:

(i) Sales to and purchase from associated companies were
conducted at prices and terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

(ii) These related party transactions were conducted in accordance

with the terms of the agreements.

(iii) REMEMEMER 3 A& entered into a joint venture
development with R =B & & @A R 2 7 (“Dongguan
Jiahui”) pursuant to a co-operation agreement. Dongguan
Jiahui is a joint venture company established under the laws
of Mainland China. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a director of the
Company and Ms. Ho Po Chu, the spouse of Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, owned effective interest of 92.15% in Dongguan Jiahui
through a 97% owned company which is incorporated in
Hong Kong. The remaining 7.85% interest in Dongguan Jiahui
is beneficially owned by certain third parties.

(iv) Kings Lion Development Limited is beneficially owned and

controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a director of the Company
and his family members.

(b) Key management compensation

31 BMEALIRS (&)

(a) HBEALTZXRS (&)

B o :

() HEELARAZHERBEEKBEEBAL
ERRAEZ BB RETELT -

(i)

i )%

FEALTZRHHUE BEZEZIFRH

(i) REmEmEFEmEREAREREZERN
BHEHBARAR ([FEME]) REES 2
RMEFTZEIERECRMEIERR - &
FMES—HEARTFEEMAINFINEGER
Al ARRIZEFMAIEELRERREZTM
Bkt (RRRIZH&ERTTHRAR) BBHE
B —ERBBZEMKILZ QA7 %M
BEEZIEMER2A5%EREE - ZEME
HERMT 85%EIIME=F RZ AR
BEANLTFTHES -

vy YHERARAFBALRAREF[IEEL
ERGEDEG RES -

by TEEEEHS

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FAET

Wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses ¥ B + T& - JEBE RIEA 28,430 34,037
Pension costs — defined contribution plan R IKAK AR — R € & 5K ET 3l 192 203
28,622 34,240

(c) Balance with related parties

Saved as disclosed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no balance with related parties
as at 31 March 2007 (2006: Nil).

(c) EBBALTZER

R-ZETZHLF=ZA=T—"HBRERERES
G mMRMETOIN  NREFE W B|EMEA L
Z/\Dﬁ%(—gﬁ/\ﬂz E)



Ten-Year Financial Summary +HF B EHE

The results of the Group for the last ten financial years
ended 31 March 2007 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001, 2002,

AEEHEZE_TTELF=A=1T—H1+
B BRFEZEE  KR—ANANE - —
AANE  —BEBE . —BT—F . =
TE-4 -FF=F -FEMF =
ZERF —EERNFER_ZFTZTLF=HA
=t+t—BZEERBEBWT:

E

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-R=T-RALFE

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

ZERZE CRRCF CRR-F ZRERE AME WE
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Téx Tz Téx TEn TEn  TEn

1743768 1,162,395 898322 663,189 593343 619,145

140,374 90,587 43,556 30,699 25,362 52,935

3,101 4,095 2,857 2,939 2913 346
(10401)  (9,244) (15981 (92390 (67160  (8911)
= = = = - (27,087)

133074 85438 30432 24399 21,559 17,283

(13,266) (7,068  (4,064)  (3,783) 3,603 10,582

2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:
RESULTS
2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEEtE “SERF —5ERF CEENA
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Thn FATL AL FAL
(Restated)
(&31)
Revenue WA 3,328,097 3,597,242 2,571,537 1,697,925
Operating profit eyl 150,394 218540 174,766 104,907
Share of loss of EhBEAF
associated companies B - - (10,234) (1,766)
Finance income BHMA 11,106 10,127 3,964 1,620
Finance costs BBHA (23,764)  (24531) (87200  (6,145)
Exceptional items RHER - - - -
Profit before taxation B A& F 137,734 204136 159,776 98,616
Taxation il (12,806)  (17,757)  (13,203) (8,176)
Profit attributable to AR ARIE
equity holders of RBAER
the Company A 124928 186379 146,573 90,440

119,808 78,370 26,368 20,616 25,162 27,865

Note:

The Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated as required.
Figures as at and for each of the previous years ended have
not been adjusted as it is not practicable to restate earlier
years for comparison purposes.

i AEERE-TEAES A= +— A2 ER
ERNHE, METE U BREEA - B
—2ERF= A=+ AL ZBFCRE
EREA R EREANS AR ETE
RBE - EE I A 4 B AR L B T
AT -
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONSOLIDATED) REEEAE

As at 31 March

H=A=t-8
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
ZERLE DT C250F C5TNF J252F S350 235-F CEETE -AAAE A
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Téx TEr TEx TEr  TEx  TExr TEx  TExr  TEx  TEn

(Restated)
(Z51)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 38,119 281445 242,556 260,677 236549 237463 285632 27635 257,806 215,767
Current assets THEE 1,303,248 1291113 1375377 722,880 711911 567501 424,625 313,015 275035 348791
Total assets EELE 1,621,367 1572558 1,617,933 983,557 948460 804,964 710,257 589,367 532,841 564,558
EQUITY &
Share capital [ 41208 41051 40777 40076 38150 37,694 37374 36195 36000 36,000
Reserves i 514970 485147 375154 334963 326,168 309,709 319,103 302,333 296,381 282,019
556,198 526,198 415931 375,039 364,318 347,403 356477 338528 332,381 318,019
Minority interest HERRER 04 424 424 44 44 424 44 44 44 44
556,622 526,622 416355 375463 364,742 347,827 356901 33895 332,805 318,443
LIABILITIES 8F
Non-current liabilities ~ FER#NEE 104464 164478 106,744 75324 35972 44064 37,778 18231 19428 17446
Current liabilities oIk 960,281 881458 1,004,834 532,770 547746 413,073 315578 232,184 180,608 228,669
Total liabilities BEAE 1,064,745 1,045936 1,201,578 608,094 583,718 457,137 353356 250415 200,036 246,115

Total equity and liabiliies B R BE4E 1,621,367 1572558 1,617,933 983,557 948460 804,964 710257 589,367 532,841 564,558

Note: The Group adopted the new/revised standards and iz : A"EBEBE—TENF=—A=1T—HZF&
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BN ISR B AT RS 2R - &
for the year ended 31 March 2006. Figures as at and for the EZTTRF=A=+—HLEZHEFERE
year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated as required. EXRES c RREBEZEURNS —FEZ2HTI
Figures as at and for each of the previous years ended have RAE  BEIATFEHFTUAELRILE D
not been adjusted as it is not practicable to restate earlier AlAT °

years for comparison purposes.

200






	封面
	封面內封
	目錄
	公司資料
	股東主要資料
	企業大事日誌
	財務概要
	主席報告
	企業管治報告書
	高級管理人員之個人資料
	董事會報告
	財務專欄
	獨立核數師報告
	資產負債表
	綜合損益表-按費用功能分類
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	十年財務摘要
	封底



